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89th Annual Report 2023-24
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 89" Annual Report of your Company
along with the Audited Financial Statemeants of the Company for tha year ended 31" March,
2024, This report read with the Management Discussion and Analysis include details of the
macra-economic scenario, Company's performance and it's approach to risk management,

The Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 is also available on the website of the

Company.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The summarised results of your Company are given in the table below:- (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Profit before Depreciation & Provisions 1070.61 788.17
Less : Depreciabion .0é 017
Profil before Taxation 1070.55 788.00
Less : Provision for Cwrent Tax (Nett of Tax charged in 283.22 22916
ocr)
Provision for Deferved Tax 0.78 3153
Profit after Tax T86.58 527.31
Add: Transfer from OCL: sale of shares 0 0
Add: Other Comprehensive Income(net of ta) 1.07 212
Add: Transter from equity instrument through OCT on 1910.34 (442}
realisation
TOTAL 2697.99 525.01
Add : Balance of Retained Eamings from Previous year 11.610.18 11.190.63
TOTAL ' 1 17 11.715.64
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Reserve Fund (as per BBl Guidelines) 157.32 105448
Dividend Paid 0.83 -
Balance Camicd to Balance Sheet 14,141.02 11.610.18
TOTAL 14.308.17 1171564

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

-

Total income during the yvear under review amounted to $ 1295.83 Lac as against $1,015.53 Lac
in the preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to T1070.55 Lac as against $788.00 Lac In the
preceding year, Profit after tax stood at $786.58 Lac as against 527,31 Lac in the previous year
(before Other Comprehensive Income)
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The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC)
with the Reserve Bank of India.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of
this report, which affect the financial position of the Company, except as mentioned herein
balow under the para “Amalgamation”.

DIVIDEND

Reserve Banlk of India (R.B.l.) vide its circular dated 24 June 2021 has laid down framework for
declaration of dividend by NBFCs. Accordingly, the Board of Directors after taking Into account
various aspects and in compliance with the said circular, has recommended for consideration of
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM}, payment of dividend of Rs. 0.50 per
equity share (10%) of face value of Rs. 5/-. The total dividend for FY 2023-24 would amount to Rs.
12.28 lac,

The dividend recommended is in accordance with the principles and criterta set out in the
Company's dividend distribution policy. Total dividend proposed for the year does not excead
the ceilings specified in said circular/RB| Master Directions,

The dividend, if declarad, at the ensuing AGM will be taxable in the hands of the members of the
Company pursuant to Income Tax Act, 1961. For further details on taxability, please refer Motice
of AGIM.

In terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has laid down Its Dividend
Distribution Policy. The Policy is hosted on the Company's website and can be accessed at
http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211227_NB1_Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at 210 crore divided into 2 crore equity
shares of ¥5/- each. The paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at ¥122.84 Lac as at
31*March, 2024, During the year under review, the Company has not issued any new shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND

Pursuant to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, non-banking financial companies
(NBFCs) are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of their net profit every year to reserve
fund before declaration of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board proposes to transfer 157,32 Lac
to Reserve Fund and the balance is retained in the Retained Earnings.

~

1%
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIALORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

AMALGAMATION

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on September 21, 2022, approved a
Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with N. B. |. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("Transferee Company” or
“Company”) with appointed date being 1" April, 2022. The Company has received Observation
Letter from The National Stock Exchange of India Limited and no objection from Reserve Bank of
India. The Company has filed an application before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
for directions for holding the meetings of the share-holders and creditors of the two companies.
Pending the approval of the Scheme, financial statements have been prepared without
cansidering the effect thereof.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year, nor does it hold any
public deposit at the end of the financial year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter I1B of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), is exempt from complying with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respecttoloans and guarantees.

AS50CIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any associate,
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Members are advised to note the provision of Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 which
states that "Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend Account of a company in pursuance of
this section which remains unpaid ar unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such
transfer shall be transferred by the company along with interest occrued, if any, thereon to the
Fund established under sub-section (1) of section 125..."

It is clear that the dividend if not encashed for a period of 7 years from the date of transfer to
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investar Education
and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained

-,
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unclaimed for 7 cohsecutive years or more from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account
shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to claim their
unpaid dividends from the Company for the financial year 2016-17 within the stipulated
timeline, l.e. 20,10.2024, However, no such amount of unpaid / unclaimed dividend and shares
were transferable by the Company during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. None of the transactions required
members' prior approval under the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations except remuneration paid to
KMP which has duly been approved by the members, wherever required. There were no
materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Comparny with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnzl which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company atlarge.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly material contract /
arrangement / transactions with related parties, attracting the requirement of disclosure in this
report as per provisions of Section 188 of the Act except for remuneration to the key managerial
personnel and sitting fees paid to directors in the ordinary course of business, The details of such
transactions with Related Parties as per Ind AS 24 are provided in the accompanying financial
statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act
exceptasaforesaid,

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on
dealings with related parties. The palicy is available on the website of the Company. Related
Party Disclosures as required under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is annexed to this
report,

INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROL

The Company has in place adeguate financial controls commensurate with its size, scale, nature
of business and operations with reference to its financial statements. The Company has
appointed internal auditors who review the internal financial control system. Thesa have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable financial
information, ensuring Integrity In conducting business, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

RISK MAMNAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has adopted a risk management policy for the Company which provides
for identification, assessment, control and governance of risks which, in the opinion of the

~
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Board, may pose significant loss or threat to the Company. The Policy is formulated in
compliance with Regulation 21 and Part D of S5chedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
policy is available on the website of the Company and also forms a part of the Corporate
Governance Report.

The main Identified risks at the Company are Commerclal Risks, Financial Risks, Operational
Risks and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The details of the Risk Management Committee of the Board
are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOMNNEL
Directors

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has eight Directors with an eptimum combination of Non-
Executive and Independent Directors including two women directors on its Board. Detailed
composition about the Board is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. All the Directors
have submitted relevant declarations / disclosures as required under the Act and the Listing
Regulations,

Shri Ashok Bhandari, Chairman and Independent Director, resigned from the Board on 4"
September, 2023. He was appointed on the Board as a Non Excutive Non Independent Director
on 20" October, 2023 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Company.

Re-appointment of Directors

ShriBankat Lal Gaggar (DIM: 00404123) and Smt. Riya Puja Jain {DIN: 01555454), Directors of the
Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors),
Rules 2014 and the Articles of Association of your Company and being eligible, have offered
themselves forre- appointment as Directors.

In accordance with Regulation 17(14) of the Listing regulations, no person can be appointed or
continue as a non-executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years unless a
Speclal Resolution has been passed to that effect. The Company has already taken consent of the
members by way of special resolution for continuation of Directorship of Mr. Bankat Lal Gaggar
(DIN; 00404123}, who has attained the age of seventy five years.

In the Annual General Meeting held on 21" August, 2023, the members of the Company
approved with requisite majority, the re-appointment of Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya as a
Non-executive Independent Director with effect from 29" June, 2023 for a second term of 5
consecutive years.

-,
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Shri Debasish Ray has been re-appointed as a Non-executive Independent Director by the Board
on 16" April, 2024 for a second term of 5 consecutive years, with effect from 25" April, 2024,
subject to Members' approval through postal ballot. Shri Debasish Ray has given a declaration
that he meetsthe criteria of Independence and isIndependent of the Management.

The Board recommends the re-appointment / appointment of directors retiring by rotation as
aforesaid and accordingly resolutions seeking approval of the members for their re-
appointments / appointments have been included in the Notice of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company along with their brief profile. As required by Regulation 36(3) of the
Listing Regulations and provisions of the Secretarial Standards, brief resume and other details of
the above-mentioned Director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment, is attached to the
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

MNone of the Directors proposed forappointmeant / reappointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting is disqualified from being appointed /reappointed as Director under the provisions of
the Act, the SEB| Listing Regulations or any other order, directions of MCA, SEB! or any other
statutory authority.

Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya, Shri Debasish Ray, Shri Sundeep Bhutoria and 5mt. Priyanka
Maohta continue to be Independent Directors of the Company appointed for a period of five years
from their respective dates of appointment. The reappointment of Shri Debasish Ray is subject
tomembers' approval as aforesaid,

The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in their respective
fields. The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that
they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied
with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company's Code of Conduct.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the
Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management, and are persons of high integrity, expertise and experience.
Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule & of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Board is of the opinion that the
Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and
expertise in the fields of strategy, business management, accounts & finance and taxation.

All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs ('IICA'). In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent Directors of
the Company have completed online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the said
Institute.

~
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ShriS.P. Kumaris the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
ShriAshish Kedia isthe Company Secretary of the Company,

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senier Management including the employees have
complied with their respective obligations as mentioned under Regulations 25 and 26& of the
Listing Regulations.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES
AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

Pursuant tothe provisionsofthe Actand SEBIListing Regulationsthe Board hascarried out an
annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the Directors individually as well
asthe evaluation ofthe working of its Committees,

For evaluating the Board as a whole, views were sought from the Directors on various aspects of
the Board's functioning such as degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board Structure and
composition, establishment, delineation of responsibilities to various committees, effectiveness
of Board processes, information and functioning, Beard culture and dynamics, quality of
relationship between the Board and the management.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, attendance
at the meeatings, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the
Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of
non-executive directors. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of non-
independent directors and the Board as a whole, took into account the views of non-executive
directors and to assess the quality, sufficiency and timeliness of flow of information between the
management and the Board. The Independent Directors were satisfied with the performance of
the Board as a whole and timeliness of flow of information.

Some ofthe key criteria far performance evaluation are as follows:-

Performance evaluation of Directors:
. Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
. Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
. Guidance / support to the management outside the Board / Committes meetings.

Peiformance evaluation of Boora and Commitiees:
. Board structure and composition
. Degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities
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Establishmentand delineation of responsibilities to Committees
Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning
Board culture and dynamics

Quality of relationship between Board and Management
Efficacy of comrunication with external shareholders.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted declaration of independence, stating that they mest
the criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, and
regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors have also confirmed
compliance with the provisions of rule & of Companies (Appointrent and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of
independentdirectors,

The Board took on record the declarations and confirmations submitted by the independent
directors regarding their meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same in terms of the requirements of regulation 25 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

ANMNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 20132 as amended upto date, the extract of
annual return is no longer required to be part of the Board Report. In Compliance to the
pravisions of Section 92 and Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 will be placed on the Company's website in due course.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors

M/s Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration Mo, 302137E, who are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM") held on 27" January, 2022, to hold office from the date of passing of
resolution until the conclusian of the 89" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024
subject to the Boards' review every year. In accordance with the RBI directives, the present
Statutory Auditors will hold office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the requirement of the RBI Guidelines, the Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has recommended the appointment of M/s. R Kothari
& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 307069E) as statutory auditors for a

-,
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period of 3 [three) consecutive years to hold office with effect from the date of passing of the
Resolution in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, until the conclusion of the 92nd AGM of the
Company to be held in the calendar year 2027, subject to the sald firm continuing to fulfill the
applicable eligibility norms.

The Auditors have confirmed that their appointment, if made, will be within the limit specified
under the Act and RBI Guidelines. They have also confirmed that they are not disgualified from
being appointed as statutory auditors in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the Act and the
provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the RBI Guidelines,

The audit report by M/s Chaturvedi & Co., for the FY2024 is unmodified, i.e., it does not contain
any gualification, reservation oradverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

Section 204 of the Act, inter-alia requires every listed company to undertake Secretarial Audit
and annex with its Board's Report & Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in
practice inthe prescribed form.

In line with the said requirement of Section 204 of the Act and the Comipanies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations and other applicable provisions, if any, the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2023-24 has been conducted by Ms. Sneha Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary (PCS).

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024 is annexed to this
Report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark reguiring
explanation or clarification from the Board.

Cost Audit

Pursuant te provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by the
Central Governmentis notapplicable to the Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry out
the Tax Audit for the Assessment Year 2024-25,

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed M/s DU K.
Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry out the Internal Audit of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24.

~
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the reporting period, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has
reported to the audit committee/Board, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any
instance of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the
reguirement to mention the samein this report isnotapplicable,

BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and Its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per
business needs. Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been
approving proposals by circulation from time to time.,

Board Meeting

During the year, five Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in
the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meaetings was within the
period prescribed under the Act, Secretarial Standards-1 {55-1) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and Listing Regulations.

The Company has the following eight (8) Committees, which have been formed in compliance
with the relevant provisions of applicable laws, RBl directions and as per business requirements:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Risk Management Committee

4, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commiittee

G. Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO)
7. Investment/Credit Committee

8. Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

1, Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya (Chairman) and Shri Debasish Ray and a Mon Independent Director Shri Jagdish
Prasad Mundra. The Committee met five times during the year.

10
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2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of two independent
directors and one non- independent director namely, Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
(Chairman), Shri Debasish Ray and Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar. The Committee met twice during the
year.

3. Risk Management Committee

The Company has a Risk Management Committee comprising of three members, namely Shri
Debasish Ray (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar (Director) and Shri 5 P Kumar. The Committee
met twice during the year.

4, Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri
Bankat Lal Gaggar (Chairman), Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya.
The Committee held two meetings during the year.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In terms of Section 125 and Schedule VIl of the Act the Board of Directors has constituted a CSR
Committee under the Chairmanship of Shri Tapas Kurmar Bhattacharya. Shri Debasish Ray, Shri
Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra are the other members of the Cormmiittee.
The Committee met once during the reporting period.

The CSR Committee of the Board has framed a CSR Policy which is annexed hereto and forms part
of this Report. The same is also available on the website of the Company viz. http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/20211109_MEI_CSR_Policy 2021.pdf

6. Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO)
Finance And Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO) of Directors comprises of three
members, namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Jagdish
Prasad Mundra. The Committee held four meatings during the year.

7. Investment/Credit Committee
Investment/Credit Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri Debasish
Ray (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri lagdish Prasad Mundra. The Committee held
four meetings during the year.

8. Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee
Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely

-,
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Shri Debasish Ray (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya. The
Committee held four meetings during the year,

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed
a policy, inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors which
is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is also annexed hereto and forms part
ofthis Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes, independence of Directors as per appllcable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed /re-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in
accordance with the provisions of law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All
Directors, other than Independent Directars, are fiable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise
specifically provided under the Articles of Association or under any statute or terms of
appointment.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any material changes and commitments in terms of Section 134{2)(l) of
the Act, affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year of
the Company as on 31" March, 2024 and the date of this reporti.e. 16™ May, 2024.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE (D80 POLICY)

The Company has In place a D&O policy which is renewed every year. It covers directors
{including independent directors) of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that guantum
and risk presently covered is adequate.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from
discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of
sexual harassment the company has framed a policy to prevent Incidents of sexual harassment
as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prehibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. The Policy aims to provide protection to
employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for
matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working
environment, where employees feel secure. However, constitution of Internal Committee as

-,
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required under the Act is not applicable to the Company since the company has less than 10
employees. All employees are covered under this Policy. During the year under review, the
Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment, hence no disclosure is
applicable. This Policy is available onour website.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are preparad in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
A5) under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by
SEBI. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
achange in the accounting policy. These form part of the Notes to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2023-24, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, ifany;

i)  they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fairview
ofthe state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for FY 2023-24;

iiiy  they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assetsofthe Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv] theyhave prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
suchinternal financial controls are adeguate and are operating effectively; and

vi)] they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively,

Based on the framework of internal financial contrels and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls aver financial
reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by managementand the relevant
board committees, including the audit committes, the Board is of the opinion that the

-,
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Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2024,
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

MNone of the employeesis drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies [Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended to
the Companies Act, 2013,

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and other details as required under Section 197{12)
of the Act read with Rule 5{1) of the Companies {(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed heretoforming part of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND OUTGO

Being an investment company and not involved in any industrial or manufacturing activity, the
Company's activities involve very low energy consumption and has no particulars to report
regarding conservation of energy and technelogy abscrption. The disclosures relating to
Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated under Section 134(3){m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any foreign exchange expenditure and
foreign exchange earnings.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company’s equity shares are listed on the MNational Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).
The Company has paid the annual listing fee to the stock exchange upto the financial year 2024-
25,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Annual Report contains a separate section on the Company's corporate governance
practices. It forms an Integral part of this Report, as annexed hereto, together with the
Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part E of Schedule V' to the Listing Regulations. There ara
no demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account as on the date of this Report as
required in Part F of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations. More details about all the
Committees of the Board, including details of the role and responsibilities of Committees, the
particulars of meetings held and attendance of the Members at such meetings are stated in the
Corporate Governance Report.

-,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis
Reportis set out hereunder and forms part of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
A separate section on Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report is annexed herewith and
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

This year the Company was not required to spend any amount as the average net profits before
tax of the previous three financial years calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
was negative,

The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2023-24 with requisite details in the specified format as
required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed
heretoand forms partof thisreport.

MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UMETHICAL BUSINESS PRACTICES:
Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) and Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy
provides for adequate safeguards agalnst victimization of employees who awail of the
mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It Is
affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee
Chairman. The Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company.

The Company's "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Code of Conduct)” is applicable to the
employees including KMPs and directors of the Company and is available on the Company's
website. All employees including directors of the Company have affirmed compliance to the
Code of Conduct,

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and report trading by Insiders

In terms of SEBI (Prohibitions of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (Insider
Code) as approved by the Company's Board. Insiders (as defined in Insider Code) including
designated employees & persons and their relatives are, inter-alia, prohibited from trading in the
shares and securities of the Company or counsel any person during any period when the
“unpublished price sensitive information” are available with them.

-,
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The Insider Code also requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits
dealing in Company's shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company.

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, tranzfer of
securities of listed entities can be processed only in dematerialized form, Further, pursuant to
SEBI circular dated 25th January 2022, securities of the Company shall be issued in
dematerialized form only while processing service requests in relation to issue of duplicate
securities certificate, renewal [ exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division /
splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission
and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service reguests by submitting
a duly filled and signed Form ISR —4, the format of which is available on the Company's website
and on the website of the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents — MDPL. It may be noted that
any service reguest can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

The investor service requests forms for updation of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination viz.,
Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, 5H-13, 5H-14 are available on our website www.nbi-india.co.in. We
urge the shareholders to submit the Investor Service Request form along with the supporting
documents at the earliest.

In respect of shareholders who hold shares in the dematerialized form and wish to update their
PAN, KYC, Bank Details and Nomination are requested to contact their respective Depositary
Participants.

~
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~
POLICIES
In addition toits Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by the
Company and uploaded on its website are as under;
Mame of the Policy Web link
Policy for selection and appointment of | hitoy/fwees.nbi-
Rirectors, Senior Management induding | india.co.in/policies/NBIAppointment  Policy.pdf
criteriz  for determining  qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of
the directors
Archival Pﬂ"l.’,l.l’ fuf WEb.'ilt-P‘ content hlt;:l ﬂ'ww'w nbi-india.coin/policies/NBI Archival Policy, pdl
F'uilv;:r aon Determmatlm of Matenalm.l http.ﬁwvm nbi-india.co. |r|u-"nnllr:|-v.=,'§,-_'wﬂﬂ |
Determination of Materiality.pdf
Familiarisation Program for Independent | http:fweew. nbi-india.eo.in/policies /N BT
Directors: Famillarizsation Program.pdf
Insider Trading Code http:/ e, nbl-india.co.in/policies/NBI
Insider Trading Code.pdf
Peolicy for Determining Material Subsidiary hittp: fwwee nbi-india.co, ind policies,MNE
Material Subsidiary.pdf
Policy on Materiality of Related Party | hitpg//www.nbi-
Transactions india.co.in/policles/20220518 MBI Policy on Materiality of
RPT.pdf
Policy relating to remuneration for the | htto:/fwww.nbl-india.co.n/policies/NBI
directors, key managerial personnel and | Remuneration Policy.pdf
other employees DI e
Wigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Fulu:y' hittp:/ Swwee. nbi-india.co.in/policies /NEI
Whistle Blower Policy.pdf
Prohibition of Insider Trading http/fwww. nbl-india.co.in/policies/NBI Prohibition of Insider
Trading Pollcy.pof
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy http:/ e nbl-india.co.in/policies/NBI C5R Policy.pdf
Prohibition of Sexual Harassment Palicy ' hitto:f fwwes. nbi-india.co.in/policies/NBI Prohibition of Sexual I
Harassment Policy.pdf
Dividend Distribution Pollcy httpe S rib
Incla.co.ln/pollcles/20211227 NBI Dividend Distribution Pol
loy.pdf
Risk Management Policy hittp:f fwnans. nbil-
indig.co.in/policies/20220518 MBI Risk Manzgement Policy.
pdf
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Directors place on record their appreciation for the support the Company continues to
receive from its Bankers and Shareholdérs and acknowledge the valuable contribution from
the employees of the Company.
For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Kolkata
{Ashok Bhandari)
Dated: 16" May, 2024 Chairman
DIN: 00012210
y,
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Annexure to the Director's Report

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Farmat for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Details of transactions with related parties:

Nature of Name of related party Description of Amount
Transactions Relationship (Rs. Lacs)
Payment of Mr. 5.P. Kumar Key Management 20.33
Remuneration Personnel

Payment of Ashish Kedia Key Management 21.69
Remuneration Personnel

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata
(Ashok Bhandari)
Dated: 16™ May, 2024 Chairman
DiN; 00012210
\ y,
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Conmpamss Act, 2013 and rule No.8 of
the Companies (Appoitinent ond Remune-ation of Worogerio! Personne ! Jules, 2014]

Ta,
The Members,

MN.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED,
21, 5trand Road, Kolkata —700 001

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M.B.L. Industrial Finance Company Limited

{hereinafter called “the Company”) having (CIN- L65923WB1936PLC065596). Secretarial Audit

was conducted in @ manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion therean,

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 ["Audit Period”) complied with the applicable
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings: The Company did not have any Foreign Direct
Investment during the financial year;

(%) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1952 ('SEEI Act’) to the extent applicable; -1 -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

-,
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

0

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ({Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the year under
review)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; { Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depository Participant)
Regulations,2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and {Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; (Mot Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

(vi) The Company is a non-deposit taking Non - Banking Financial Company (NBEC)
categarized as Investment and Credit Company (ICC) with the Reserve Bank of India
{RBI) and the Company is engaged in the business of investmentin sharesin securities
& financial. As confirmed and certified by the management, following laws are
specifically applicable to the Company based on the Sector(s) / Business{es):

(a)

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations and directions
Issued by RBI, from time to time,

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the fallowing:

(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

~
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(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE Limited read with the
SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

| further reportthat

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors & Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive Director
but they have Manager, CFO and Company Secretary, The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that toeok place during the period under review were carried out in
campliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings ather than
those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously asrecorded in the Minutes of
the Meeting of the Board of Directors.

| further report that there are adeqguate systems and processes in the company
cammensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

| further repart that during the Audit Period, the Company has not incurred any specific event
{ action that can have a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standard etc,

Place ; Kolkata Signature:

Date : 08/05/2024 Sneha Agarwal
ACS No.38234
C P No.: 14914

LUDIN- A038284F000335196
PEER REVIEW NO- 2479/2022
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Annexure - A

To,

The Members,

N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED,
21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

My report of even date s to be read along with this letter.

1, Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records,
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected In
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. 1 have not verified the correctness appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4, The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable faws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test check basis.

5. | believe that the audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's
management is adequate and appropriate for me,

6, The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata Signature:

Date : 08/05/2024 Sneha Agarwal
ACS No.38284
CP No.; 14914
UDIN- AD38284F000335196
PEER REVIEW NO- 24759/2022
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

in today's context, the 'Corporate Social Responsibility' (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way for a
Company to balance its Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing the
Shareholders'value and Stakeholders expectations.

The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, sparts, waman
empowerment, rural and urban development and supporting needy people of the society for their
overall upliftment. Though its social activities are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its
operations, which may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly considering
overall upliftment objectives. The Company has framed its C5R Policy in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the same is placed on the Company's website.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises 4 members, of which two are Independent Directors. The

Committee met ance during the reporting period on 28" February, 2024. The details of members
and the meeting are as under:

sL Mumber of meetings Number of meetings of CSR
Name of Designation) Nature of
MNe. Director Bire / !.I i of C5R Committes Committes attended during
P held during the year the yaar
1 Mr. Tapas Kumar Chalrman % i
Bhettacharye [Independent Director)
2 M. Debasish Ray WiEmber 1 1
[Independent Director)
1 hir, B L Gaggar Member [Non-executive i 1
Non-independent Director]
A WE S B Mundra Member (Non-executive 1 1
Non-independent Directar)

3.  Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CS5R Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The Company has framed a C5R Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the said Policy along with composition of CSR Committee and CSR
Projects are placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is:
http:/ fwww.nbi-india, co.in/policies/20211109_NB|_CSR_Policy_2021.pdf

-,
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b.
7.

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies [Corporate Social responsibility Palicy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
{attach the report)

Mot Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3] of rule 7 of the
Cnmpames (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off

for the financial vear, ifany:
{Rs Lacs)

| Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-
from preceding financial years | off for the financial year, if
| [in Rs) any (in Rs)

MIL

sl
M.

Financial Year

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : (Rs. 122.24 Lacs)
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :
(Rs. 2.46 Lacs)

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: NIL

{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Ta+7b- 7c): NIL

-
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B. (&) CSR amount spant or unspant for the financial year:
Amount Unspent [in Ri_.l
Total Amount Spent | Total Amount transferred  to | Amount transferred to any fund specified underSchadule
for the Financial Year | Unspent CSR Account as per section | V| as per second proviso to section 135(5)
{in Rs.) 135{8)
Name of the
Amount Date of transfer Fund Amount Date of transfer
Mot Applicahie Mot Applicable Mot Applicable Hat Applicable Mot Applicable | Mot Applicable
(b) Datails of CSR amount spent against ongaing projects for the financlal year:
[E] 5] o [E] [E] [ [l ] Il [ [}
u, Maree fem- fam Ghe | laosl fmmimn nd e Peogerd e Amaurt spemt o | demcan M wt | Mnodr of Mmpiemaniaton -
[0 af e | bt of scowties | anm P, rarwinm. R oe Mt | trancdemed mgksmeni Thraugh impdemenmag
PO, in Soaedele Wi | (Ve for W fAnmcaF Yo N | Lrepent ik | mop Agey
5 his AT ey nomran o the
fnme], Pt w g | s
Sechion 1M(8 fn
. trewmal,
ﬁ o
| mwte, | Dok Marne Rezmiratam
reTERRT,
MIL
(e} Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
{1} [2} () {4} [5) (8] [¥} | {8}
&l Mame of | (bemn from Local Loweastimas ol the project, Amount | Maods of | Mode of implementation
No. | the the hist of areg spent tor | implementats | Through mnplementing
Profect acthvitiesin | [ves/ the ol - | agency.
schedule Vi | Ma). project | Direct
to thedct, {inRs). | [Yes/Mo).
C5R
State District. Name. riglstration
numnber,
MIL
id} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — ML
el Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — MIL
1f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (So+Bc+Bd+8e)- Not Applicable
v,
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~
{2} Excess amount for set off, if any
sl. Amount
Particul
No. articuiar (Rs. Lacs)
(i Two percent of average net profit of the company as persection 135(5) (2.46)
fii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ML
{iil) | Excessamount spent Tor the financial year [{ii}-(i)] MIL
{iv) | Surplus arising out of the (SR projects or programmes or activities of the NIL
previous financial years, if any
v Amount available Tor set off in succeeding financial years [[iii}-{iv]] MIL
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years!
5l | Preceding Ambunt Amount spent | Amount trarsferred to any fumd specified | Amount
No. | Financial transfarred in under Schedule Vil @2 par section 135(6), If | remaining to
Year. to th | any. ba spart in
Unspent C5R | @ succeading
Account under reporting fame fimancial years
section 135 [6)fin | Finencial Year | ©f Amount finRs). | Dateof transfer, | [0 RS Lacs)
Rs. Lacs) [in Bs. Lacs). the
Fund
1 2201 MIL ML NIL HIL Net Applicable ML
2 H21-22 MIL HiL MiL NIL Mot Applicabde ML
i -3 Ml Nil NIl Hil Mnt Applicable ML
TOTAL NIL
[b) Dietails of C5R amount spent in the tinancial year for ongoing projects ot the preceding financial year s):
| @ {2 (4) (sl (6} (7 i8) (9
5i. | Project | Mame of | Financial | Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of the
No. | 1o the Yesr in | duration. amount spent on the | amount spent | project
Praject. which the eliacated | project  In | atthe end of
project was far the reporting Completed
commaencad, th | reporting Financisl Yaar, | /Ongaing.
sproject | Financial [ Rs.)
[in Rs.). Yaar fin
Rs).
MIL
v,
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10. In case of creation-or acquisition of capital asset, fomish the detalls relating to the  asset so
created or acquired through C5R spent in the financial year [asset-wise details).

[a) Dateof creatlon or acquisition of tha capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b} Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : Not Applicable

(o] Detailsofthe entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital assetis
registered, thelr address ete.: Not Applicable

(dy Provide detalls of the capital asset{s) created or scguired {including complete address and
location of the capital asset): Mot Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5) : Not Applicable

Place: Kolkats Far N.B.L Induskrial Finance Co. Ltd.
Date: 16™ May, 2024

LP. Mundra T.K. Bhattacharya
Director Chialrman of
L3R Lommittee

DIN:00630475 DM 007116565

MB: Figures in bracket indicate negative figures.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)

MN.B.I. Industrial Finance Coempany Limited (MBI} believes that for Its operation and growth to be
sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs. Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social upliftment etc. MBI believes in making social
development as an integral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful
change in the lives of people. NBI considers social responsibility as a voluntary act ratherthan an
additional activity mandated by statute,

MBI has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy. NBI
will maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
policy and that the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with
Schedule V1l of the Companies Act, 2015.

The contents of NBI's CSR Policy are given below:-
1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Palicy

NE| Programmes will focus on supporting needy people of the society for their overall
upliftment, Though its social activities will be focusing primarily on areassurrounding its
operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly
cansidering averall upliftment objactives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

MBI is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
definedin the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by
the Company.

4. ldentification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines
formulated or laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule V1l to the
Companies Act, 2013.

5. Organisational Mechanism

NEB| has co-promoted a Saction 8 Company alongwith other Companies to undertake
activities relating to development of sports in fulfilling its CSR objectives,

-,
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9.

10

11.

Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities /
initiatives and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the
company.

Budget—CSR Corpus

MBI will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for
social initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or
progressive basis.

Performance Management

NEBI will adopt suitable appreach for measuring the actual performance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the
performance.

Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company's engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on Its website and
throughits Annual Reports etc.

Management Commitment

Cur Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy
of compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and compassion,
characterized by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone, This is the
cornerstone of cur CSR Policy.

Review of Policy

C5R Committee of the Board of N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited will review
the policy from time to time based on the changing needs and aspirations of the target
beneficiaries and make suitable modifications as may be necessary.

Place: Kolkats For MBI Industrial Finance Co. Ltd,
Dale 16™May, 2024

1P, Mundra T.K. Bhattacharya
Director Chairman of

C5R Committes
DIM:00630475 DIN: G0F115665%

-,




N.B.L Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596

-,

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the director

Introduction

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd. (NBI) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates 3
culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance.

NB| recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the
Board. NBl aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directars.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the gulding principles for the Momination & Remuneration Committee for
identifying persons who are gualified to become Directors and to determine the independence
of Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company.

Terms and References

Inthis Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by NBI's Board in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013,

Policy
Quelfications and Criteria

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an arinual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are
relevant for the Company's business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee may take into account
factors such as:

* General understanding of the Company's business dynamics and social perspective;
. Educational and professional background;
. Standing in the profession;
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. Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
. Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and

responsibilities effectively.

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

Shall possess a Director |dentification Number {DIN];

Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

Shall glve his written consent in prescribed form to act as a Director;

Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a
Committee Member, the Committes Meetings;

Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees
and Senlor Management Personnel;

Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate,
firms, or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of
the Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the
disclosures already made;

. Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies
Act, 2012 and other relevant laws,

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the ohjective of having a group that best
enablesthe success of the Company's business.

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess
determination of independence whan any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the
Director.

Tofollow the criteria of independence as laid downin the Companies Act, 2013,

The Independent Directars shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in
Schedule IVto the Companies Act, 2013,

Otherdirectorships / committee membarships

The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to
contribute to effective Board performance, The Committee shall take into account the nature of,
and the time invelved in a Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the
individual Director and making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director, Including any alternate directorship, in more than 20
companies of which not more than 10 shall be Public Limited Companies.
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A Director shall not serve as an Independent Directar in more than 7 Listed Companies and not
morethan 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director/Managing Director
in any Listed entity.

A Director shall notbe a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairperson of more than
5 committees across all listed entities in'which he /she isa director.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders' Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be
included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, high
vazlue debt listed entities and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be
excluded.
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees

Introduction

M.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited (MBI} recognizes the importance of aligning the
business objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has
therefore formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees keeping in view the following objectives:

. Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate talent torun the Company successfully.

. Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the
performance benchmarks.

. Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals, However, thereis no incentive pay at present.

Scopeand Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

Terms and References
Inthis Palicy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

"Director” meansa director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a
Whaole-time Director;
i) theCompanySecretary;
iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) suchother officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by MBI's Board in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Policy
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall

review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of
the Company within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company.
Mon-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and the Committees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be
entitled to be pald their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending
Board and Committee meetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their duties as
Directors,

-,
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The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall aiso
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees of the Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according
totheir qualifications, and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be
based onvarious factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following:

a)  BasicPay
b}  Perguisites and Allowances
c) Retiral Benefits

34
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v}

wi)

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5{1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the
employees of the Company for the financial year:

Mot Applicable, as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for
attending Board / Committee meetings.

Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, ifany, in the financlal year
8.55%.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
B.54%.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
5 (Flve)

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration
The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in FY
2023-24 was 10.41%. Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year
was8.55%.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

-
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9 ™)
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
L. Details of the listed entity
1.,  Corporate Identity Number [CIN) of the Listed Entity L65923WB1936PLCOGS590
?.  Nameofthe Listed Entity N.B.L INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LTD,
3. Yearofincorporation 1936
A, Registered office address 21 STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA 700001
5. Corporale address 21 5TRAND ROAD KOLKATA 700001
6. E-mall : nbifinance@ymail.com
7.  Telephone 033: 2230 9601-03
Website wwew, nbi-india.co.dn
9. Financialyear forwhich reporting ls being done FY 2023-24
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where sharesare listed Mational Stock Exchangeof India Ltd.
11, Pald-up Capital Rs. 1,22.84 Lacs
12. MName and contact details {telephone, email addrass) of : pMr. Ashish Kedia
the person who may be contacted in case of any guerieson  : Com pany Secretary
the BRSE report. - 033 2230 3601-03
* nbifinance@ymail.com
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this The disclosures under this report are made on
report made on a standalone basis|Le., only for the Standalona basis,
entity] or on 8 consofidated basis (i.e., for the entity ond
all the entities which form a part of its consolidated
financialstatements, tiken together),
1L Products/services :
14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnowver) @
5. Description of Main Activity, Description of Business % of Turnover of the entity
Mo, Activity
1. |The  Company Is a|The Company operales | The Company's primary sources of
Systemically important Non- | primarily.  as  other | income consist of dividends, interest,
Dieposit taking MBFC | Financial activities with | and gains onsale of investments. This
registered with Reserve Bankof | investmants mailnly in | constitutes almost 100% of the
India &5 an Investment & |shares & securities, company’s income,
Credit Company.
\ v,
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15, Products/Services sold by the entity [sccounting for 90% of the entity's tmaver);
5, Product/Service NIC Code % of total Tumovar
No. contributed
1 |[INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 1340140 100.00%
2, COMBERCIAL LOAN 13006 0.00%
RCTIVITIES
Hl. Operations:

16. Mumber of [ocations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situsted:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
Mational - 1 1
International |

17, Markets served by the entity:
a.  MNumber of locations
Locations Number
National (Mo. of States) 1 |West Bangall
International (Mo, of Countries)

b. Whatis the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
Mot applicable

€. Abrief on types of customers
The Company Is a nan-depaosit taking non-banking financial company, primarily invelved in investments
in equity shares, equity-related securities and other securities ete. [t does not have any customer interface.

V. Employees

18. Details as at the end of Fingncial Year:
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled) :

S. | Particulars Total Male Female
i W7 wote | /A | Mefg | sie/A
Employeas
1 Permanent {D) 5 5 100.00% - 0.00%
L Other than Permanent (£} . . - -
3. | Total employees (D + £ 5§ | 5 100.00% - 0.00%
Workers
4, | Parmanent {F} | - - - - i -
5, | Otherthan Permanent (6] | | |
&, Total warkers (F+ G}
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b.

Differently abled Employees and workers :

No.

S. | Particulars

Totai (&)

Male

Female

NofB) | iB/Al

Ne. (€]

HIC/A)

Employees

1. Permanent {0}

2. | Other than Permanent (E]

3. | Total differently abled employess

(D+E)

Differently Abled Workers

4. | Permanant {F|

5 Other then permanent |G}

B. Total differently abled workars

£

(F+G]

19,  Participation/Indusion/Representation of women

20.

Tatal

No. and percentage of Females

(&) | no, (8

X814

Board of Directors

2 25%

ey Management Personnel®

Z

Turnover rate for permanent employess and workers :

*Mir. Astish Kedo (Company Secretary)and MrS P Kumar (Manager & CF0) are the Key Management Personne of the Company,

FY 2023-24

FY 202223

FY 202127

Male.

Female

Total

Male

Female | Total

Female

Total

Pertnanent
Employees

100% 20%

25%

100%

40%

Parmanght
Workers

~
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Assocdate Companies (including jeint ventures)

21. [a) Names of holding / Subsidiary / Assodate Companies / Joint Ventures:

5, Mame e the haiding Indeate whether 54 of shares Does the entlty Indicsted at ealumn A,
No. | sibsidiany/ agociate | Holding/ Subsidiary/ | heldbylisted | particpate In the Busines Responsibility
companias Eoint Mssodate/ Joint Venture . entity initiatives of tha listed antity?
ventures (4} [¥es/Na)
VL CSR Details

22. (i) Whether C5R is applicable a5 per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes
{if} Turnowver(infs): 129458 Lacs

(i) Met worth [in As.) : 233812.31 Lacs

Figures in paint {ii} and (il above are of Finandial Year 2023-24.

VIL. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23.  Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines onResponsible

Business Conduct:

Therewas na casecfviolation ofthe Code of Conduct In 2023-24 and nocase was reported underthe Company’ swhistle

blowear palicy during theyear.
Stakeholder groug Grisvance Y 2023-24 FY 202223
o s
comphaint 15 Machanismin
received Place [Yes/No)
[ ¥es, then | wuborof | Numberofcom- | Remarks | Numbersl | Numberof com- | Remarks
provide weblink | o | plaints pending com- plalnts
forgrievance plaints rosolution at plaints | pendingrasolu
redresspolicy] | flled | doseofthe yesr filed | don st dose of
during the during the | the year
yeat year
| Shareholders & hte:f fwwew.nai- i - 1
Empioyees Indlz.co.in/pelic]
es.shtmi |
Stairsholder group Grievance FY 20123-24 FY 2023-23
E“"“‘"’“‘;“‘““ '“'*“F"H Mumbesof | Numberof com- Remarks | Numbercf | Nombero! | Remarks
recelve hm“m‘““ wm: | plaints pend ean- com- plalnts
o (asfBia) || cpints || recoimsion s pisints pending
(If Yes, then filed | ciose of the ymar flled resolution at
provide ﬁﬂ during duringthe | doseofthe
frgriew Lhe year year e
redress palicy]
Shareholders Yes 1 - Resolved 1 Resoived
Employees N =R G £ =
Customers Mot - -
Applicable
Yalue Chain Partners Not Applicsble | - - = i =
Cther [please Mot . 5 -
specify] Applicabla

-,

39



89th Annual Report 2023-24

N.B.IL Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596

- =
24, Overview of the entity’s material responsibie business conduct lssues
Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and
soclal matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to
adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as perthe following farmat :
The most rebevant material issuas identifled far:
1. |Governance/Ecanomics Corporate Governance and Ethics
z Social Talent Management
3 Governance/Economic Sustainable investing
Tiwe dotadls of each of the material lssues |5 detalled |n the table below @
1. Corporate Governance and Ethics
Indicate Ritionale for identifyingthe risk/ | In casa of risk, apgroach to Financialimplications of tha rish or
whether rh appariunity adupt or mitigaka sppartunity [indicate pasitive ar negathi
or opportunity Implicatians).
[Rio)
fisk |+ WBistakeholders il Financlal  implications  will  be
seek accountabllity for negative  as  poor  corporate
compliant, ethical and governance or unethical practices
transparent business lead to loss of confidence of
conduct. stakeholders.
2. Talant Management
ndicste | Rationale for identityingthe Incese of rsk, sgproachito | Financialimplicetionsofthe riskor |
whether risk ar risk/oppartunity adapt or mitigate. opportunity (Indicste peshive or negative
opportunity implications)
irfa)
Cpportunity A good talent pool will help | The Company | Gocd talent management will
MNB develop feadership | encourages its | have positive financial
capabhilities aMong its. | employess to | implications as it will ghve a
employees and  ensure | undertake functionsl | competitive  adge  to the
continuity of business. and soft-skill training | company and enzure continulty
programs. of business.
3. Sustalnable Investing
Indicate whether | Rstionaleforidemtifyingthe | Incase of isk, sppruachte | Financalimplications othe rskor
ﬁ*&w-ﬂr ‘risk/opportunity ‘adapt or mitigate opportunity {ndlcate pesitive or
(/o1 negative implications)
"Dppnr‘tuhlty « The global trend of The Company looks |The financial implications will
investment s now to invest in | be positive. i MB invests in
inclined towards companies which |companies that have good
sustainable portfolios demonstrate  good |E5G performance, [t s Nkeby
. Companies \ith ESG practices. tl'!at ﬂ'I-E risk adjusted returns
aooil e will be improved.
SSustainability
performance are
shown to be dalivering
better returns cver the
lang term.
\ y,
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES
This section [s almed at helplng businesses demonstrate the siructures, polickes and processes put In place towards sdoptingthe
MGRBEC Principles and Core Elemeants.
' Disdosure Questions P » [ » (] P P P P
L _ 1 z || = 4 5 5 | 7 8 5 |
Poficy and Management Processes
1. 3. Whether your entity’s policy/ policies | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yag Yas Yas Yes Yas
cover ezch princigle and its
core elernents of the NGRBCs.
(YesMaj
b, Has the palicy besn zpproved | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes a5
by theBoard? | Yas/No)
€. ‘Web Unk of the Policles, IF Prahibitlon of inskder Trading ‘
zvailshle. b Cerporate Social Responsibility Palicy
b Whistle Blower Paficy
h Poliey an Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Wosnen 3t Workplace
All the Palicies are available on the website of the Company.,
2 Whethar the entty has tianslated the | Yes Vs Yes Vs Youg Yasg Yas Yas Yas
policy into procedures. (Yes fNa)
3. Do the enlisted polices extend toyour [The policies have been communicated to all the stakeholders based on the |
value chain partners? {Yas o) relevance,
4, Mame of the national and Mo No Mo HNo Mo Mo Ma Mo No
It rnatianal codes/
certifications/labels! standards [e.g.
Forest Stewardshig Councif,
Fairtrade,  Rainforest  Alllanca
Trustea) standards (eg 54 BOOD,
OHSAS, IS0, BIS) adopted by your
entity and mapped to  each
principle. |
5. Specific commitments, gzozls =nd | The Company has developed detziled action plans and gaals for sach of thematerial |
targets set by the entity with | issues sligned with the NGREC principles, these are detziled under therelevant principle in |
l defined timelines, If any. szetion Cofthis Report,
E. Performance of the entity agalns! the
specific commitments, aoals and o ) _
targets along-with reasens in case Detalied under the relayant principles In section C af this Report
the szme are 1ot mek.
v,
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Disclosure Questions i P P P P P P P P
S e P s [ 4 ] s |8 !J._.!._ ==
Governance, Leadership and Oversight
7. Ststement by Director responsiblefor | The Company i deeply committed to achieving ESG-related objectives and
the business responsibility repart, | continues to prioritize related sgenda over the near and medium term. The Company's
highlighting ESG related | focus on ESG parameters is best reflected through values that are imbibed in all spheres
chellenges, targets and  of activity of the Compamy
achievements |listed entity has |
F[exitlilitv regarding tha pla:ementE
of this disciasure
8 Details of the highest authority
responsiole for lmplmmutlnr}and: Board of Directors
oyersight of the  Business
Respansibility poficy[ies).
9. Does the entity heawe a 5pecifje-if
E;Eg;iie :ri;ﬂfﬂi‘:ﬁ; | Yes, Corporete Social Responsibility Committee
sustainability related fesues? (Yes /| Details on: hitp:/fwww.nbi-india.coin/ poficies shtml
Mo, i yes, provide details,
i0. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:
Subject for Reviaw Indicate whether raview was undertaken by Frequency
Director | Committeaot the Board/ Any [Brnualty Half yearhy Quarterly/any
. other Committee other - please spedfy)
e [pfer [P P IR (PR (P IR |P [P |P |P|P
12345{5 aﬂi—LaLsi?LH
Perfarmance aganst Az @ practice, policies on business responsibility of the Company are reviewed
Abave policies and follow up action parindically or on 2 need basis by the Managemsnt Team. During this
aszessrment, the efficacy of the policies Is reviewed and necessary changes to
r'}:m!iclaf_&ipr_upaed_u_reg are Im_ptgmentgd
Compliance with statutary
requirerients of relevance to the Al eompliancs resuirements with respeet te the NGABS princlgles have beenfulfilled,
principies, and, ractification of any non-
compliances l
11 Has the ently camled out| ‘ p P P p ‘ P p ‘ p P
Independant assassment/ 1 ] 3 4 5 & 8 2
evalsation of the working of its
policies by an external agency? |
[Yes/Mo), If yes, pravide name ofthe w
Agency.
v,
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Disclosure Questions: P P P P P P P B P
1 1 3 4 5 B 7 B -5
12. K znswer toguestion (1) sboyve s No®i e, not all Principles are coyered by 2 pedicy, reasons to be stared:
The entity does not cansider the
Principles material te itz business
YazfNe)
The entity Is not st a stage whereit is
fn & position to farmulate and
implament the policies on specifisd
} princlges fYes/No) Ml Principles are coverad by the Policies.
The entity does not have the financlal
or/numan  and technical reSOUFCES
| evaltahie for the task ies/No)
fis planned to be done in the next
| financial year (Yes Mol
| Any other mamn_{pleaseineclfﬂ
SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE
This sectlon Is almed at helping entlties demanstrate thelr performance In Integrating the Principles and Core Elementswith
key processes and decisions. The infarmition sought is categorized &s “Essantial’ and “Lesdership”. While the essential Indicators
are a¥pected to be dizclosed by every entity that iz mandatad to file this report, the leadership indicators may be woluntarly
desclosad by entities which aspire to progress to o higher level In their guest to be socially, environmentally and ethically
responsible.
FRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that iz Ethical Transparentand
Accountable.
Essential Indicators
1. Percentage coveraze by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:
| Segment Total member of training. and Topics f principies covered #age of perions in respecive category
avareness programmes held onder thetrainingandits- | coyered By the  cwarenass
Impact prOgrammes
.E.nafdofﬂirm:tors During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company
Invested their time on varlous updates pertaining to the
. Business, regulations, etc.
Key
Managerial Fersonnel KMP -1 Anti-maney laundering
| Employess other Antl-bribery and anti- 100%
' than BoD and KMPs Emgloyees other than Bol carruption
End KMPs -1 Whistle blower
Prevention of Sexual
Harassment at the
Warkplace
| Workers | Mot applicable Mot applicablie Mot applicable
v,
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2. Details of fines [ penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settiement amount paid in procsedings (by the entity or by
directors [ iiMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial Institutions, in the financial year, in the following format
(Note: the entity shall make disciosures on the basis of materiafity as specified In Regulation 30 of SEB1 (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and a5 disclozed on the entity's website) :
Monatary
NGREC Kame of the Amount Brigf of the Has an appeal baen
Principle regulatory, [l Bis.) Case Preferred ? [Yas/ha)
enfarcement agencies
judicial institutions
Penalty/ Fine National Stock Exchangeof  Rs 826 lacs  Delayed Compliance Yoz
BB Ingia Lid, [NSE) aof Regulation 23(9)
Settlement o LODA
Compounding Fes
Non:Monetary
MNGRBC Mame of the Anmousnt|in Brietf of theCase Hag an 2ppeal been
Principle regulatary/ R peeferred? (Ves e
enfarcement agences/
judicial institutions
o
| Imprisgnment i
| Punishment
3. Of the instances disclosed In Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases whers monetaryor non-
monetary actlon has been appealed,
Case Deils Mame of the regulatory/enforcemant agencies/
Judicial institistions
- Appeal has been filed against the order of the M3E for | Securities Appellate Tribunal
| alleged delayed Compliance of Regulation 23(9) of LODR,
4, Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide detzils in brief and if available provide a web-
linkto the policy,
Ko
5. MNumber of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any lwenforcement
agency forthe charges of bribary/ corruption :
Mo such action was taken during the financial year 2023-24 and 3022-73,
6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest :
o complalnts durlng the financial year 2023-24 and 2002-23,
7. Provide detalls of any corrective action taken or underway on lssuss related to fines | panalties [ action taken byregulators/ law
enforcament agences/ judical institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest,
to? zpplicable.
v,
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Leadership Indicators
1. Awareness programs conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial year ;

Total Number af mmlnﬁ_rp’;rlnﬁ Togpics/principles covered undarthe H of value chaln partners coversd{ly the
held training yalue of business done with such partners)
under the awareness programs

Maotapplicable since the Company is an Investmant company and no value chain partners are involved,

1, Does the entity heve processes in place to avaid/ manage conflict of interests Invalving members of the Eoard? (Yes/Na) If Yes,
provide details of the samea.
Yes, every Director of the Company discloses hisher concen or interest in the Company of companies of bodies
corporate, firms, or othes associufion of individuals snd sty chenge therein, anneally or upon any change, which
inclodes sharehoiding thersin.

Further. & declaration iz also tzken apoually from the Direomngs vnder the Code of Conduct copfirming that they
wrill ahways act in the interest of the Company and ensure that amy other business or personal association which
they may ave. does not imvolve any condlict of interest with the cpesations of the Company and the role therein

In the Meetings of the Board, the Trrectors abgtain from participsting in the ttems in which they are concerned or

mterested.

PRINCIPLE 2: Businesses should provide goods and services In a manner that i sustainabla and safe Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of RED and capital expenditure [capes) Investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental and
zoclal impacts of product and processes to total RED and capox Investments made by theentity, respectvaly.

FY2023-24 I Fr2022-23 Details of Improvements in
| environmental and social impacts

R&D [

3 Mot spplicabie
Capen prl

L & Doesthe entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? [Yes/No)
Met Applicakle
b, Ifyes, what percentage of inputs were sovrcad sustainahly?
Met Applicable

3, Describe the processesin place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end ofiife, for [a) Piastics
{induding packaging] k) E-waste (¢} Hazardous waste and {d] other waste,

Mot applicable. The Company 15 engaged only In Investment activitles as a Non-Banking Financlal Company and does not
have any goods and raw materialzs utllization as a part of its products and services.

4, Whether Extendad Producer Responsibllity (EPR) is applicable 1o the antity's acthitles (Yes / Maj If yes, whether the waste
coflection plzn is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not,
provide steps takento address the same.

Ma.

-
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Leadership Indicators

1. Has the entity conductad Life Cydle Porspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for manufatturing industry) or for its
services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format?

— m_“d - ‘Jinl'ﬂi vrrﬂ_'__“ _ ___ h‘ __,_ S __ih; R
Code | Prediectf | Turnewer Cyele Perspactive | Independent xternsl | o [Yas Mol yes, proulds the web.
Nl:lt.ﬁp;_llr'mhle a5 the Cnnrpa_rnlr B not immolved i manufacturing I:IIr sErice activity.

2, |f there are any sipnificant social or enviranmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or disposalof your products |
sapviess, 26 (dantified In the Life Cyele Perapective / Assassmients (LCA) or thraugh any othar means, briefly describe the aame along-
with action taken to mitizate the same,

Mot zpplicable.

3. Percentage of recycled or reused ingut materia! to totel material (by value) used in production (for manufacturing industry) or
providing services [for service industry).

Tndicate input material Recyded or re-used input material o total materisl
FY 2023-24 | FY 200223
ot Applicable

4, 0Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tannes) reused, recycled, and safaly
disposed, as perthe following format :

[ i Y 202324 il FY 202223
Re-Used | Recycled |  Safely Re-Used  Rerycled Safely
Disposad Disposed
Plastics (inciuding packaging) - - - - - -
E-waste E - - L -
Hazardous wasie - - . - z -
Other waile - - . . . -
Mate: The Company ls committed to responsible waste management and takes measures to dispase of e-waste, and other
Wwaste in an emironmentally sustainable manner.
5. Reclaimed products and thelr packoging materials (ns percentage of products sold) for each product category.
Mot applicable.
\ v,
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PRINCIPLE 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of 2ll employees, inchuding those in their value chains
Essential Indicators
1. a  Details of measures for the well-being of employees :
Category % of Employees coyered by
Total Health Arcident Maternity Patemity Day Care
(A} Insuranca Insuranee Banufits Banefits Faclities
Number | %{8 |Number | %[C | Number | %[0 |Number (e Number | %[F
(B) /4 i [/ (L (€} /4 (F | /4)
Male
Famale -
Total z = = =
Other than Permanent employees
e B e ol o il
Female The Company doesnot have employees other than Permanent Employees.
Total
b, Details of measures for the well-balng of workers:
Category % of Warkers coverad by
Total Health Accidant Maternity Total Health
(A} Insurance Insurance brenafits A} Insurancs
Mumber | %8 |Mumber | %(C Number | N(D |Number | W[E | Number | %|F
18} (/A 1) 18] (o) S| ey | /4 1R
Permanent workers
male
Famale The Company doss nat employ workers,
Tatal
o Other than Permanent worlkers
hale
Famale The Company does notemglay temporary workers,
Total
v,
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2. Details of rétirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year.
Benefits FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Mo af Mo, of workers Deducted and Mo of Moy, af Deducted and
i - eposited vith RO : deposited with
eoverad 25 % % of totsl the autherity covered &5 aH coyeredasa® | the authority
aftotal workers [¥/N/NA) attatal attotal (¥/N/N.A)
empioyess : amployees workers. '
Pravident ioo Mot Applicable b ) 100 M.A. ¥
Fund
Gratulty 100 Mot Applicabls MLA. 100 M.A. LA,
| Super- - Mot Applicable MLA. 0 LA M.A,
| anmization
| Fund/ HPS
3. Accessibility of workplaces Are the premises [ offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20067 If not, whether any stepsare being taken by the entity in this
regard.
fot Applicable, as no differently abled employvees are In the employment of the Company.
4. Doesthe entity have an equal opportunity policy 35 per the Rights of Persons with Diszbities Act, 20167 if 20, provide a web-link
to the policy.
Mot Applicable
8, Returntoworkand Retention rates of permanent employess and workers that took parental leave,
Gender Permanent Emplayess Parmanent Workers
Return to work rate Retention rate Returm to work Retention Rate
rate
hale
Female Mot applicable Mat applicable
Total
6. e there a mechanism available to recaive and redress grisvances for the following categories of amployess and worker? If yas,
give detalls ofthe mechanism inbrief.
Yes [ No If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief
Permanent workers
The Company does not hava workers
Otherthan permanent workers
The Company does not have workers
Petmanerit employees Yes - Any employee having issues with frelated to work may contact
senior managament freely.
| Other than permanent employess The Company does not have employees ather than Permanent Employees. |
v,
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7. Membership of amployvees and worker in association(s] or Unions recognizad by the listed antity :
Category FY2023-24 FY2022:23
Total No.of eimployeas | % |B/A) Total Mo, of employess | %0 [C)
employees { workers in employees i warkems in
werkezstn : L / ok B
wtagory part af category (€] e partof
(A - azsadation(s) or asragatian|slor
Lindon Union
] =)
Total =
Permangnt
Employess
Male 5 5
- Female - .
Total -
Parmanesnt
Workers
Male
Farmale Mot apphicable.
B. Detailsof training given to amployees and workers :
Category FY2023-24 FY2022-23
Total On huhh and On skill Tatal On health and “On skill
|A) | sefety mezsures upgradation [13]] safety measures upgradation
Number | %6 | Number | %iC Number | %[ | Number | %[
(8] {4 €l {4 ] {0| {F} {0}
Employess
Male 5 4 B 3 6% 4 B0
Female - i
Total Z - Z
Workers
Male
Female et applicable,
Total
v,
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9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employess and worker:
Category FY2023-24 FY2022-23
Total{A) Number(B) | %(8/4) Total(c) Number(D) rs[:m
Employess
hale 5 5 100% - =
Female - - 5 - - .
Total . ; s i .
Workers
Male
el N llcat
Total ot applicable

10. Health and safety management system :
@, Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/No).
Ifyes, the coverage such system?—

Ma, the nature of the operations af the Company da not invalve any critical occupational hezlth ang safaly risks,
b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on @ routing and non-routinebasis by the

entity?
Mot Applicable
€. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work-related hazards and fo remove themselves fromsuch rishs.
[¥/n)-
Mot applicable
d. Do the employees/ worker of the eatity have access to non-gccupational medical and healthcare servicesWYes/ Mo)-
Yes
11. Details of safaty refated incidents, in the following format:
Safety Incidant/Number [ Category | FY2023-24 FY202223
Lost Time Injury Frequancy Employees a =
Fate (LTIFR) (per one million-
petson hokirs wocked) Workers Not applicable Mot applicable
Total recordable work- Employees . .
refated injuries
Workers Mot applicable Mot applicable
K. of fatalties Employees -
Werkers Mot applicable Not applicable
High consegquence work- Employees &
related Injury or I-health
{excluding fatalities) Workers Mot applicable Mot applicable
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12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure o safz and healthy work place.

The Company provides a safe and healthy wark place to its employeas.

13. Mumber of Complaints on the following made by emplovees and workers:

Category

FY2023-24

FY2022-23

Filed during ~ Pending Remarks | Filed Pending | Remarks
the year resolution

attheend of
year

-during resolution
the year | attheendof
year

Warking Conditions

Health & Safaty

NIL

14, Assessments for the year :

Filed during the year

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity of
statutory suthorities or third parties)

Waorking Conditions

Health 2nd safety practices

100%
Lol

15 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents {if any) and on significant risks /
concerns arising from assessments of hezslth & safety practices and working conditions.

There were no safety related incidents or risks/concerns related to health and safety.

Lendership Indicators

1. Doesthe entity entend any Iife insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of |A) EmployeedY/N) (B)

Warlers (YN}
N

2. Providethe measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and depositedby the value

chaln partners.

The Company does not have value chain partners,

3. Provide the number of employees | workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury / ill-health
[ fatalities {as reported in Q11 of Essantial Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and placed Insuitable
employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment :

Category

Total no. of affected empioyeas/
workears

Ko. of employees/workers that are.
rehabilitated and placed In sultable
employment or whose famlly members have
besn placed in suitableemployment

Fraoz32e | Fr2omas

a2 | Fraomn

Employeas

Workers

MIL
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4. Doestheantity providetransition assistanceprogramstofacilitate continued employabilityand the managementof career
endings resulting from retirement ar termination of employment? (Yes/ No)

Yez

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chaln parthers [by value of business
denewlth such partners) that wars assessed
Health and safety practices Mot applicable.

Working Condltions Mot applicable.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chaln partners.

Nat, applicable.
PRINCIPLE 4: Businessas should recpact the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholdars
Essential Indicators

1. Daseribethe processes for idantifying key stakehalder groups of the entity,
The key stake — holder groups have been identified by the Company through materiality exercise.
2. LUststakeholder groups identified as key foryour entity and the frequency of engagementwith each stakeholdergroup.

| Stakahalder Group Whethar Channels af Fraquency of Purpase and scope af
ientified as ‘communicetion| Emad, engagement  {Annualiy/ engagement incuding
Wulnmrable & SMS, Newspaper, Hal¥ ymarly/ key topies and coneerms
Wiarginafized Pamphiets, Quarterhy/others—ease raised during such
“Group Advertizement, Epediity] angagement
(¥ez/Mo) Community Mestings,
Motice Board. Websita),
! Other
Ermplayees Mo Circulars / Meetings As Bowhen required -
Share- halders No Meeting Annual -
Cammunity Mo Meeting Annual -
around Co's
establishrient |

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social
topics of if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

The Company has always maintained that a constant and proactive engagement with key stakeholders enables the
Company to better communicate its strategies and performance. A continuous engagement helps align expectations,
thereby enabling the Company to better serve it5 stakehaolders. The Board Is provided with fesdback from consultation
from time to time by the senior management.

2. \Whether stakeholder consultation |5 used to support the identification and management of envirenmental, andsocial
toples [Yes / Mo, IF so, provide detalls of instances as to how the Inputs recefved from staleholders on thesetoples were
Incarporated inta policles and sctivities of the amtity,

Yes. The lssues pertalning to econamic, environmental and soclal toples have been identifled and incorporated.

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of wvulnerablef
marginalized stakeholder groups.

Mot Applicable

-
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PRINCIPLE 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Essential Indicators
1, Employess and workers who have baen provided tralning on human rights issues and poficyfias) of the antity, inthe
fallewe ing farmiat:
Category FY2023-24 Framas
Total Mo, of % [Bf A} Tatal Na.af ¥
fa) enmalayjess ich ‘emplayess (st}
{ workarscavered (8] | workess
i oenad (0}
Employees
P‘Eﬂ'!'q_anam_‘. -
| Other than permanent - -
Total Employaes = - =
Vitorkers
Permanent
Other than permanent Kot applicanie
| Totzl Workers
2. Detzilzof minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the folbowing forinat :
Category Fr2023-:4 Y 202223
Total “Exqual to Hare than Total “Equal o Mishnam|  Mare then
iA) | Mlinimim Wage Iinienum Wage o Uinge A Wage
Mumber Hi{p/ | Number i NumberlE] | S{E( | MNumberF] %R/
L G e o)
Employees
Permanent I i | | .
hiaie 5 Mot Applicable Yes 100%| 5 Hot Applicable Yes 1005
Femal= = : . = = E £
Orther than
Permansnt
hale kil
Female _?wlm =
Workers
Permanent
,'f'-_"!ﬂr'_E_ Mot applicable.
Female
Orther than
Mate Mot appliceble.
| Femzle
3. Detzils of remuneration/salzry/wages, in the following formaz :
Mala Famale
Nurmbser ‘Wedian remunerstion/ Number. Median remuneration
salary/ veages of respective stary/ wages of respective
cateary cEtEgany
Eoard of Directors (Bob) * [ A 2 M4
ey Managerial Peesonnal 2 2L73Lacs L4 L
Employess other than ol
and Kip 3 2225 Lacs 1] M
| Workers q b 1] MA
* Members of Board areentitled to fee for attanding meetings of Board and Committess thereof anly.
r
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4, Doyou have s focal peint (Individualf Commitbes] responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issuescaused
or contributed tobythe business? [Yes/No)
Na:
5. Describa the internal inechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights isues.
The Company is committed to maintaining a safe and harmonicus business enviconment and work péace for everyone
irrezpective of ethnicity, reglon, race, caste; gender, refigion, disability sexual orientation etc.
6. MWumber of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers :
FY 2023-24 FY 202223
Fledduring | Pending | Remarks | Filedduring  Pending  |Remarks
the yaar rezolution at thiyear resalutionat
theend afyear tha endat
e
Sexual Harassmant
Disertmination atworkplace
ChildLzbour kit
Forced Labour, Insoluntary Labour
Wages R ;
| Dther HumanRights relatedissues
7. Mechanisms bo prevent adversa consequances to the complainant in discrimination and harassment casas.
The Company has @ Whistie Blower Folicy to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and
harassment casas.
B. Do human rights requirements ferm part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)
Mo.
9.  Assessments for tha year:
5 of wour plants and officas that were sssessed [by entityor statutory
authorities or thied partias]
Child lahour
Forcedfinvoluntary lsbour
Semual harassment
Discrimination at warkplace C.00%
Wages
| Others—please specify
10, Provide details of any correctove actions taken or underway to address significant risks | concerns arising fromthe
assessments at Question 9 above,
Nit applicable
Leadership Indlcators
1. Detalls of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievancas/
eomplaints.
Mane, due to MIL grieance,
2. Detailsofthescope and coverage of any Human rights due diligence condocted.
Mone,
3. [z the premize/office of the anfity accessible to differently abled wisitors, & par the requirements of tha Rights ofPersons with
Disabilities Act, 20167
Yes
v,
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4. Details on assessment of value dhein partners :
% of your plants and offices that were assessad [hy entity
or statutory suthorities or thid parthes)
Sexual Harassment
Discrimination at wariplace
Child Labour :
Forced Labour/ Involuntary tabour | Notapplicable
Wages
| Others—please specify
5. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address slgnificant rishs [/ concerns arlsing fromthe
assessments at Question 4 above,
None.
PRINCIPLE & Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environmentEssential Indicators
1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and enargy intensity, in the following format:
Parameter FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Total electricity consumption (4} Negligible Megligible
Total fuel consumption (B) I Nat applicable Mot applicable
Energy consumption thraugh other sources (C) Mot applicable Mot applicable
Total Energy Consumed (A48+C) Weatlalble Megllgible
2, Does the entity have any sites [ facilities identified as designated consumears (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve
and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of india? (¥/M) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have
baen achieved. [n case targets have not been achleved, provide the remedial action taken, fany:
Mot appticable,
3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to wates, in the following format:
The Company's usags af water & prirmarily restricted to employees’ consumption purpozes.
4, Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liguid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and
implemantation:
Mot Applicable.
5. Please provide detalls of alr emissions (other than GHG emisslons] by the entlty, In the fallowlng format :
Parameter Please specify unit FY2023-24 FY 202223
MO
S0x
Particulate matter [FM) .
Persistent organic The Company [ a non-banking finsncial co. and its direct emissions
pollutants (POF) are very much limited.
Volatile organic compounds (VOC)
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)
Others - please specify
v,
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6. Provide details of gresnhouse gas emistions [Scope 1 and Scope 2 amissions) & its intensity, in the followingformat :
 Param “Unit Fr2073- 24 wHn |
Tatal Scope 1 emissions [Break- up of the GHG Into 002, CHA, N20 HFCs, PRCS, NIL None |
5F6, NES, if available;
Tatal Stope 2 emesions (Break- up of the GHG inte COT, CH, NED HFCS, FFCS, HIL Mo
ﬂﬂflfﬂa”iﬂﬂ}
Total Scope 1 and Scope I emissions perrupee of twrmover Negliginle Neglgible
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intansity [oations]|
=tha relewant matric may basedacted by tha entty
7. Doas the entity have any profact related to reduding Gresn House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details ;
Ma
8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format :
Parameter | FY 200324 | P 202223
Il Total Waste generated [In melric tonnes)
Plastcwaste(d) Negliglble feegligible
Ewaste (B} Negligiole Negliglble
Hig-medical waste [C) Met agplicabie flot applicable
Construction and cemaolition waste (0} Mot apalicabie Mot applicable
Battery waste (E] Mot applicable Mot applicable
Radiogctve waste (F) Mok applicablie Mot applicable
Oither Hazardous waste, Fleasa specify, ifany. (G) Not apglicable Not appiicale
Other Mon-hazardous waste penerzted [H),
Ploaze spacify, if any.
|Break-up by compasihion e, by materials iot: apriicable Net apRicacie
relevant to the seetar]
Tl [Ar8 +C+ D3 E+F4 G5 M) Megligible | Megliziole
Parameter | FY 200324 | P 02223
For each category of waste gensrated, total waste recoversd through recycling, re-using ar other recoveryoperations |in metrle
tonnes)
Category of waste
{i) Recycied hot avallanle Mot ayzilable
fii] Re-used Mot avalianle Mo available
[iii] Other recovery operstions Mot available Mot ayeilable
Totnl Hat availasle Mot available
For each category of waste senerated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method {in metric tonnes)
Category of waste
{i1 Incineration Mot apalicabie Mot appiicable
fii} Landfilfing Mot applicable ot spplicable
[iiil Otherdisposz| operations Mot applicabie Mot apolicanie
Total Mot applicable hot apalicable
v,
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9. Briefly describethe waste managerment practices sdopted in your estabBshmeants. Describe the strategy sdoptedby your company to
reduce uzage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your preducts and processes and the practices adopted to manage such
wWostes |

Mot applicable.

10, If the entity has operations/offices infaround ecologically sensitive areas (such az national parks, wildlife sanctuaries,
biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity holspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental
approvals [ dearances are required, please specity detads in the following format :

g, Location of Type of IWhather the conditions of snvironmental approval
No, operations/ operations [ clearance are being complied with? (YN} If ng, thereasons
officas thereaf and corractive action taken, if any.
Mot applicable.

11. Detalls of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, inthe
current financial year :

Nameand brief ~ EIA Date | Whether conductedby Results | Relevant
detallsofproject | Notification Independent external | communicatedin | Weblink
No, agancy [Yes [ Mo public domain
s f K]
Mot applicablo.

12, Is the entity compliant with the applicabie environmental law) regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water Prevention and
Control of Pollution) Act, Alr [Prevention and Control of Poflution) Act, Environment protectionact and rubes theraunder [Y/N), If
not, provide detmits of @l such non-compliances,; in the fallowing format :

Mot applicable,

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiptes) from renewable z2nd non-renewzble

sources, inthe following format :
Parameter FY 2023-24 | FY 202223
Total electricty consumption (A) Negligible Negligible
Total fuel consumption () Mot applicahle Mot applicable
Energy consumgation through other sources(c) Nat applicasie Mot applicabe
Total Energy Consumed |A=B+C) Megliginla Negligible

2. Provide the fallowing detaite relabed to water discharped:
Mot applicable,
3. Waker withdraiwal, consumption and discharge in ereas of water stress (in kilofitres)
For each facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the fallowing information:
fil  Warme of the ares
(1) Nature of operations
(] Waterwithdrawal, consumption and discharge

Notapplicatde,
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4. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameater Unit F¥ 2023- 24 F¥ 2022-23 ]
Total Scope 3 emissions {Break-up of the GHG into COZ,
CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, Mot spplicable Mot applicatla

SF6, NF3, If avallable)
Total 5cope 3 emissionsper rupee of turnover

| Neglighhle Not avallable

Total Scope 2 emission Intensity (optional) — therelevant,
| mefric may be sefected by the entity |_

5. With raspect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Eszential Indicators above, providedetalls of
significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-with preventionand remediation
activithes :

Mot appiicabie,
6. If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve resource

efficlancy, of reduce impact due (o emissions | effluent dischargs / waste generated, please providedatails of the zame
as well as outcomae of such initiatives, as per the following format :

5.No. Initiative undertaken| Detalls of the Initiative (Web-link, if Outcome of the
any, may be providedalong-with initiative
summary)
1 Not applicable Mot apalicable
{ vane ]

7. Doesthe entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan?

Yes

B. Disclose zny significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity. What
mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard :

Mo such Impact as the entlty has no value chain.

9. Percentage of value chain partners (by vslue of business done with such partners} that were sssessed for
environmental impacts :

Not applicable,
PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner thotis
responsibleand transparent
Essential Indicators
1. a  Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of suchbody)the
entity isa memberof/ affiliated to.

5. No. MName of the trade and industry Reach of trade and industry chambers/assaciations
chainbers/associations {5tate/National]
MIL

2. Provide detalls of corrective action takan or underway on any lssues related to antl- competitive conduct by theentity,
based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

| NameofAuthority | BriefofCase | Comectiveadtiontaken |
Mot Applicable |
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Leadership Indicators
1. Detallsof public policy pesitions sdvocated by the enthy:

PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promobe inclusive growth and equitable developmant
Essential Indicators

1.

Leadership Indicators

i

3.

-,

Mot applicable

Details of Social impact Assesemaonts {S1A) of projects undertaken by the entity based on-applicable faws, in thecarrent
financial year:

Hemeand brisffetals | 510 notification Date of ‘Whether canducted Results Ralewans web
of the project Mo notification by sneternal agency | communicated on lirike:
(¥esNa) the public demain
{Yes{Naj
Mot applicable.

Provide information on project(s] for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlmnent (R&ER) is baing undertakenby your
entity, inthe following format:

Narm of the State District | No.ef project affected | % PAFscoveredhy | Ameunt paid tothe
peoject for which families(PAFs) &R PAESin FY {In s}
RER Bongoing

Mot applicable

Describe the mechanisms to recelve and redress grievances of the commuenliy:
The Company 15 committed tocontributing to the empowsrment of instiutions which serve the conemunty,
Parcentage of Input material {inputs to total inputs by valug) sourced rom suppliers ;

Fraomsz4 | FY 202223 ]
Directly sourced from MSRMEsS small
producers I
B A -y Nﬂt Eﬂht.
Soarcad directly fram within the district e
| and meighiouring districts

Provide details of actions taken to mitigete any negative social impacts identified in the Sccial Impect Assessments
[Reference: Question 1of Essentlal Indicators above):

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action tsken

Yot 3ppRcoole

Provide the following information on C5R projects undertaken by yourentity in designated aspirational districtsas
identified by government bodies:

State Aspirational District Amount Spent (Rs in lacs)

Mot Applicable | Nat Applica bla MIL

{a} Do you have a preferential procurament policy where you give praference to purchase from seppliers
comprlsingmarginalized fvulnerable groups? (Yes/MNa):

Ko
(b) From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?
Mot-applicable.
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-
{c) What percentage of total procurement (by walue) does it constitute?
Mot applicable.
4, Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity [inthe
currentfinancial year), based on traditional knowledge :
5. Mo Intellectual Property | Dwnod/ Acquired | Benefit shared  Basis of calculating
based an traditional (Yes/Mo) [Yes No} behafit share
knowledga
Mot applicable
5. Detgils of corrective actions teken or undenway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related
disputes wherain usage of traditional knowledgeisinvolved :
Name of authority Brief of the caze Corractive action taken
MNone.
6. Detalls of benefidories of C5R Projects :
ENo Beneficiary Project Mo of petsons % af beneficlaries from vubnerable and
Mame benefitted fromcsi marginalized groups
Projocts
'le Applicable this . F
nancial year
PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to thelr consumers In a responsible manner
Essential Indicators
1. Describethe mechanizmsin place to recalve and respond to consumer complaints and feadback.
The Company does not have 8 customer interface as it is not involved in consumer product sale f distribution.
2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry informationabout :
| As a percentage aftotal turnover |
Emvironmental and sodal parameters relevant to
the product Mot spplicable.
Safe and respansible usage 4 |
Recyeling andfor safe disposal
3. Mumberof consumer complalnts in respect of the fallowing:
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Recanved Pending R Recsned Pending A )
| pthe | resalution atend ks during the | resclution atend L
year of ysar year of yaar
Data privacy
Adveriising
Cyber-smcurity
Dralivery of essential
services | HMIL
Restrictive Trade
Practices !
UnfairTrade Practices |
Cther
v,

60



N.B.L Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596

-
4, Details of Instances of product recalls on account of safety issues

| Number | fleasons for recall |

| vieluntary recalls

Mot agplicable, |
| Foreed recalls

5. Doesthe sntity have a framewark) policy on cyber security end risics relted to deta privacy? (Yes/Mo) If svzilable provide a
wab-link of the policy.

Yes. It is not hosted on the wabsite of the Company.

6. Provide details of any corractive actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising. and defivery of essantial
services; cyber securlty and data privacy of customers; re-eccurrence of instances of product recalls;penalty [ actlan
takan by regulatory authoritias on safety of products / senvices.

Mot applicable
Leadership Indicatars

1. Channels / platforms where information on products and senvices of the entity can be accessed (provide weblink, i
availabla).

The Company is an Imvestment company and does not deal in any consumer products,

2. Steps takan to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usaze of products andfor sarvices,

Mot applicable.

3. MWechanisms In place to Infarm consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services

Mot applicable,

4. Doss the entity display product information on the produtt aver and above what is mondated s per local laws?
{¥es/No/Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction

relating to the major products [ serubces of the entity, significant locathans of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole?
{Yes/No)

Mot applicable.
5. Provide the following information relating to data breaches:
a} Murber of instences of data breaches along-with lmpact.
ML
b) Percentege of data breaches immlving persanally identifia ble information of customers,

ML,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("Company”) is pleased to present the
Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 317 March, 2024. This Report
includes a review of how corporate governance acts as the foundation for our corporate activity
and is embedded in our business and the decisions we make. Corporate governance is all about
promoting fairness, transparency, accountability, commitment to values, ethical business
conduct and about considering all stakeholders' interests while conducting business. It Is
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), and
amendments thereto, It contains the Corporate Governance policies and practices of N.B.I
Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

(A} COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE

As a good corporate citizen, the Company Is committed to sound corporate practices based on
conscience, openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its
various stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for its long-term success. We believe that
carporate governance is 2 continuous journey towards sustainable value creation for all the
stakeholders, which is driven by our values and built on the foundation of Assurance. Our
Corporate Governance principles are a reflection of our culture, our policies, our relationship
with stakeholders and our commitment to values and built on the fuundation of assuranca, The
Board of Directors ("Board") helps to ensure that we have appropriate governancein place, both
to support our operations and protect our Members' interest. It encompasses a set of systems
and practices to ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed in a manner which
ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. We
believe, Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a jourhey to constantly improve
sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively strive to achieve.
The requirements under the Listing Regulations mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”) have been fully complied with. We are committed to meet the aspirations of all
our stakeholders. The Company is fully committed to the principles of transparency, integrity
and accountability in all spheres of its operations and has been practicing the principles of good
carporate governance aver the years. In Keeping with this commitment, the Company has been
upholding fair and ethical business and corporate practices and transparency in its dealings and
continuously endeavors to review, strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedures so as to
bring in transparency and efficiency in its business.

(B) Board of Directors

Keeping with the commitment to the principles of Integrity and transparency in business
operations for good corporate governance, the Company's policy 1sto have an appropriate blend
of independent and non-independent directors ta maintain the independence of the Board and
to separate the Board functions of governance and management. We belisve that an
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enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and
policy approach to improve the quality of governance. The Board's actions and decisions are
aligned with the Company's best interests, The members of the Board of the Company are
eminent personalities from various fields. The Board is entrusted with the ultimate
responsibility of the management, direction and performance of the Company, The Board is
cammitted to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company's value creation. As its primary role
is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and
independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities, thus
ensuring that the management adheras to ethics, transparency and disclosures. None of the
directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board / Committee meetings.

Composition

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 and Regulation 174 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with 5ection149 of the Companies Act, 2013, In terms of the provisions
of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulatiens, the Directors of the Company submit necessary
disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board and/ or the Committees of other
companies with changes therein, if any, on @ periodical basis. The Board comprises of
Independent and Mon- Independent Directars. The directors are persons of eminence in areas
such as profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration, social work etc. and bring
with them experience/skills which add value to the performance of the Board. The directors are
selected purely on the basis of merit with no discrimination en race, colour, religion, gender or
nationality. The present composition broadly meets this objective. The strength of the Board as
on 31" March, 2024 was eight (8) members all of whom are Non- Executive Directors. Out of
them four (4) are Independent Directors (including one-woman independent director) and four
{4) are Non- Independent Directors (including one Woman Director). Shri Ashok Bhandari, Non -
Executive Non Independent Director, [s the Chairman of the Board.

All Independent Directors make annual disclosure of their Independence to the Company. The
Independent Directors on the Board are competent and respected professionals from their
respective fields and have vast experience in general corporate management, finance,
investment and other allied fields which enable them to cantribute effectively to the Company.
The day to day management of the Company is conducted by the Manager subject to the
supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors. The Independent Directors have
made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial and/or
commercial transactions between them and their relatives and the company which could have
potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion of the Board, the
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and the
Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.

~
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Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors:
Five Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates:
sk . ) Mo. of Directors
Mo, Mﬂw Meeting od
1_ | 247 May, 2023 3
2| 9" June, 2023 b
3 11 Aug ust, 2023 B
% 2™ February, 2024 7
Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships
Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attendance at Board Meetings and at the
previous Annual General Meeting, nurmber of other Directorships and Board-Committee
memberships held as on 31"March, 2024, are given below:
5| | Name of the | Category No.of | Attanded |  No.of  Number of other Board
Mo R Somd | fem other  Commirtee positions
Meetings AGM Directarship i (@ e
: attended | i*) | As s
1 | Ashok Bhandari® | MNon-Execulive 4 | Yes 7 | 1 [
2 | Bl Gaggar | Mon-Fxecutive | 5 | Yes 3 F - 1
3 ¢ Fiya Puja Jain | Mon-Emecutive 2 | Mg 0 : - -
4 | LP. Mundrs | Mon-Executive. 5 | Yes 5 | A 1
5 | T.K Bhattacharya | Indepsndent 5 | ¥es 1 | 5 2
6 | DebasishRay | Independent | 5 Yes . | —
¥ Priyanka Mohta Independent 4 Yes 2 i - -
& | Sundeep Bhutoria Independant 1 Yes 3 - 1
% Resigned from the Board as an Independent Director on 04.09.2023 and was appointed as a
Maon- Executive Director we f. 20.10.2023
Notes:
(*)  Includes directorships held in public limited Companies anly.
(Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registerad under
Section Bofthe Companies Act, 2013 are excluded)
(@) includes enly positions held in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the
Board of Directors as per Regulation 26 ofthe Listing Regulations,
J
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Other details of directors are given below:-

& | Mame of the Director | DIN Remuneration Mo of
Ne. | Birector | Since | Ssiary & other | Siting  Commission | areshe
fee BTN
Imtruments
. hold In the |
O (I S| (U | I N (ALl DU [N S
1 Ashok 20-10-3023 Doo12210 MIL 40, a00n MIL il
Bhandar| |
| 2 | BL Gaggar 001200 00404123 MIL 53,000 MIL il [
3 Riya Puja 14-11-2014 01558454 NIL 10,000 MIL il [
Jain |
4 | LP Mundra 22-09-2012 00630475 MIL 57,000 MIL Hil [
5 | TK 29-06-2023 00711665 HIL £5,000 MIL il
Bhattachary |
d
& | Dabasish 27-04-2019 083BTGAT ML 61,000 MIL Mil |
Ry |
7 Privanka 29-08-2020 DBas3E1s MIL 20,000 MNIL Wil |
Mohta
B | Sundeep 21-08-2022 DOTI3E00 NIL 5,040 MNIL Hil
Bhuroria !

Change in composition of the Board during the Current and previous financial year:-

S Mameolthe  Capadty ‘Nature of Change Effective date
i || Dkt {6, Exocubinn | Mow-iocilivt rEslstion vt}
1 | Ashok Bhandasi Non- Executive Independent Aesignation D4-09-7023
Director
2 | T.K Bhartacharya Non- Executhve Independent Re- appolntment 28-06-2023
B A A - - S S S
3 Azhok Bhandari Mon- Executive Director Appointment 20-10-2023

Mone of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than
twenty companies at the same time. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in
more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of
private companies that are either holding or subsidiary companies of a public company are
included; while directorships in dormant companies are excluded. For the purpose of reckening
the diractorshipsin listed companies, only equity listed companies have been considered.

As per declarations received, no director serves as an independent director in more than seven
equity listed companies or in more than three equity listed companies if he/she is a whole-time
director/managing director in any listed company.

None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees, nor a chairperson in more
than five committees across all public companies in which he/she was a director.
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Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as highlighted herein, the attendance record and
participation of the directors in Board/Committee meetings indicates their commitment and

ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities as Board /Committee members.

Web link for Familiarisation Program for |ndependent Directors is http://www.nbi-

india.co.in/policies/NBI_Familiarisation_Program.pdf

Names of the other listed entities where the director is a director alongwith category of

directorship:
SI | Name of the Name of the Listed Entities Category of Directorship
No. | Director

1 Ashok Bhandari

1) Maharashtra Seamless Ltd
2} 1. G. Chemicals Ltd
3) Rupa& Co. Ltd.

1)independent Director
2)independent Director
3)independent Director

4) Skipper Ltd. 4)independent Director
5) IFB Industries Ltd. 5)independent Director
2 Riya Puja Jain MIL NIL
3 | B.L Gaggar NIL NIL
-1 1L.P. Mundra Western India Commercial Co. Non-Executive Non-
Ltd. Independent Director
5 T.K. Bhattacharya Western India Commercial Co. Mon-Executive-
Ltd. Independent Director
6 | Debasish Ray NIL NIL
7 Privanka Mohta NIL NIL
B Sundeep Bhutoria Petronet LNG Ltd Independent Director

None of the Non-executive Directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the

Company.

None of the directors of the Company are related (nter-se

SkillsfExpertise/Competencies of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the
below mentioned skills / expertise / competencies in the context of the business and the sector

in which the Company is operating, for the Company tofunction effectively:
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Financial, Regulatory /

Legal &
Risk Management

Leacerzhip of a financial firm or management of the finance function
of an enterprise, resulting In proficiency in financial management,
capital allocation and financial reporting process or experience In
actively supervizing various functions

Strategy and strategic
planming

Abiliey to think strategically, identify and assess  strategic
opportunities & threats and contribute towards developing effective
strategies nthe context of the strategic objectives of the Company’s
policies & priorities.

Business Exposure

Expenence in driving business success with an understanding of
diverse business enwvironments, econaomic conditions, culture,
regulatory framework and a broad perspective on market
opportunities including exposure in the secondary markat.

Leadership

Extended leadership experlence for a significant enterprise, resulting
in practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic
planning and risk  menagement, Demonstrated  strengths in
developing talent, planning successions and driving changs and long-
term growth

Mergers and Acquisitions

A history of leading growth through acguisitions and other busingss
combinations with the ability to assess ‘bulld or buy’ decisions.

Corporate Governance

Service on a public company board fo develop Insights about
maintaining board and management accountability, protecting
shareholder Interests and ohserving appropriste governance
practices

The above skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually available

with the Board as under:-

Diractor Reguiatory | and Exposuri ' Acquisitions | Gowarnance
legal & | strategic
Risk planning
Mana "

Azhok Bhandari iy o o+ o < ,_.r
Riya Puja Jain 7 v <
AL Gaggar ol o o o ol
LP. Mundra o o 4 o o
T.E.
Shattacharya v/ v v
Debasish Ray o o o o
Sundeep
Ahotoria o o o o
Priyanka Maohta I o o

Independent Directors

Eminent people having an independent standing in their respective profession, and who can
effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions are considered by the
MNomination and Remuneration Committee (MRC) of the Company, for appointment as
Independent Director on the Board. The MRC, inter alla, considers gualifications, positive

attributes, experience, area of expertise, duties as Directors or Committee members,

~
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Maximum tenure of Independent Directors

In terms of the Act, independent directors shall hold office for a term of up to five consecutive
years on the Board of a company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment for a second term of
upto five years on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such
appointment In the Board's repart. The tenure of the independent directors is in accordance
with the provisions of the Act. Shri Debasish Ray has been re- appointed by the Board for a
second term of five years during the year.

Farmal letter of appointment to independent directors

The Company issues a formal |etter of appointment/re-appointment to independent directors in
the manner provided in the Act. As per regulation 46(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the terms
and conditions of appeintment/ re-appointment of independent directors are placed on the
Company's website.

Other Directorships

MNone of the Directors is a director in more than 10 public limited companies or acts as an
independent director in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Directors acts as a
member of more than 10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than 5 committees across all
publiclimited companies inwhich he/she is a director.

Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and the Code (the Code) is
applicable tothe Directors and employees. The Code gives the guidance and support needed for
ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the core values of the
Company viz. Ownership Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. All the directors
including Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code
of Conduct as on March 31, 2024, A declaration to this effect, signed by the Manager and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), annexed hereto forms part of this report. The code is available on the
official website of the company: www.nbi-india.co.in

(C) Committees of the Board

Details of the various Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31° March,
2024 are as under. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its charter, which defines the scope,
powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the
Committees are placed before the Board for information or approval. During the financial year
2025-24, the Board constituted certain Committees as required by the Reserve Bank of India's
directives, namely Assets Liability Supervisory Committee, Investment/Credit Committee and
Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee.

~
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The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors:

1) Audit Committes,

2) Nominationand Remunearation Committee,
3) StakeholdersRelationship Committee,

4) Risk Management Committee,

5) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee,
B) Assets Liability Supervisory Committee,

7)  Investment/Credit Committee and

8) Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18

of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee as on 31%

March, 2024 comprises of two Independent Directors and one Mon-Independent director. All

members of the Audit Commiftee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial

management expertise. The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of

Directors (the "Board") of N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited, (the "Company") in

fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Cormpany, including the integrity
of the audited financial results and other financial information provided by the Company
toits stalkeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the Company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,

c) the Company'sindependent auditors' qualification and independence,

d) the audit of the Company’s financial statements, and the performance of the Company's
internal audit function and its Independent Auditors,

Constitution of the Audit Committee

The Composition of the Committee, togetherwith the details of the attendance of each member

during the year 2023-24 is given below:

'8 | Nameof Memberof  Designation |  Capadty Number of No. of
| No | Director Committes e, Executive / Meetings of the | shares
‘ ginoe Mon-axecutive ste) Committes held in
: Held = Attended |  the
e e e W1 [Pt iy FE e e i | Py Co |
1| T | 30-huen-2018 Chalrmen Momn- Executles 5 5 Ml

| RRattacharya | | Indegenden Dimctor :
| 2 | Debasish Ray | 27-Aor-2019 Member Mon- Cxecuthve 5 5 il
{ | i Inclependen: Divectar i
| 3 | LP.Mundra | 04-Feb-2015 Wember Har-Exerutive Norn- 5 5 Hil
i | | independent Litector !
[ Ashok L 29-Aup-2020 It earibeer = Mor- Exesutive 3 1 3 il

: Bhamdarl resiEned Inclependen: Diector

| wel

04-00-2023
\, J
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Terms of Reference:

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committes covers areas mentioned under Part C of
Schedule Il [See Regulation 18(3)] of the Listing Regulations and section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the Members of
the Audit Committee are gualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial
statermnents. The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are outiined here under:

. Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal control
systems and the disclosure of its financial information;

. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:-

a. matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement of the Board's
Report in terms of clause {c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013;

b, changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report.

. Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus /
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the
board to take up steps inthe matter;

. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

* Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;

* Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and
effectivenessof audit process,
= Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and

scope of audit as well as pest-audit discussionto ascertain any area of concern;

# Approval {including omnibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transactions
with related parties;

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of internal audit
reports;

- Reviewing the findings of any observations by the internal auditors into matters where
there Is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material
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nature and reporting the matterto the Board,

Evaluation of internal financial controls;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adeguacy of the internal control system;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the gualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances / investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary company(ies) exceeding Rs, 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments;
Management discussion and analysis of finandal condition and results of operations;
Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor;
Discussion with internal auditors onany significant findings and follow up thereon;

To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanism;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Reviewing valuation of undertakings orassets of the company, wherever necessary,
Staternent of deviations:

(&) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, wherever
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

{b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offer
document / praspectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever applicable.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committee or as may be referred/assigned by the Board.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 on the following

dates:

oSS I S

24" May, 2023

9" June, 2023

11" August, 2023

20" October, 2023
2"February, 2024

-,
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2.

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

{e)

(f)

(e)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Momination and Remuneration Commitiee (NRC) of the Board is constituted In
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. The committee formulates the criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes and independence of a directar and recommends to
the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel. The Committee reviews and recommends payment of annual salaries,
commission and other conditions of appointment of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel. The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based
on review of performance / achievements on a periodical basis. No Stock option has
been granted to any of the Directors during the financial year 2023-24. The
remuneration policy forms part of the Directors' Report. The Company doesn't have any
pecuniary relationship or transaction with any of the non-executive directors, None of
the Directors have been given any remuneration during the financial year under review
except Meeting Fees.

The brief terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining gualifications,
positive attributes/experience for appointment and independence of a director;

To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and to ensure compliance with the
remuneration policy set forth by the Company;

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the
board for their appointment and/or removal;

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and of
the board of directors asawhole;

To extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
ofthe report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

To report on the systems and on the amount of the annual remuneration, in whatever
form, of directors and key managerial/senior management personnel to the Board.

To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance
ofits duties.

~




N.B.L Industrial Fingnce Co. Lid.
89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596

-

Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member
atthe meetings during the financial year 2023-24 s given below:

&l | Mame of Memberof | Designation Capacity Mumber of Mo.of |
Mo | Director - Committes {i.e., Executive / estings of the | shares |
Held | Attended | the |

1 | T.K I-lun-2018 Chalrman Non- Executive 2 2 Nl
Bhattacharya Independent |
Director |

2 | Ashok 29-Aug-2020 Member- Mon- Executive 2 1 Mil |
Bhandarl resigned Independent {

w.e Director

04-009-2023 |

3 | Debasish Ray | 27-Apr-2019 Member M- Execiitive 2 2 Mil
Intependent

e L Dieetor  rere e e ]
4 | B.L Gaggar 14-Mov-2018 Member Man-Exscutive Non- p 2 Nil |
Independent |

Dlrectar {

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Two NRC Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates:

v 23"May, 2023
v 19" October, 2023

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
. Attendance at Beard or Commitiee meetings.

Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.

Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Company.

* Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board/ Committes
meetings.

Details of meeting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31" March, 2024:

Ashok Bhandari MWon- Executive Non-indegendent Diractor 40,000
E.L Gaggar | Mon- Executive Non-Independent Director 53,000
Riya Puja lain | Non- Executive Non-independent Director 10,000
1P Mundra | Non- Executive Non-ndependent Director 57,000
T.E. Bhattacharya Mon- Executive -independentDirector 65,000
Oebasish Hay | Non- Executive -IndependentDirector 61,000
Sundeep Bhutoria | Mon- Executive dndependent Director 5,000
Privanka Mahta Mon- Executive Andependent Director 20,000
Total 3,11,000

T
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3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Board is in line with
the prescribed provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
The Committee inter alia approves transposition & transmission of shares, Issue of duplicate/re-
materialized shares and consolidation & splitting of certificates, review measures taken for
effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review the adherence to the service
standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of complaints from investors including inter-alia non-
receipt of annual repoits and non-receipt of declared dividends etc,

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Compaosition of the Committee during the year 2023-24 is given below:

5| | Name of Memberof | Designation Capacity Mumberof | Ne.of
No | Director Committee (Le, Executive/ | Meetingsofthe | shares
since Nonexscutiveete) | Committee | heldin
: Held | Attended
1 | B L Gaggar M4-Feb-2015 Chairman Mon-Executive Non- ? ? il
Independent
Director
2 | TK 14-Aug-2019 Member MNon- Executlve Fl 2 Wil
Bhattacherya Independent
Director
3 | LP.Mundra 14-Nov-2018 Member Man-Executive Mon- Z 2 il
independent
| | Diractor : ' !

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Two Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-
24 on-

1) 7" August, 2023
2) 1"February, 2024

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor
grievances is provided here under:

Name iAshishfedia
Address ! 21, Steand Road, Kolkata- 700 001 [West Bengal],
Telephone No 033 2230 7905

E-mail | bifinance @ymail.com

Detalls of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer

The grievances received were resolved during the financial year and all the gueries from the
stakeholders were attended promptly except in cases of deficiency in documents. Further there
were no pending transmission/transpositions as atthe end of the year.
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4, Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted in line with Regulation 21 of the Listing
Regulations, The Company has come within the top 1000 listed entities by market capitalization
as on 31% March, 2021 and the requirement to comply with Regulation 21 of the Listing
Regulations has become mandatory.

Constitution of the Risk Management Committee
The Compaosition of the Committee during the year 2023-24 |s given below:

&l | Nemeof | Memberof | Designation Capacity ~ Numberof | Mo.of
| Mo | Director | Committes [le., Exacutiva/ | Meetings ofthe | shares
i since } Mon-sxecutive Committes held in
et} Held | Attended | the
i . . . . Co.
1 | Ashok 14-Aug-2021 Chalrman — Mon- Cxecutive | 1 il
| Bhandarl resigned w.e.f Independent |
g 04092023 Director
7 | Debasish Ray | 70-0ct-2073 Chairman Mon- Executive r 1 il
| wef. Independent |
; 20.10,2023 Director {
3 B. L Gaggar 14-Aug-2021 Member Non-Executive 2] z Ml
| MNon-Independent |
COR] S RUPNEIN | STy (A - YR OO S A
|4 | 5P Kursar 14-Ausg- 2021 Membier Manager & CFO 2 2 Ml

The primary role and respansibility of the Risk Management Committes is:

.  Toformulate risk management policy which shall include:

e Aframework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by
listed entity, in particularincluding financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other
risk as may be determined by the Committee.

=  Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal
control of identified risks.

» Businesscontinuity plan.

ii. Toreviewthatappropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management pollcy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems and processes;

iv. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including
by considering the changing industry dynamics and evelving complexity;

v. Tokeepthe board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discusslons,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

vi. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer [if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee; and

[
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vii. Such other aspects as the Board may consider appropriate and require from the
Committee from time totime.

wviii. The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees,
in instances where there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the
framework laid down by the board of directors,

Terms of Reference:

The briefterms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are outlined here under:
-review of strategic risks arising out of adverse business decisions and lack of responsiveness to
changes;
- review of operational risks;
-review of financial and reporting risks:
-review of compliance risks;
- review or discuss the Company's risk philosophy and the quantum of risk, on a broad
level that the Company, as an arganization, is willing to accept in pursuit of stakeholder
value;
- inquiring about existing risk management processes and review the effectiveness of
those processes in identifying, assessing and managing the Company's most significant
enterprise-wide risk exposures;

-review periodically key riskindicators and management response thereto,

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board for
formulating and overseeing the execution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Committee comprises of two
independent directors and two non-executive directors. The details of the members of the CSR
Committee and theirattendance at the meeting during the year 2023-24 is given below:

~




N.B.IL Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596
~
S | Nameof Memberaf | Designatian  Capacity Number of Na. af
Ne | Direster Committes (Le., Executive /Non- |  Meetings of the shares
since executiveetc) | Committee | held in
: Haid Attondod the
1 I T.E 14-Aug-2018 Chalrman Non- Executive 1 1 Hil
Bhattacharya Independent
b4 Dlreeter
2 | B. L Gaggar 29-Apr-2017 fember Man-Executive Non- 1 1 Ml
Independent
Directar
3 | LR Mundra I9-Apr-2017 Member Mon-Executive Naon- : & 1 Ml
Independant
i . Director 1.
4 | Debasish Ray | 27-Apr-2019 Member Mo Executive 1 1 il
independant
Diractor

The Annual Report on CSR Activities as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year
ended 31" March, 2024 is attached to the Board's Report.

Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committes

One CSR Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2023-24 on 28" February, 2024,

6. AssetsLiability Supervisory Committee

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, an Asset Liability Supervisory
Committee of the Board has been constituted for implementation of the Assat Liability
Management system and to review its functions periodically. As on 31st March, 2024, the
Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Bhandari, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, Mr.
B. L Gaggarand Mr. J. F. Mundra as members. Details of their attendance at the meatings of
the Committee during the year 2023-24 are as follows:-

| 8l | Nameof Member of Designation Capacity Numberof | No.of
Mo | Dirochor Committes | (Le., Executive [ Non- Msatings ofthe  shares
i sinog oxgoutive oto) Committes | held
Held | Attended inthe
: : 1o
1 | Ashok 12-Aug-2022 Chairman Mo Executive 2 2 oM
Bhandari resigned w.e.f | Independent Director
e I | 08092023 | SR S SR S
Z | Ashok F0-0ct-2023 Chaimman- Mon-Executive Mon- a ) Hil
Bhandari w.e f Independent Director
20-10-7023
3 | B. L Gaggar 12-Aug-2022 Member Man-Executive Non- .3 4 mil
— - S Independent Director . . BV N
4 | LP. Mundra 12-Aug-2022 Member MWon-Executive Non- 4 4 Mil
SETTIN [ SSSEIINES, SSESSRINIRNS RSN PR | 1l |- - ,-1;. 17| v | A ISNNREIURE| [N

The primary role and responsibility of the Committee is:

s  Understanding business reguirement and devising appropriate pricing strategiss
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* Management of profitability by maintaining relevant Net interest margins (NIM)
Ensuring Liguidity through maturity matching.

s Management of balance sheet in accordance with intermnal policies and applicable
regulatory requirements.

e Ensuring efficientimplementation of balance sheet management policies.

» Review reports on liguidity, market risk and capital managemeant.

s To identify balance sheet management issues that are leading to under-performance
and ensure corrective action.

» Ensuring appropriate mix of different forms of debt i.e., Bank Loans, Commercial Paper,
MNon-Convertible Debentures, etc.

s Giving directions to the ALM team on the interest rate risk.

s ALCO delegates the daily management of liquidity risk and interest rate risk to ALM
team.

» Approving major decisions affecting NBI's risk profile or exposure (product pricing for
advances, desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental assets and liabilities,
prevailing interest rates offered by peer NBFCs for the similar services/product, etc),

» Satisfy itself that the less fundamental risks are being actively managed, with the
appropriate controls in place and working effectively.

» Articulate the currentinterest rate review and formulate future business strategy on this
view,

7. Investment/Credit Committee
Inaccordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, an Investment/Credit Committee of the
Board has been constituted for implementation of the Palicy which will govern all investments,
including statutary investments, to be made by NBI As on 31st March, 2024, the Committee
comprises of Mr. Debasish Ray (Chairman), Mr. B. L. Gaggar and Mr. J. P. Mundra as members.
Details of their attendance at the meetings of the Committee are as under:-
st | Name of Memberof | Designstion Capasity Number of No.of |
Mo ;| Director Committee I {ie., Executive / Non- Mestings of the shares
: since. ¢ executive etc) Committes - heldin
! Held | Attended | the
e e e % ; - o
1 | Ashok Bhandari | 11-Aug-2032 Chalrman Mon- Executive 2 | 2 il
! resigned w.e.f Indapendent Blractor ! |
il b e o OB TR, [
] ebusish | 20-Oet-2023 Chalrman Mon- Executive 4 | 2 | i
weef Indepandent Director [ |
20-10-2023 | [

3 | B\, Geggar | 12-Aug-007 Member Maon-Frecitive Non- a | 4 Nl

| Independent Director {

4 | LP. Mundra [ 13-Aug-2002 Member | Non-Exerutive Non- a 4 il
| . W TP | L Independent Director Y. || ——

J

[
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8. Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee
In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, a Grievance Redressal Mechanism
Committee of the Board has been constituted for resolving the grievances of the customers. As
on 31st March, 2024, the Commitiee comprises of Mr. Debasish Ray (Chairman), Mr. B. L. Gaggar
and Mr. T. K. Bhattacharya as members, Details of their attendance at the meetings of the
Committee are as follows:-
sl | Nameof Memberof | Designation ‘Capacity Number of Mo. of
Ma | Directar Committee (e, Executive / Mon- Meetings of the shares
Field panded ol
1 | Ashaok 17-Aug-2037 Chairman MNon-Executive | 7 | Wil
Rhandari resigned Independent '
w.ef Dlrector | |
04-09-2023 :
2 | Debaslsh Ray | 20-Oct-2023 Chalrman Mon- Executive i 4 Wil
w.ef. Independent
I0-10-2023 Director
3 | B L, Gaggar 12-Aug-2027 Member Won-Executive Non- | 4 | il
Independent I |
3 - S R S .. Dieector | WL T
4 | Tk 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive | 4 | il
Bhattacharya Independent |
Director ! |
(D) Details of General Body Meeting
Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution,
if any, passed thereatis provided hereunder:
oo ool
ed Day, Date and Time Venue Resolutions
31% March, Monday, 215 August, 2023 21 Strand Road, Yes
2023 at 10:30 &AM, Kolkata — 700 001 |
31* March, ' Tuesday, 30™ August, 2022 21,5trand Road, Na
2022 ' at 4:00 P.M. Kolkata - 700 001
33" March, | Thursday, 237 September, |  215trand Road, |  Yes
2021 2021 at 10:30 A, Kolkata — /00 001
J
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Special Resolutions
The Special Resolutions passed in the last 3 Annual General Meetings are provided hereunder:

i AGM -
I e pwaanitime. | " _ mﬂ: nfSpnuln.I Itmluﬁu_n :
Manday, To approve re-appointment of Mr. Tapas Kumar Bhattacharyga as
217 August, 2023 a Non-Executive independent Director.
_at1030AM. |
Tuésd.ay, Mone
30" August, 2022
at 4:00 P.M.
Thursday, To confirm appointment of Smt. Privanka Mohta as an
23™ September, 2021 independent Director.
_ 8t 10:30 A.M.

AT TTERL DS WTITT B NI SR

Postal Ballot Notice

During the financial year, the following Ordinary Resolution was passed by the Sharsholders
by requisite majority by way of postal ballot. The Board of Directors of the Company
appointed Mr. Rohit Kumarr Mundhra, Practicing Chartered Accountant, partner of M/s.
ASRM ECo., as the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the postal ballot, Brief details pertaining to the
said postal ballot are provided below:

: ; Appointment of Mr. Ashok Bhandar| as & Non-
_ fefin Executive Non- Independent Director
Date of Postal Ballot Notice 20" October, 2023
! Period of e-voting 22 Novernber, 2023 o 21* December, 2023
i Date of declaration of results 22" December, 2023
The results of the postal ballot are as follows:-
s Votes in favour of the Resolution Votes against the Resolution
B Mumber of shares Percentage Mumber ofshares |  Percentage
Resolution No 1 1583564 99.56 Fii] 0.0
B No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed by pestal ballot.

Further, the following Special Resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Debasish Ray as a Non-
Executive Independent Director was proposed by the Board through Postal Ballot. The Board of
Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Rohit Kumarr Mundhra, Practicing Chartered
Accountant, partner of M/s. ASRM & Co., asthe Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the postal ballot. Brief
details pertaining to the said postal ballot are provided below;

: Appointment of Mr. Debasish Ray as a Non-
i Executive Independent Director

Date of Postal Ballot Notice 164 April, 2024

Feriod of e-voting 19™ April, 2024 to 18™ May, 2024

-
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Remote e-voting and ballotatthe AGM

It has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, via a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders will be zble to cast their vote without having to register again with the e-
voting service providers (ESPs). This will not only facilitate seamless authentication but also
enhance the ease and convenience of participating in the e-voting process,

The Company has engaged CDSL to provide e-yoting facility to all the members. Members whose
names appear on the register of members as on the cut -off date i.e. 8" August, 2024 shall be
eligible to participate in the e-voting.

The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM. Members who have
not already cast their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM.

(E} Means of Communication

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to Stock
Exchange immediately upon approval by the Board of Directors and are simultaneously
published in newspapers in English and Bengali (regional language) namely Business Standard
and Arthiklipi,

I accordance with the Listing Regulations, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern, Quarterly
Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange and are also
disseminated on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or
analysts.

General Shareholders' Information

| Annual General Meeting Friday, the 16" August, 2024 at 1030 AM, at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
Boolk Closure Dates: 10.08.2024 to 16.08.2024 {(both days inclusive]
E-voting Dates: 13.08.2024 1o 15.08.2024

| Financial Year 202324
| Dividend paymant date On or after 27™ August, 2024

| Listing onStockDxchange The Eguity Shares of the Company are listed on;

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited [NSF).

Exchange Plaza, Dandra Kurla Complex, Bandra [(East), Mumbai — 400 051

The Company has paid the annual listing fee of the exchange for the financial year

2034-25,
i _HEEE?:-.;hd-NEIFIN- b i e e e e 2 e
T TR - SR
| Dividend paymant & dividend of Rs. 0.50 per share [10%) for the year ended 31st March, 2024 an |

the existing Qidinary Share Capital of Bs. 122.84 lacs, if approved, would be |
paid, in-case of shares held in physical form, to those Members whose names
appear on the Hegister of Members on 9th August, 2024, after giving =ffect to
the transfers lodged and found to be complete and in order. In respect of shares
held In electronic form, dividend would be paid to the beneficial owners of
shares as at the end of business howrs on 9th August, 2024, as furnished by
National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services {inda) Ltd.

-,
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Unclaimed Dividend

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 {“IEPF Rules”), dividend, if
not claimed for a pericd of seven years from tha date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of
the Company, are liable to be transferred to |IEPF.

Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven
conseculive years or more from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be
transferred to |IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect of which
there is a specific order of Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the

shares.

Inthe interest of the shareholders, the Company sends periodical reminders to the sharehalders
to claim their dividends in order to avoid transfer of dividends/shares to IEPF Authority. Notices
in this regard are also published in the newspapers and the details of unclaimed dividends and
shareholderswhose shares are liable to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the

Company’s website,

The Members who have a claim on above dividends and/or shares are requested to follow the

below process:

1. Submit self-attested copies of documents provided in [EPF 5 helpkit, which is available
on |[EPF website (www.iepf.gov.in) to the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA).

2. After verification of the aforesaid documents submitted, Company will issue an
entitlement letter.

3. File Form IEPF-5 on IEPF website and send self-attested copies of IEPF-5 form along with
the acknowledgement (SRN), Indemnity bond and entitlement letter to Company,

4. On receipt of the physical documents mentioned above, Company will submit e-
Verificatlon report, for further processing by the IEPF Authority,

Members are requested to note that no claims shall lie against the Company in respect of the
dividend/shares transferred to |EPE.

~
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The following table give information relating to outstanding dividend and the last date by which
it can be claimed by the shareholders from the Company's RTA;

Year | Typeof | Dividend | Dividend | Dateof | Dividend Last date for _
Dividend | pershare | pershare | declaration amount transfer of unpaid

ofRs.10/- | ofRs.5/- | ofDividend | unpaidason dividend in

(Rs) (Rs) 31.03.2024 Investar
{Rs) Education and
Protection Fund
2016-17 Final 1/- = 16.09.2017 1,61,953 21.10.2024
2022-23 Final £ 0.40 21.08.2023 1,01,235 20.09.2030

The members who have not yet encashed the dividend warrant(s) for the year 2016-17 (Final
Dividend) are requested to approach the Company with their warrants for re-validation/fresh

issuance.

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Tentative Financial Calendar fortheyear 2024-25

o

Financial Year 17 April, 2024 - 31 March, 2025
First quarter results Within 45 days of the and of the quarter
second Quarter and Half-yearly results

| Third gquarter results |
Fourth quarter &a&nnual results Within 60 days of the end of the financial -

Listing of Shares:

The Equity shares of the Company are listed at the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).
The Company's Stock code is : MBIFIN

The security of the Company was never suspended from trading during the year 2023-24.

Corpaorate ldentity Number (CIN): L65923\WB1936PLCOA5596

a3
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Marlet Price Data during financial year 2023-2024;

Month High Low
April, 2023 1515.00 1406.05
May, 2023 1608.00 1430.00
June, 2023 1580.00 1400.00
July, 2023 1586.70 1449.70
August, 2023 1988.75 1455.05
September, 2023 1984.40 1705.10
_October, 2023 188190 1675.00
November, 2023 199900 1714.15
December, 2023 1961.00 1797.40
lanuary, 2024 2030.00 1810.00
February, 2024 2014.00 170270
March, 2024 1936.65 1723.20

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA)

Maheshwarl Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the
Company having its registered office at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5" Floor, Kolkata — 700 001.
Contact No.033-22482248, 22435029, Fax: 033-22484787. Email Id: mdpldc@vyahoo.com.

RTA also maintains a website: www.mdplin

Penalties and Strictures

The Mational Stock exchange of India has imposed a Penalty of Rs. 8.26 lacs for alleged delay in
compliance of Regulation 23{9) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has filed an appeal against the
order of the National Stock exchange in the Securities Appellate Tribunal.

Share Transfer System

a) Transfer of Securities held in physical Mode

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition
shall be processed only in dematerialised form, Further, all requests for duplicate issuance,
splitting and consolidation too will be processed in demat mode only.

b} Nomination facility for shareholding

As per the provision of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in respect
of shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form shall file Form No SH -13 to the

RTA of the Company. Members holding shares in dematerialized form should contact their
Depository Particlpant (DP) in this regard.

-,
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c) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India {SEBI), quarterly audit of the Company's
share capital is being carried out by an independent external Auditor (Practicing Company
Secretary) with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National Securities
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and shares held in
physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The Auditors Certificates in regard to the same
are submitted to NSE, from time to time.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31/03/2024

Share Holding Mo of Holders % age Mo of Shares % age
Upto 500 379 97.69 299,567 10,57
501 to 1000 B0 1.34 58,289 2.42
1001 to 2000 28 047 40235 164
2001 to 3000 5] 0.10 15,222 0.62
3001 to 4000 1 0.0l 3007 .15
4001 to 5000 2 0.03 8,800 0.36
5001 o 10000 5 0.08 34,515 1.40
Above 10000 i5 0.25 20,35,436 82.84
Grand Total 5931 100,00 24,56,806 100,00

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liguidity

As on 31° March, 2024, 89.59% of the Company's total equity shares representing 22,01,101
equity shares were held in dematerialized form and the rest were in physical form. The
Company's equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Status of total number of shares dematerialized and in physical form as on 31" March 2024:

Depesitory No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital
N5DL 20,41,101 83.08
CosL 1,60,000 6.51
Physical 2,55,705 10.41
Total 24,56,806 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Secretarial Audit
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2012 and Rules framed thereunder, Ms. Sneha
dearwal, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct Secretarial
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Audit of recards and decuments of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The Secretarial
Audit Repart confirms that the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Depasitories Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and
all the relevant Regulations and Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable to the Company. The audit
also covers the reconciliation of share capital on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted
capital with NSDL & CDSL and total paid up and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total
paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total
numberof dematerialized shares held with NSOL & CDSL.

Address for Correspondence
Company Secretary
Ashish Kedia
21, 5trand Road,
Kolkata — 700 001
Tel: 033 -22209601
Email ID: nbifinance@ymail.com
Wehsite: www.nbi-india.co.in

Share transmissions and transpositions are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
and approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, if the documents are complete in all
respects, within 15 days from the date of lodgement. The same is examined by a Practicing
Company Secretary as required under Listing Regulations and its certificate is forwarded to NSE
where the Company's shares are listed.

SEBI Complaints Redress System [SCORES)

SEBI vide circular dated 3" June, 2011 introduced SCORES, i.e., “SEBl Complaints Redress
Systemn” the system of processing of investors complaints in a centralized web based complaints
redressal portal. The salient features of this system are: centralized database of all Complaints,
online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned Company and online viewling by
investors of action taken on the complaints and their current status.

The Company is registered with SEB| under the SCORES system.

Credit Ratings
Mo instances have occurred during the financial year 2023-24 which warrant the Company to
obtain Credit Rating.

(F) Other Disclosures

a) During the financial year 2023-24 there was no materially significant Related Party
Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large except those disclosed in the Board's
Reportand financial statements.

-,
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b)

c)

d)

e

f)

g)

The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members
of Board and senior management personnel.

The Company has adopted a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading' (the
Code) in accordance with the reguirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended upto date. The code
expressly lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to
be made, by the directors, promoters and the senior management personnel while
dealing with the shares of the Company on the bourse and cautioning them on the
consequences of noan-compliance thereof, The Company has also formed Whistle
Blower Policy. Further, we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee. Employees can report to the Management concerns regarding unethical
behavior, act or suspected fraud or vialation of the Company's Code of Conduct Palicy,

The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory reguirements of the Listing
Regulations.

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

Ms. Sneha Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary, has issued a certificate as required
under clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none
of the directors on the Beard of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as director of the company by the SEBI / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this
report.

Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors:-
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to
the statutory auditor are as follows:

Rs_in Lakhs
Type of service FY2023-24 | FY2022-23
Audit Fees 1.18 1.20
Tax Audit Fees 0.12 0.10
Others G.48 D.06

No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman during the
financial year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable.

-,
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Non-Mandatory / Discretionary requirements of regulation 27(1) & Part E of Schedule Il of the
SEBI Listing Regulations:

Shareholders Rights:
The quarterly/half yearly results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the same are sentto
the N5E and are also posted on the Company s website,

Auditor's Opinion:
The Company's financial statements for the financial year 2023-24 do not contain any audit
gualification.

Reporting of internal auditor:
The internal auditors report to the Audit Commitiee.

Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor and report trading by
insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Policy also
includes code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information, initial and continual disclosures. The Baard reviews the Policy / Code on a need-to-
know basis. This Policy Is available on our website. The Company Secretary is the “Compliance
Officer”. The Code of Conduct is applicable to all Directors and designated persons as defined in
the Code of Conduct.

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
As reguired by provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Compliance Certificate on Corporate
Governance isannexed to this Report.

CEO and CFO Certification
The Chief Financial Officer acts as Manager of the Company as well. The Monager and CFO
Certification is provided in this Annual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 24(2) read with Clause 10(i} of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Ltd.
{CIN: L65923WB1836PLC065596)

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reqguirements)
Regulations, 2015 (LODR), | hereby certify that:

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors as on
March 31, 2024, none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the company by the
SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority.

Signature: Sd/-

Mame : Sneha Agarwal
ACS Mo, 38284
CPNo 14914

Place . Kolkata
Date 1 24.04.2024

UDIN :AD382B4F000226186
PEER REVIEW NO- 2479/2022
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
N.B.I. Indusirial Finance Company Ltd

L SnehaAgarwal. Company Secretary in Practice, the Secretarial Auditor of N B 1. Industrial
Finance Company Ltd (“the Company”). have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by the Company, for the vear ended on 3 1st March 2024, as stipulated
in Regulations 17 to 27 and eclauses (b) to (1) of regulation 46(2) and para C, 1) and E of
Schedule V of the Securities snd Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (collectively referred to as
"Listing Regulations"),

Management's Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevamt
supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Cotporate Governance Report as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
issued by the Securitics and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor's Regponsibility

My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether, the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governange as specified in the
Listing Regulations referred to in above paragraph. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opmion on the financial statements of the Company,

I have examined the relevant records and documenis maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

Opinion

Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulaled in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b} to
(1) of regulation 46(2) and paras C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during
the year ended 3 | March, 2024,
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[ state that such compliance is neither an assurance as (o the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.

Signature:

Name :'Sneha Agarwal
ACS No. : 38284

CPNe 14914

HFlace : Kolkata

Date : 24.04.2024

UDIN : AD3B2A4F000226351
PEER REVIEW NO- 2479,/2022
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Manager and CFO Certification

To,

The Board of Directors,
N.B.L INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.

Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

1, 5.P. Kumar, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, certify that;

1.

| have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of N.B.I
INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED and a summary af the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information of the Company and the Board's
Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, | state that:

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
factorcontain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs for the
period presented In this report and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

| accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that | have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and confirm that there have been no
material weakness in internal controls over financial reparting including any corrective
actions with regard to deficlencies,

| have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

that there were no significant changes In internal control over financial reporting
during the year;

All significant changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the
same have been disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and
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£, that there were no instances of significant fraud that involve management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system over
financial reporting.

5 | further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have

affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this
Report.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7" May 2024 S.P. Kumar
Manager and
Chief Financta! Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMY AND MARKETS:

The World Economic Outlook Report of April 2024 from IMF describes the Global Economic
situation as “Steady but Slow”. 1t says as global inflation has descended from its mid-2022 peak,
economic activity has grown steadily. Growth in employment and incomas have held steady,
resulting in increased consumption demand. The unexpected growth in consumption is a
residual effect of the substantial savings accumulated by households during the pandemic.

Global growth, estimated at 3.2 percent in 2023, is projected to continue at the same pace in
2024 and 2025, Global headline inflation is expected to fall from an annual average of 6.8
percentin 2023 to 5.9 percentin 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025.

Dil prices have remained volatile having risen to near the $90 per barrel-mark, with
supply worries high given theescalating Middle East tensions between Iran and lsrael and
back-to-back attacks on energy Infrastruciure between Ukralne and Russia. The price has
since corrected but remains above USD 80-85.

2024~ The year of elections world over:

2024 js not just an election year. It's perhaps the election year! Globally, more voters than ever in
history will head to the polls as at least 64 countries (plus the European Union}—representing a
combined population of about 49% of the people in the world—are meant to hold national
elections, the results of which, for many, will prove conseguential for years to come.

2024 Elections:
Total Global Share
Number of countries 40 .
Papulation 3.2 billion I 1%
GoP $§ 44.2 rllion I 17%

Source: Bloomberg Econormnics based on IMF farecosts
Figures exclunde elections for the Eurapesn Parliament

Equity markets tend to parform well in & year when Elections heid:
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Economic situation in major world markets:

Eurozone:

The Eurozone presents a promising outlook, with economic activity indicators surpassing
expectations. Core inflation tracking towards the European Central Bank's target of 2% is
supported by various factorsincluding falling energy prices and real wage gains,

Japan:

Japan's macroeconomic shift, marked by increasing inflation expectations and wage growth,
presents favorable investment opportunities. Corparate behaviar reforms driven by initiatives
from the Tokyo Stock Exchange contribute to improved return on equity, signaling a positive
trajectory for investmentsin the region.

United States:

Despite challenges such rising default rates on credit obligations, the U.S. economy remains
resilient. The 5&P 500 Index is poised to continue its upward trajectory, fueled by positive
momentum and investor enthusiasm.

India;

India continues to shine as a bright spot. It is the fifth-largest economy in the world and is poised
to retain its position as the world's fastest-growing major economy, Its GDP growth remained
buoyantat 7.3% in FY 2023-24 as against 7.2%in FY 2022- 23 was supported by robust domestic
demand, moderate inflation, a stable interest rate environment, and strong foreign exchange
reserves. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) commended India's economic resilience,
robust growth, and notable progress in formalization and digital Infrastructure.

India's economic outlook is optimistic as it reaps the benefits of demographic dividend, physical
and digital infrastructure enhancements, increased capital expenditure and the
government's proactive policy measures such as Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Schemes.
According to the IMF, the Indian economy is expected to expand steadily at 6.5%in 2024,

-,
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Indian Equity Markets FY 23-24;

The Indian stock market delivered an exceptional year. The Nifty50 spiked up an impressive
28.6%in FY24, outperforming most major marketindices globally.

Irviies Rekunm
35%

A
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Source: Bloomberg data,

The broader market recorded a much higher return with overall market cap of all listed

companies appreciating 47.91%.

Date 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
INR 8218 8340
Market Cap In INR - Lacs Crores 25759 387.02
in USD in bn 3,134.45 4,640.50

NBFCINDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

India's financial sector is @ highly diversified one comprising comrmercial banks, insurance
companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and
other smaller financial entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking and non-banking
financial companies ['NBFCs’). Over the past few years NBFCs have emerged as important
financial intermediaries, particularly for the small-scale and retail sectors in underserved and
unbanked areas. The sector has turned out to be growth engine in an environment where
significant importance is assigned to financial inclusion and have aided the economy in
employment generation and wealth creation by making credit available to the rural segment,
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COMPANY'S POSITION

The Company NBI is registered with the RBEl as a Mon-Banking Financial Institution and is
categorized as Mon-Deposit taking NBFC” (NBFC-ND). The operations of the company continue
to be centered around investments in shares and securities. The main income of the Company is
dividend income on long-term investments and profit from sale of investments. The results of
the Company's operations for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024 have been dealt with in
the Director's Report.

The Company, being into finance and investment activity, the impact of movement of stock
markets affects its profitability. The Company has long-term orlentation in Its investments and
mainly invests in listed equities, The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk with
adeguate return.

OUTLOOK

A significant portion of the Company's income arises from investment and share sale / purchase
operations, which are largely dependent on the condition of the stock market. The stock market
activity depends largely upon the ecanomic growth momentum and a combination of other
factors like inflation, domestic savings, corparate earnings, stable tax regime, surging portfolio
investments into India etc. The unusual developments in the global economy may pose
uncertainties and challenges for the emerging market economies like India. However, the
Company has investment policy wherein it invests in those securities which have easy liquidity,
betteryield and potential for price appreciation in medium to long run.

INTERNAL CONTROLSYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company hasimplemented a system of internal controls and risk management for achieving
operational efficiency, optimal utilization of resources, credible financial reporting and
compliance with locallaws.

The system is aimed at covering zll areas of operations. All transactions entered into by the
Company are duly authorized and recorded correctly. The internal financial controls within the
Company are commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. it has
implemented suitable controls to ensure that financial transactions are reported with accuracy
and that there is strict compliance with applicable laws and regulations. These controls are
regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness. The Company has robust policies and procedures
which, inter alia, ensure integrity in conducting its business, safeguarding of its assets, timely
preparation of reliable financlial Information, accuracy and completeness in maintaining
accounting records and the prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

-,
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the
details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately

previous financial year) In key financial ratios are as follows:-

Financial Year
GNPA (%) NIL ML
NNPA (%) NIL NIL
Return on Assets (%) 0.32 0.21
Return on Equity (%) 034 022
Net Interest Margin (%) 100 100
Current Ratio 208 6.12
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00
Met Profit Margin (%) 60.70 51.92
EPS 32.02 21.46
Price Eamnings Ratio 55.89 67.66

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements under "Management Discussion & Analysis" describing the Company's
objectives, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based
on reasonable assumptions, the actual results could materially differ from those expressed or
implied, since the Company's operations are influenced by many external factors beyond the
control of the Company. Investors are cautioned that the Company assumes no responsibility to
publicly amend, medify, revise or update any forward looking statement or opinion, on the basis

ofany subsequent developments, events or information.
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g8



N.B.L Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WBI1936PLC065596

-,

CHATURVEDI & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KOLKATA. MUMBAL DELHI. CHENNAL KANPUR
60, BENTINCK STREE L KOLKATA- 700064

Phone : 2237 - 4060 / 4603 6407

(IAECTIaIUTyY B

E-mail:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT

To,
The Members of
N. B. I. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of N. B. . Industrial Finance Company
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31"March 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income}, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the materizl accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given te us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind A5) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally acceptedin India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31"March 2024, the profit
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act, Our respansibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
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accordance with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters wera
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinian thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion en these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

sr. The Key audit matter Auditor's Response
No.
1. Valuation and Existence of Investments — We obtained indepandent confirmation of

the number of units held and net assetvalue
We have focused on the waluation and | per unit for each of the mutual fund units
existence of the mnvestments in Equity, | and market value for shares as at the year-
Preference Shares and Mutual Funds because | end date, confirmation of shares and its
these represent a principal element onthe net | market value.

azsets in the Financial Statements.
We have also obtained the most recent set
Refer Note 6 to the Financial Statements, of audited financial statements for
unguoted investments.

Information Other than the Financial 5tatements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Tha Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is the
Director's report but does notinclude financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial staternents orour knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appearsto be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

-,
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Management responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matter stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with IndAS prescribed under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles ganerally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively forensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Campany to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto doso.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditar's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the ageregate, they could reazonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

~
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misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control;

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such cantrals.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by
managemant.

* (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying
transactions and events inamanner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually orin
agoregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any Identified misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
andwhere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
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period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so weould reasonably be expected to
outweighthe publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditer's Report) Order, 2020 {'the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 {11} of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sofar asitappears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement deait with by
this Reportare in agreement with the boaoks of account;

In our opinlon, the aforesald financial statements comply with the Indlan Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rules made thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 317 March
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directorsis disqualified as on
31*March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reparting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report given in "Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act. In our opinion and to the bast of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
157 ofthe Act; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
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opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position
inthe financial statements - Refer Note no. 35 to the financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable logses;

There were no amount which were reguired to be transferred during the year ended
31" March 2024 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

. Asperthe management representation provided, we report,

* nofundshave beenadvanced or loaned or invested by the company toorinany
other personls) or entities, including foreign entities "intermediaries"}, with
the understanding that the intermediaries shall whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on
behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantes,
security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

= no funds have been received by the company from any person{s) or entities
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding that such
company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the funding
party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries,

= Based on the audit precedures performed, we report that nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations given by
management under the above sub-clauses contain any material mis-
statement.

# The final dividend paid by the company during the year, in respect of the
previousyear isin accordance with Section 123 of the Act,

As stated in note 40 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company has proposed final dividend far the year and the same is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
dividend declared is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to declaration of dividend.

e Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
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Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audittrail feature being tampered with

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g} of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31,2024

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership Mo, 52122

LIDIN : 24052122BKGPTZ2636

Place : Kelkata
Date : 16/05/2024
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{1

(i

it}

(iv)

N.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure-'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 317 March 2024
[Referred to in para 1 of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirernents’ of our

(a)

(b}

c)
(d)

(e}

(b)

report]

(&) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant & Equipment.

(B) The company has no Intangible assets, hence para 3{i}{a){B}a of the Order is not
applicable to the Campany.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the company, the Company has a regular programme of

physical verification of its Praperty, Plant and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and

Equipment are verified every year. In accordance with this programme, all the Property,

Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year

and nomaterial discrepancies have been noticed on such verification, In our opinion, this

periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company

and the nature of its assets.

The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, para 3(i){c) of the

Order s notapplicable to the Company.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,

plant and equipment {including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during

theyear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thersunder,

The Company has no inventory hence para 3(l1)[a) of the Order Is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees at any point of time of the
vear in aggragate, from banks er financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets, Accordingly, the reguirement to report on para 3{iilb) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that since the company iz in the
business of making investments Including granting loans in the normal course of its
business and further, as it has not provided any guarantee or security to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties, the provisions of paragraph
aliii{{a) to {f) or the Order are not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
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(v

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

procedures performed by us, the Company belng a Non-banking Finance company,
provisions of section185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable. Thus paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order isnot applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public during the year to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
pravisions of Sections73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder apply. Thus paragraph 3{v) of the Order i5 not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus paragraph 3{vl) of the
Orderisnotapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account, the Company is generally regular in depesiting undisputed statutory
duss including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state Insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company. There are no undisputed
statutory dues payable in respect of above statues outstanding as at 31" March 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, Goods &
service tax, cess ete, which have not been depasited as at 31 March, 2024 on account of
any dispute except :

Name of the Statute Mature of Dues Amount | Periods to which | Forum where the

(Rs. In | amount relates | dispute is pending
Lacs)

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax  including 12.02 AY Z018-2019 | CIT(A)

Penalty (FY 2017-2018)

(viil)

(ix)

(@)

According toinformation and explanation given to us and on the basiz of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, inthe tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on para 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
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(x)

(xi)

Al

(i)

(b)

(d}

(&)

(a)

(b)

{a)

(b}

(e}

borrowings orinthe payment of Interest thereon to any lender during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not been declared will full defaulter by
any bankor financial institution or otherlender.

The company has not raised any funds by way of term loan, hence para 3{ix){c) of the
Orderisnot applicable to the Company.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long
term purposes by the Company

According to the infermatlon and explanations glven to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company does not have
any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(ix){e) and {f) ofthe Order are not applicable tothe Company,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any money during the year by
way of further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence reporting under clause
(xj{a) of the Order iz not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures during the year
Hence reporting under paragraph 3(x){b) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanation given to us, considering the principles of materiality
putlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or onthe
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

According to the Information and explanations glven to us; no report under sub-sectlon
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year while determining the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Midhi
Company. Accordingly, clause (i) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the Information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 138 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
thefinancial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(i)

(3w}

(ewiil)

[ xixt)

(a0t}

(a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

In our apinion the Company has an adeguate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business and report of the Internal Auditors have been
considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected toits directors and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are notapplicable to the Company,

The Company has obtained registration under Section 45-1& of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1924,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
proceduras performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial
or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration ({COR) from the
Reserve Bank of Indiz as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence reporting under
paragraph 3{xvi)(b) of the Orderisnot applicable,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence reporting under paragraph 3{xvi)(c) of the Order s
notapplicable,

Accarding to the information and explanation given to us, none of the group companies
are CIC and hence reporting under paragraph 3{xvi){d) of the Order Is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence
reporting under clause (xviii) of the arder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date

of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the:

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
ofthe Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company asand when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, with respect
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to obligations under Corporate social responsibility (CSR), the company is not reguired to
spend towards CSR based on criteria as specified under section 134(5) of the act during
the year and there are no such ongoing projects and unspent amount related to it, hence
no reporting is required to be reported underthe clause (xx)(a) and (xx)(b) of the order.

(d) The preparation of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the Company.
Hence reporting under paragraph (xx1) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 52122

UDIN @ 24052122BKGPTZZ636

Place : Kolkata
Date : 16/05/2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act")

[Referrad to in para 2{f) of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatery reguirements’ of cur
report]

Opinion

We have audited the internal financlal controls over financial reporting of N. B. I. Industrial Finance
Co. Limited ('the Company') as of 317 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year then ended.

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reperting were
operating effectively as at 31" March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrals

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintalning
internal financial contrels based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
canduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of ts assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required underthe Act.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards

on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the

extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance MNote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and If such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and ‘their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
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internal financlal cantrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exlsts,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
forourauditopinion on the Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting s a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intarnal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispesitions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material
effect onthe financlal statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
Internal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadeguate because of changes In
conditions, or that the degreeof compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firr Registration: 302137E

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership No, 52122

UDIN ; 24052122BKGPTZ2636

Place : Kolkata
Date :IEIDSKEUZ-I-T
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Balance Sheetasat31 March 2024
(Al amaunts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Ptk Nisto As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Financial assets
[a} Cashand cash aquvalents a4 4,40 3004
() Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 5 1.73 55.53
(e ] Investirsonts el 24357792 £45,701.66
() Other Npaocial assets i 1803 B.48
TOTAL 242,601.98 245,768.57
Non-financkal assets
{a} Current tax assets (Wet) 8 34.91 43.3%
(b} Property, plant and cquipmeant El 024 .30
() Diher non financiat assats 10 _B.as 73
TOTAL 44.03 44.42
TOTAL - ASSETS 142,646.01 245 812.99
LIABILITIES AND ECULITY
Luabiilitaes
Financial lkabifites
(&) Other linancial Fabifilkes 11 16.41 11,
HNan-Tinancial kabilities
{a) Current tie labiities (net) iz 1.50 -
(b} Provelsioms 13 ht.47 Gl
(o) Deterred Lax fiability (net) 14 B,743,37 9,965, 77
(d} Cther non-financial liabilities 15 4.95 4.73
TOTAL 8,833.70 10,042.68
Eguity
{a}) Egqulty Share coplial 16 12384 12384
(b} Other cquity 17 233.689.47 235,647 47
TOTAL I33.812.31 235.770.31
TOTAL EgUIT‘I’ AND LJANI;ITIIS 242 GAG.01 245,812.99
I he accompanymg notes are an integral part of the fimancial statements.
In tenms of our peport attached Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturved] & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 302187E
Ashok Bhandar Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Nilima Jashi Chakrman Directar
Partner DIN - 00012210 DAN-0071 1665
Membership No. 052127
LIDiN: 240521298 KGFTZ2636
Flace : Kolkata Sundrapandiyapuram
Pichumani Kumar Ashish Kedia
Date : 16th May 2024
4 Manager & CFO Companmy Secretmrny
J
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"I
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts In % lakhs. unless otherwise stated}
Partculars Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
|Revenue from operations
[a) Irterest income ia 2.07 234
[b) Dividend mcome ia 1.261.01 1,007 68
[e) Mt gain on Fair vilee changes 20 21,50 4,71
Total revenue from aperations 1,294.58 1,014.73
{rher imoome i 1.25 080
Total Income 1,295.83 1,015.53
KPENLes
s} Finanoe Cost 22 0.0z -
[b) Emplayes benefits expense 3 1£4.27 i52.21
[c] Depreciation 24 0.06 0.17
[d} Other experses 25 60,83 TO.05
otal expenses 23528 127.53
rofit befors tax 1,070.55 T88.00
Tax eExpense 8
) Curremt lax 474,72 129.16
[ mss:Tax charged in ©CI 191.50 =
283,22 1818
(b} Dafarrad tax 0.75 31.53
Tax axpanse 283.97 26062
[:ﬂt far the year [(A) T8E.58 52I7.31
ar com prahenshve Incame
il o
- Re-measurement {loss)/ gain on defined benelit plans 1.43 .84
Tax impact on above (0.348) (0. 72)
- Changzs in falr valuation of eguity instruments {3,767.84) 25.034.21
Tax impact on above 1,028.52 (3,646 55)
b iterns that will be reclacsified to profit or loss
- Changes In falr valuation of bonds/ debt [nstrameants =
Tax impact on above .50 :
|Other comprehensive iIncome for the year [2.734.75]) 21,389.75
Total comprehensive incoma for the year [1,948.17) 21.917.06
armngs par egulty share (face value 5 sach)
& Diluted (%) 27 32.02 2146
The accompamyping notes are an ntegral part af the financial statements
Interms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Far Chaturved| & Company
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Reglstration No. 302137E Ashak Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chalrman Dirsctor
Nftima Jashl [N - 00012210 DIN-00711665
Pt
Membership No. 0521232
UDIN: 240521 22BKGFTII636
Sundrapandlyapuram
Mica: knfeata Plchumani Kumar Ashish Kedia
Mate = 1Mth May 2024 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
A
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"I
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
Al amounts In ¥ lakhs, unloss othernwlse stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulers 31 March 3024 21 March 2023
A. | Cazh flow from opemting sctivities
MNat profit bafare tax LO70,55 Tas.00
ndjustments for;
Deprecliatan 0.06 o177
Investment written OFF - oI
Interest iIncomes calculated using effective interest rates {1.89) [1.74)
Nat [gain)loss on fair value changes of investment fa1.50) [4.71)
[33.33) {599}
Operating profit/{loss) before working capltal changas 1,037.22 TEI.OL
Adjpustments far :
{Increasa)/Cecrease In ather financial assets {2.55) 9.07
{Increase)/Docreass in other man- financial aszets {8.15) .01
Increasa [ (Decreass) In Trade Payahbls - [1.0a3)
Increase/[Decreaze] in other financial liabilities 4.49 6.21
Increase /i Decrease) in provision B.63 B.58
Increass f{ Dacrease] in other non-financial Habilities Q.33 o0.57
(4.35) 24.40
Cash ganerated from operatons 1.032.87 a0s.41
Mt income tax {pald)/refund {454.75) (231.96)
MET CASH FROM/IUSED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES [A) 568.12 574.45
B. | Cash flow from Investing actlyities
Purchasze of Investments {7.738.18) 12,997.75)
Lale al Invesbmenis T2 49 1,869 90
{Investment)/Realisation of Fixed Deposit 53.66 {5371
NET CASH FROM/|USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) {557.03) {1,181 62}
C. |Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends pakd 19.83) .01
NET CASH FROM f(USED IN] FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C) {9.83) .01
MET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C) 116 {GOT.16)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 3.0 G10.20
Cash and cash eguivalonts at the ond of the yoar 4. 30 3.04

This S£CaMBANY IR E Ao ard 80 Integral part of the fns neisl sratsihants.

Kotes:

i} The sbove staternant of cash flow has been prepered under the findirect Method' ss set out i IND A% 7-"Slatement of Cash Hows',

U} sSknes tha Coempany 11 Irvestment and Mnenos sompsny, purchass snd als &f Investmsnts havs basn conaldsred as part of “Cash
flow from Investdng acthvities™ and interest samad (net) T 0016 lakhs (Frevious yeor ® 080 lkhs) and dodidend sarned of % |, 26100
lakhs |{Previoos year ® 100765 lakhs) have besn consldered as part of *Cash flow from cparating act ivities”,

iy Dirsct taie s pald (s reatad as orlsing from operating anthdtles and [s ot bifurcst sd beteean lmmesting and inandng actkvities

I termns of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturved! & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 302437E Ashok Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chalrman Director
Nifkma Joshi DIN - 00012210 DIN-00711665
Partner
Mambership Ne. 052132
UDiN: 240821328 KGEPTI2EAE
Sundrapandiyapuram
Plara : Koty Pichuman| Kumar Ashizh Kedia
Date : 16th May 2024 Manager B CHD Company Searetany
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1.

21

22

23

Corporate Information

M.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("the Company”) is a public company limited by
shares, Incorporated on 215t December, 1838 and domiciled in India. Its shares are listed on
the Mational Stock Exchange (MSE). The Company s carrying on business as a "Non-
Banking Financial Company® {NBFC). The Company is engaged mainly in investment in
shares in securities & financial activity. The Company is reglisterad with Reserve Bank of India
as NBFC. The Company’s registered office is 21, Strand Road Kolkata—700001.

The financial statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 were approved and
authorlsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 16th May, 2024,

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial stalements have been prepared on accrual basis under the hislorical cost
convantion, excapt for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INH}, and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs up to two decimals, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of IND AS reguires management of the Company to make judagments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures including disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoina basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recoanized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncerlainty at the date of the financial statements, which may
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is in respect of: fair valuation of unquoted equity investments, impairment of
financial instruments, Impairment of property, plant & equipment, useful lives of property,
plant & equipment, provisions and contingent liabilities and long term retirement benefits.

.‘
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3!‘

31

Material accounting policies

Financial instruments

Classification

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets, other than equity, are classified into, Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL) or
at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as FVTPL or
FVOCI. Financial liabilities are classified as amorlised cost category and FWTPL.

Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and Interast (SPPI) test:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the business model and
results of PP test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.
This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key managament parsonnel

= The risks that affect the performance of the business modsl (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the confractual cash flows collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also imporiant aspects of the
Company’s assessment.

If cash fiows after Initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

i} Initial recognition

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual
terms and the business mode! for managing the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabllities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaclion cosls directly atlributable to the acquisilion of financlal assels or financial
liabllities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statermeant of profitorloss.

.‘
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iv)

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and
deposits are recognised on the trade date i.e. when a Company becomes a parly to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised
when the funds are transferred to the customers account. Trads receivables are measured at
the transaction price.

Subsequent measurament

|a) Financial assets at amortised cost;

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding and that are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets In order to collect such
contractual cash flows are classified In this category. Subsequently these are measured at
amaoriised costusing effective interest method less any impairment losses.

{b) Debt Instruments at FYOCI

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are =olely payments of principal and interest on principal
outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. These instruments largely
comprise long-term investments made by the Company.FVOCI debt instrumenis are
subsequently measured at falr value wilth gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI. Interest income and gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financlal assets measured at amortised cosl. On derecognition,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or
loss.

{c) Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are eguity instruments as defined in IND AS 32 "Financial
Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading and where the Company's
management has elecied lo irrevocably designaled the same as Equity instruments at FVOCI
upon initial recognition, Subseqguently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, netof applicableincome taxes.

Gains and losses onthese equity instruments are never recycled to profit orloss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profil and loss
when the right to receive the payment has been established.

{d) Fair value through Profit and loss account:

Financial assets are measurad at FVTPL unless it Is measured at amortised cost ar at FVOCI
on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets atfairvalue through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

.‘
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v)

vi)

wiii}

viii)

32

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:

{a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financlal
liability and an equity instrument.

{b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Eguity instruments ara recorded at the procesads
recejved, net of direct issue costs.

{c) Other Financial Liabilities:
These are measured at amorlised cost using effective interest rate.

Derecognition of Financial assets and Financlal liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

A financial liability iz derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that
Is at amortized cost or fair value through OCI. Loss allowance In respect of financial assets Is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and Is calculated as the
difference between their carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reclassification of Financial assets:

The Company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances when the Company changes its business model for
managing such financial assets. The Company does not re-classify its financial liabilities.

Determination of fair value:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market particlpants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition Is normally the transaction price
(fair value of the consideration given or received). Subseguent fo initial recognition, the
Company determines the falr value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets
using the guoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities
held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation technigues include
discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

.‘
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3.4

i)

i)

35

ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Gompany assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on intemal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an
impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value inuse.

Employee Benefits Expenses

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employes banefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employeses are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service., These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences, which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employea rendsrs the
refatad service.

Defined eontribution schames

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified
monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense In
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employes renders the related sarvice.

Gratuity

Liablliyy with regard to long-term employee benefits iz provided for on the bazis of an actuarial valuation
af the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain / loss is recognisad Immediately in the statement of ofhar
comprehensive income.

Tanes
Income tax expense represents the sum of cument tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1861, Current tax
assets and liablitles are measurad at the amount expected ta be recovered from or pald to the taxation
authorities, based oniax raiss and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Shest
date.

Deferrad tax

Defarrad tax is recognized on all temporary differances between the {ak bases of assats and liabilities
and their carrying amaunts in the Cornpany's financial statemeants except when the deferred tax arises
fram the intial recognition of goodwill or Inltlal recognition of an asset or llabillty In a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of
transaction Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured atthe tax rates that are expected to apply in
the peried inwhich the llabillity is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
baen enacted or substantively enacied by the Balance Sheet date,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differencas, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it s probable that future taxable profits will be avaliable
against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised.
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37

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) s reviewed at
each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basls.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the
same relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingant assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whosa existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the confrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized becauseitis
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingant
liability also arizes in extreamely rare. cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

A contingent assetis a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the cccurrence or non-occcutrence of one or more uncertain Tulure
events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Earnings per share (EPS)

"Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss altributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.”

.‘
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3.8

3.9

ii)

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of & non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and
financing activifies of the Company are segregated.

Company is an investment and finance company and therefore, purchase and sale of
investments are considered as part of “Cash flow from investing activities” and interest
earned (net) and dividend eamed are considered as part of "Cash flow from operating
activities".

Use of estimates, judgements and adjustments

The praparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to maka
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reporied amaounts of assets, llabilities, Income, expenses, and disclosures of contingant assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and tha results of cperations during tha reporting period
end. Although these estimates are bazed upon managemaent’s best knowledge of eurent events and
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Aevisions to accounting
estimates are recognized In the perod In which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabliifes within the next financlal year are discussed in the paragraphs
that follow.

Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and egquipment (PPE) is based on a number of factors
including the affects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors (such as known
technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any changss could
affect the depreciation rates prospactively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impaimment If there are events
or changes in circumnstances that indicate that the carmying value of the assets may not be recoverabie.
In assessing the property, plant and equipmant for impainmant, factors leading to significant reduction in
profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes in requiatory environment are taken into
cansideration.

Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal coursze of business, contingent [abllities may arise from Itigation, taxation and other
claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable
astimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specific
cireumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for iis best estimate
of the llakllity. Sush liabillles are disclosed In the notes but are not provided for In the financlal
slatements.

.‘
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i)

Although thera can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company
does net expect them to have a malerially adverse Impact on the Company's financlal positien or
profitability.

Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes

Some of the Company's asseis and liabilities are measurad at fair value for financial raporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-cbservable data to the
exctent it s avallable. Information about the valuation technigues and inputs used in determining the fair
value of various assets and llabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financlal statements.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tax Credit

The extent to which defarrad tax assets can be recognised based on an assessment of the probability of
the Company's future taxable Income against which the defarred tax assets can be ulilised. in addition
significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal oreconomic limits.

.‘
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\
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts In ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Az As at
- h 0]
A wu 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash in hand 3.01 2.00
Balances with banks
a] In cumrent accounts 1.29 1.04
4.30 3.04
Asat As at
M 5:- Bank Bala h d lva
. o e 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Fixed deposits with banks IWFI'J'I ufiw‘ maturity of mora than three 0.11 53,77
months]
Unpaid{Unclaimed) Dividend Account 1.62 162
173 5539
Miote B; Investments
At fair value
Through athar
Investrents M::':“d comprehensive |  Through profit Total
intomse and loss
IEVOCIN
Asat 31 March 2024
i) Martieal fus 2 - AA17.09 341709
i) Ecuily instruments-
-Quoted - 236,068,07 = 736,969.07
-Ctherfunquoted) = 2,268 82 : 2,268.82
ill] Prefarance shares
-Crther{umouoted) 2754 - 4284
Total 239,260.83 3,317.08 242 577.92
At fair value
Amaortised | Through athar
Investmeants cant " i Th:::::h h:um Total
Incoms
Az at 31 March 2023
i) Mustusal Furcks 35,59 35,59
|1} Equity instruments
~Cuated = 238 568.00 = 238.568.00
Other{unquoted) - 7,077.03 - 7,077.03
iii] Preference shares
-Otherfunguoted) - .04 - 2104
Tatal, - 245,E56.07 35.59 245, 70156
J
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5
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

The fair value of investmaents in equity shares designated at AVYOCI derecognised during the year on the date of
derecognition 5% 5,586.30 lakhs (previous year T874.75 lakhs ).

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{f) trneestmeent outside India E -
{1} Irwastmient in indiz 242 577.92 295,701.66
Total 242,577.92 245, 70066

Particulars

B.1 The market value of investmeants is equalte the book value,

6.2. The Company has elected an irrevocable option to designate its investments in guoted eguity instruments through
FVOCI, as the said investments are not held for trading and company continues to invest for fong term and remain
invested in leaders in sectors, which it believes to have potential to remain accretive over the long term,

6.2, Of the total dividend recozgnised during the year from investmeant in eguity share designated at FVOCl % 119.68
lakhs (Provious yvear % 1.33 lakhs) i= relating to investment derecognised during the period and X 1,139.08 lakhs
{provious year § 1,006.35 lakhs) pertains to investment held at the end of reporting period.

B.4. During the year, total gain of 3 1,910.34 lakhs {Previous year loss £ 4,42 [akhs) on investment in equity shares
designated at FVOCI have been transferred to retained earnings on derecognition of relzted Investments after
adjusting for tax effect thereon .

6.5, The other disclosure regarding fair value and risk arising from financial instruments are explained in Note No.32
and 33,

6.6 Details of investments am a5 follows -

frtual funds
Facs \elua His it 31 Werch 2020 s at 31 Werch 2023
Particuisrs
% Linits Ameunt Units At
At falr walue through profit and loss
Quated
LT Moey Market Frc Regdar Plan Growh 1000 1818437 1378 136458 5
|Sub Totah{A) y L 1 J37.m | e
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Exquity instraments - others, fully paid up

~

(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

R Face Value hnﬂlﬂmhm As ot 31 March 2083
(1] Numbers Amount Mumbers Amount
Az Fair walue through ather compreheasive Income
Quoted
1. Automobiles and auto components
Boseh Limited 10 8599 | 2582.70 9599 185337
LEA2I0 1,859.52
1. Banks
i Bank Ltd 2 23,600 7540 #3600 |
ICHE] Rank Liritad 2 110,500 | 130810 110,500 9g3.38 |
2,083 56 1,687.00
3. Camant '
Orient Cement Limad 260,000 | 509,08 160,000 285.87
Ambuja Cements Limited 2 23,000 140,84 . -
dhree Cemert Limited 10 84,450 | 218,162.97 843450 2344508
| Z18,H12.89 223, 730.92
4 Diversified
M Inelia Limitiedd 10 Load | 14126 Lo 510
| MHille pLi %]
5.Fnances, services and Insurance |
REC Limited 10 4,000 | 230,04 H4,000 735,50
Ho Fimanclal Sendess Limited® 1 10,000 35.38 - -
955 42 235,53
6. Fasr Moving Consumer Gaods And Contu mer
Durables
illetts Indiz Limited 10/ 38,350 | 2,500,177 38,350 165522
Hiriehistan L nlever Limited 1 - . 1154561 295621 |
ITC Limiled 1 - - 455,000 178337
[kansai Neroias Paints Limited 3 4,880 | 12.12 700 irs2
Mestle India Limites 110 20300 | 53234 2630 400.00
Procter & Gamble Hyglene & Healch Care Ltd i 15,570 | 3,340,613 18570 266151
Uil Spirits Limited 2 45,500 | 516.08 45,500 344.13
Hstzur Agro Prodoct Lid. 25300 | 55,91 . -
whiripasl of India Limied 10 0,000 | 366,44 30,600 391.52
| 7,564.37 10,234.79
7. Heavy Electrical Equipments
GE Power India Limited 10 N | - 26455 264.32
| = 264.31
B. Hoalthcars
Féizer Limited 19 17177 720,56 17477 595,55
l 721585 58555
@, Ol & Natural Resources
Rufiance Industries Limited 10 10,000 | a7 10,400 FECRA Y
| AT 311
10. Packaging
£ Lid 2 30,500 0.4
Hulstanakl incka Limited 2 122,050 | 365,11 122,050 25128 |
| 36511 2180.75
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Notes to financial statements for the yearended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)
Particulors Fare Valun As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
53] Units Amauni Units Amouw
11, Specializy Chemicals
Foseco |India Liminad L1 . = EHED 19543
& 19543
12, Powmr & Energy
Shyam Matalics & Erergy Limited i 15,000 aa.7n
NTPC Limited i 384,000 128047 - -
LE7RAT
13. E-Retall
Lomato Limited 1 100,000 W0 - -
18210 -
14, Por & Port Services
Adand Ports & Special Eeonomic Zone Limited 2 BO,000 107348 - -
1,07%.48
15. Transport Services
Inberglobe Aviauon Limited i B.H00 ALIE = B
1228
Sub Yotad {A) 236,969.07 L3568.00
* On demerg s fram Refaree [mdustries Lid,
Ad at 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
Pardeubars Face Valus
<1 Unfts Amouns Unilts Amaunt
Ungueted
Adfabnd Homa Frivate Limited el 6,000 ST.AT 2,000 118,25
Aqua Infra Projects Limived 10 740,000 Soa.43 TAOO00 E63.14
Knrmmayog Propeities Privale Lirnilsd il I5E,000 DESLAD 258,000 372,50
Harngopal Hokdings Privite Limined 10 B2 2608 BOAFS nys
Shres Cament Marketing Limived 10 8,000 L 5000 176
Shree Cexmerd Fast Bengal Foundaton Limited Pl 1,006 43 1,000 f.m
Shiescap Holdings Private Limited in 7000 a.an 7000 0.86
Tanustres Logistics Private Lindted 0 59,000 LELSG S5 000 208.05
‘Wsterr Indin Commmercial Comrpany Lmited® * 100 2105 118039 2,105 5, R8F 6%
Sub Total [C) 1, 2802 T.077.03
T Lkl bl il guled.
8 ot 31 faech 2029 s ot 3 March X123
Particulars Tace Value [T) N Aot Vs Ampund
| o 1% s Lk d XA ki
At Falr yalue throogh other comprahamsive incoma !
Linguoled
5%, T Lpisties Privite Lieridod - MCSCAD ) 15000 }a a4 R0 £X) 71
Suby Toks! ] T2004 1.0
Iotal Imvesiments (B B+ 202,577.92 245, 1S b
\, 4
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

MNote 7--Other financial assets Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecu

considered good

Interast accrued on bank deposits 0.0L 017

Security deposits 001 0.3

Dividend recelvablas 826 -

Advance to employes 8.75% &£.00
18.03 B.43

As at As at

Note &:-C t tan assets
Note B:-Current tax assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Adhance tax-MNet of provision of Rs. 707.00 lakhs {previous year Rs.

445.90 lakhe) 34.91 43,39
3491 #3.39
Mote 9: Proj lant and eguipment
Particulars Fun;l::l::nd Office equipments Total
Gross Block (Deamed Cost)
As at 01 April 2022 0.63 151 114
Adiditions = = <
Sale/Deductian = S ,
As at 31 March 2023 0.63 151 .14
Additions - - -
Sale/Deduction - - -
As at 31 March 2024 0.63 151 114
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 0.43 123 1.66
Far the year 0.04 0.13 017
Adijustment = - =
As at 31 March 2023 0.48 136 1.B4
Far the year 0.03 0.03 0.06
Adjustrrent - - -
Asat 31 March 2024 0.51 139 1.50
Met Book Value
Asat 31 March 2024 0.12 012 0.24
As at 31 March 2023 0.15 0.15 0.30
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss stated)

As at As at
M 10:-Other -fl I
fon-mnancales 31March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance against expenze 037 0.54
Frepaid expenses 024 011
Balances/deposis with govemment authorities 0.01 003
Advance to others 8.26 -
8.88 073
As at As at
Note 11:-Other financial liabilities
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unclaimed dividend 263 1.62
Capital repayablie under capital reduction scheme 1.75 175
Employes Benefils Payable B3l 7.32
Other expenses payabla 3.72 1.22
16.41 1191
s b = As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for income tax- net of advance tax of Rs.
463.50 lakhs [Previous year-Mil} 1.50
1.50 -
As at Asat
Maote 13:-Provisions
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for amployes benefits:
a) Gratuity 5173 46.14
k) Leave salary 15.08 13.47
Others
a) Contingent provision against standard assels 0.66 0.66
B67.47 B0L27
13.1 Movement in provisions: Provison for R for
salary gratulty
As at 01 April 2022 10.31 42.56
Provisian utilised -
Provision created / (reversed) 3.16 3,58
Balance as at 31 March 2023 13,47 46.14
Provisian utilised (2.78) -
Provisian created [ (reversed) 4,39 5.58
Balance asat 31 March 2024 15.08 51.72

~
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

~

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax iabilities
= 0n fair value gain of investments {through other comprehensive income) 8.757.08 9,591.78
- On Interast on Investment . 0.44
- On fair value gain of investments [through profit or loss) 3.11 0.06
8,76039 9,952.28
Deferred tax assets
-Praperty, plant and equipment 0.21 0.26
=Investments Written OFF - 0.07
= Provision for gratulty 13.02 11.61
= Provision for leave salary E iy 1.39
= Unabsorbed capital losses B 11.18
17.02 26.51
Deferred tax {assets)/ Rabilities (net) 8,743.37 9,965.77
; As at As at
= : 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues 495 4.73
4,45 4.73
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss stated)

As at As at

Note 16: Equity share capital 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised:
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (Previous
Year: 2,00,00,000) 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued:
24,59,058 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each ( Previous
yvear Rs.5/-each) 122,95 122,95
Subscribed and Fully Paid:
24,56,2806 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up
[Previous year Rs. 5/- each ) 122.84 122.84

122.84 122.84

16.1 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of eguity shares having a par value of Rs. 5/~ per share (Previous year
Rs.5/-each). Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any, proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing AGM. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled o any of the remaining assets of
the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the no. of equity shares held by

them.

16.2 Reconciliation of the number and amount of equity shares

Amount
Bacticulars MmN (% in lakhs)
As at 01 April 2022 2.456,806 122.B4
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,456,806 122,84
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 2,456,806 122.84

16.3 The Companyisa non-banking finance company, the objective ef the Company sto Investin long term
Investments and granting of loans to ensure sustainable growth. The Company's objective |s to maintain
appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic

and commercial environment,

.‘
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16.4 Detalis of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares In the company [AN amourits in % lakhs; unlass ctherwise stated)
Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 Manch 2023
MName Mo of Shares
heid ® helding Na. of Shares hald % halding
Shree Capital Services Lid 492,000 15.62% 452,000 19.62%!
DiigwlJay Firlense Lid, 486,478 19.80% 486478 10.80%
Prashant Sangur® 208,200 BATR 08,200 BATH
Mannakrizhna Inwestments Pyt Lid 175,622 7.15% 175,622 7150
The CHdwana investment Company Limited 138,538 5 G5% 138,838 5,655,
Assch Creations Private Limited THLEIR 5 33% 130878 533%]
Newa investrments Pyt Lid 144,187 58T 144,187 5. B7%I
* Beneficial interest in 2,028,000 Equity Sharesis held by Shree Venkatash Ayurvedic Aushdhalaya.
16.5 Shares heid by promoters as at 51 March 2024 -
Sharsholding at the end of the
i Sharoholiing at the end of the year % changn during
Fromoter names [As om 31 Mar 3023] s o 31 Moy 2024 the yuar |
Mo. of Shares | % of total shares Mo, of Shares % of total shares
shres Caphtal Serdces Lid A 000 1263 & 00 18,63
Digvijay Finlease Lid eATH 19,80 64T 15.50
Frashant Bamgur 102200 .47 208,200 £.47
Mannakrishns Imvestmants P Lid 1622 .15 175,627 115
 The Digwans Imestment Campany Limited FECTE 5.5 138,830 EG5
Asich Preaticone Priviate Limited 130978 513 130 £74 £33
M |rvestments Pt Lid 144,167 527 144,187 5 87
| Do Iemvsterimens Pt Led 2852 0,23 12852 0.33
|Fagiri Fnance Private Limtar 18,003 0.77 15023 0.77
Fajesh Viahijya Prbaite Lid =052 n.33 & 052 .33
Thee Vasiktesh Co Private Ltd 10,153 0.41 1,152 0.41
Hmrrahan Bangur 4 0,00 4 0,00
Fajlirne] Devi Bangur i 0.00 2 0.00
[ Litotrmi St Lo Lind 2 0.0 F .00
LEE e 2 0,00 F 0.00
Total| 1,82629F Ta.M LA26 292 TA -
* Benefichl irterest in 208,000 Equity Shares b heid by Shree Verkatesh dgurvedic Arhdhalaym
16.6 Shares held by promotses as st 32 March 2023
m‘::“’ endfthe | coarehokding at the end of the yesr .
ST 1 i [A= on 3L Mar 2023 “E::.:.:,m:
No. of Shares | % of total shares | o, af Shares “fl ol
Shree Caphtal Services Ltd &72,000 1831 483 Do0 T 041
Ligvilay Frnlease Ltd 47L478 19.19 AT wey 061
Prashant 8angur 208200 847 208,200 247 [
Marinakrishiio Imssiments P Lid 165472 574 175,627 7.15 odl
Thee Dictwancs Iresstinerd Comngeiny Limited 130,788 552 188, K38 .55 0.3
Jsiski Creafions Privats Limited 124478 507 130,378 5,33 [
Hhewa |yestments Pot L 11320 4.85 144,187 587) 108 |
Ditht [ensestrmants Pt Lid 17,352 0.7 32852 0.93 (]
Fayiri Fiisncs Privite Linifed 1873 0.8 19,023 0.77 o
Raajesh Vaniya P Lid 4 0.00 BL52 0.33 033
| Thee Venkteak Co Private Ltd 2 0,00 10 152 .41 ol
Hamrohan Bangur 4 el 4 0,00 =000
Fiajkarnal Dani Bangur i .00 F] 0.00 0.6 |
[The Lawrvi salt Co Lt 1 0.0 2 0,00 .00
[Ram) Fangur 7 g E] 1.0 o
| Totpll LTIOFIE] 000 E863| 0000 LEISIW Ta3A 4,70
* Beneficial interest in 2 08.000 Equity Shares is held by Shres Vankatesh Ayurvedic Aushdhakeya.
v,
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i7; regu

31 March 2029 31 March 2023

Reseryes and Surplus

Capital Raserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year a.55 0.55
Securithes Premium
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 16.51 16.51
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,593 62 2 R88.16
Add: Transfer from retained earings 157.32 105,45
Clasing balance 2,850.94 2,693.62
General Reserve
Opening balance 4913.086 4,913.06
Add: Transfer from retained eamings
Closing balance 4,913.06 4,013,086
Retained Eamings
Opening Balance B,697.12 6,271.57
Add: Profit For the year 786.58 527.31
Add: Transfer from eguity instrument through OCI on realisation 1,910.34 (4.42)
Less: Transfer to statulory resernde (157.32) (1£5.46)
Add:Other camprahensive Income for the year 1.07 2.12
Mvidend Paid {9.83) -
9,227.96 5,697.12
Debt instruments through OCI
Opening balance (6.03) [E.03)
Add:Inter head transfer 0.04 .
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss) during the Year (net of tax) 1.50 -
Less:-Reciassification of galn on sale of FVTOCI debt instruments - -
|3.49) (6.03)
Equity instruments through OCI
Cpening balance 221,332.64 199,940.59
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss] during the year (net of tax) (2,738.32) 21,387.63
Add:inter head transfer (0.04) -
Add: Transfer from equity instrumment through CC1 on realisation (1,910,34) 4.42
Closing balance 216,683.94 221,332.64
TOTAL 233,639.47 235,647.47
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

Capital Reserve
This reserve represent the amount of share forefeited

Securities premium Reserve
This reserve represents the premiur on (ssue of shares snd can be utilized in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Statutory reserve

Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1334, Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for
theyear

General reserve

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity toanother
andis notan item of other comprehensive income.,

Retained earnings
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This reserve can be utilized In accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income

This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of debt instruments
measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The amount is transferred from
this reserve to the statement of profit and loss when the debt instrurent is derecognised.

Equity instruments through other comprehansive income

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of eguity instruments measured
at fair value through other cornprehensive incorne, net of tax, under an irrevocable option, net of amount
reclassified toretzined earnings when such asssets are disposed offifany.

.‘
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

Year ended Year ended

Nate 18- Interest Income 31 March2024 31 March 2023

On financlal assets measured at amortised cost

- deposits with banks 0.18 0.60
On financial assets measured at FVOC] on effective rate
- preference shares 1.B9 1.74
2.07 2.34
Year ended Year ended

Note 19:- Dividend Income

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Dividend income from:
On financial assets measured at FYTOCI
a} Equity shares 1,258.76 1,007.68
b} Preference shares 2,25 -
1,261.01 1,007.68
2= N i on Tk = Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes
on Financial Instruments designated at FVTPL
= Mutual funds 31.50 4.71
31.50 4.71

Fair value changes

Realisad 18.58 7.02
Unrealised 12.92 [2.31)
31.50 471

Year ended Year ended

.
Note 21:- Other Income 31 March2024 31 March 2023

Interast an income tax refund 1.15 0.80
115 0.80

Year ended Year anded

Note 22:- Finance Cost 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest expenses at amortised cost 0.02
0.02 -
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

Year ended Year ended
Note 23:- Empleves benefhs expense 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and allowance 131.28 13558
Contribution to Provident Fund and other fund 9.97 B.B2
Staff welfare axpenses 11.72 333
Gratuity 7.01 6.42
Leave salary 4.39 1.16
164.37 157.31
% Year ended Year ended
Note 24:- Depreciation
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
On property, plant and equipment 0.06 0.17
0.06 0.17
Year ended Year anded
Mote 25:- Other expenses
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Directors Meeting Fees 311 3.86
Listing Fees 3.54 2.54
Filling Fees 0.27 5.21
Printing and stationary B.28 6.0%
Professional and legal charges 11.62 32.55
Rent, rates and taxes 0.35 1.32
Repairs and maintenance - others 0.82 1.38
Auditer's fees and expenses [Refer note-25.1) 178 136
Advertisement & Subscriptions 0.48 1.31
Communication Expenses b6.08 5.09
Security transaction tax 5.59 Z.89
Imvestment Writtern Off B 0.29
Transaction charges on sale of shares 13.37 -
Miscellaneous expenses 5.54 5.16
60.83 T0.05
1-P r
Year ended Year ended
Partieulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
For statutory audit 1.18 1.20
For tax audit Q.13 0.10
For other services 0.47 0.06
1.78 136
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note 26:- Tax expense

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Current tax 273.50 202.00
Income tax relating 10 earfier yaars 9.72 27.16
Defermed tax. relating to orlgination and reversal of 075 3153
temporary differences

281.97 260.69

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Current tax

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 191.50 -
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of
tempaorary differences

Remeasuremant of the defined benetit plans 0,36 0.72
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (1,221.02) 3,646.58
Financial Instruments measured Through OC) {2.500 -
(1,031.66) 3,647.30

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The Income tax expansa for the year can be reconclled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 1,070.55 788.00
Tax Rate 25.17% 5.17T%
Income tax expanse calculated at the effective rate 26944 198.32
Non Deductible Expenses 4.78 0,73
Effect of MAT credit - 21.61
Effect of Tax transfer to OCI - a.76
Rate Difference - 1.65
Effect of rounding of Taxes 0.88 1.45
Income Tax relating to aarlier years 8.72 27.16
Other adjustments (0.85) -

Ta expenses 283.97 260.69

\ J
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26.1 Tax losses
As at Az at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unused Tax Lossas & unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred
tax assets has been created

-Business Loss 147.45 160.67

-Unabsorbed depreciation - 1.00
Parentlal tax banefitd® applicable tax rate

-Business Loss 3ril 40,44

“Urabsorbed depreciation . 0.25

Asst, year2025-26  Asst. year 2024-
Business losses will lapse betwesn to Asst, year 2030- 25 to Asst, year

31 2030-31
6.2 Movement in deferred tax labilities for year ended 31 March 2023:
Asat Statement of s Asat
oty OLApAI2022| Profitorlom | SOMPUERERSVE | g e 2023
Income

|Deferred tax liabilites for table temporary
differances an:
O Fair value gain of inmvestrent (PYTOC]) 6.334.02 - 3,657. 76 999178 |

Iiferest on Financia| Assets . 0.44 - 044 |
O fair value gan of imwestrment (FYTPL) .42 [0.37) - 0.06 |
Deferred tax liabilities 6,334.44 0.7 3,657.76 9949274 |
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2023:

Asat Statement of ik Asat
e 1Apri2022 | Profitarloss | COPTERENSNE | g serch 2023
Incoma
| Deferrad tas ascats for taxable tamporary
differences on:

-Property, plant and aouipment 0.3 (0.06) 0.25
-Investments Writtzn Off - 0.07 . .07 |
- Provision for gratuity iLad 0,49 {072) 1161 |
= Prowishon Tor leave salany .87 0.52 - 3.29

- MAT Credit 2161 {1L61) -

- Unibsorbed capital losses 10.88 {10.88) 1L18 1L18 |
Deferred tax sssets 47.51 {31.46) 10.45 2651
et defemed tax liabilities/(assets) 5,286.94. 3153 3,647.30 9,965.77 |

. J
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)
26.3 Movement in deferred tax Dablities for year ended 31 March 2024:

Other
As at Statement of As at
Pariilos OLAprii 2023 |  Profitor Loss "“l:':n‘m" 'SVE | 31 March 2024
Deferred tax lablities for taxable temporary
differances on:
On tair value gain of investment (FVTOCH) 8.591.78 - {1,234.70) 875708
|ntereat on Financial Assets 0,44 [0, 48} - -
O Faif value galn of vestiment (FYTPL] 006 3.25 - 331
Deferrad tax labilities 9,592.28 am {1.234.70) B,760.20
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2024:
Oither
As mt Staternent of As at
Particuiars henslva
OLAprii2023| Prafitortoss | o 31 March 2024
Income
Deferred tax assets for tavm ble temporary
differences on:
Proparty, plant and eoulpment 0.25 (0.0} 021
[mestments Wiritten Off 0.07 10.07) - -
- Prowision for gratuity 1161 17 {0.36) 13.02
Prowision For leave salary 3,38 .40 .79
- Unalsorbed capltal lasses 1118 - (1118} -
Deferred tax assels 2650 .06 f11.54) 17.02
Net deferred tax iabiiises/{assets) 9,365.78 0.75 (1.223.16) B,743.37
Note 27-Basic and Diluted earnings per share
Yaar ended Year ended
P ulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 786.58 527.31
Weighted average number of equity shares used as 2,456,806 2,456,806

denominator for calculating Basic EPS
Total weighted averape number of equity shares used

as denominator for calculating Diluted EPS LIRS0 o e
Basic eamings per share (3] 32.02 21.46
Diluted earnings per share (%) 32.02 21,46
Face value per equity share (%) 5.00 5.00
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Note 28:- Segment reporting (ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

The Company has only one line of business i.e, Non Banking Financial activities.

There ara no separate reportable segments as par nd AS 108,
ote 29:- e be

a) Defined Contribution plans:

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recopnilzed as an expense in profit

and boss statement for the year ane ds under:

2 Year ended Year ended
EBanticulan 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to provident & othar funds 9.497 882

9.97 B.82
b) Defined benafit plans:
Contribution 1o defined benefit plans, recognised as an expensa in profit and loss
statement far the year are as under;
Year ended Year ended
Lotz 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gratuity - Net dafined benafit ohligation 7. 6.42
7.01 642
Defined benefit plan
The employee gratulty scheme of the company Is unfunded. The present value of obligation is determined
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unlt credit method as on 31st March 2024, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measuras each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The company's graluily expense |s
recognized under the head - "Gratulty" In note 23.
Movement of defined benefit obligation
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit abligation
overthe year are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 46,14 42.56
Current service cost 3.80 31.39
Interest cost 3.21 3.04
Benefits pald : .
Actuarial (gain)loss [1,43] (2.24)
Deflnad benefit obligation at end of the year 51.73 4614
Present value of cefined benefit obligation 5173 45.14
Amount recognised as liability in belance shest 51.73 46.14
J
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14 du the year [Under the haad (A1l amounts in € 1akhs, unless otharwisa stated)
Year anded Year ended
Expense recognised In profit and loss statement 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cumvenl service cosl 3.80 3.39
Past saryice cost (vested) # -
Net interest cost 5.21 I
Total amount 7.0L 6.43
Year anded Year ended
Remeasurements recagnised In ather comprehensive incoma 31 March 2014 31 March 2023
Actuarial (gain)/koss on obligations due to changs in flinancial assumption . .
Actuairial [gainifloss on obligations dug to unexpected experience {1.43} {2.84)
Total amaunt recognised in other comprehensive incame (1.43) {284)
Mot Cost 558 3.59
, ial ;
Discount rate [per annum) 6.96% T.14%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum]) 6.00% 600
Retiremant age 60 years 60 yaars
Assurnptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rates under
Indian Assured Lives Martality (2012-14) Ultimate.
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:
Increase by Decrease by
Sensitivity analysis Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Discount rate {-/+0.5%) 46.07 46.22
Salary growth {-/+ 0.5%) 46.22 46.07
Atrition rate {-/+ 10%) 46.14 46.15
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 46.14 16.14
v,
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Increase by Decrease by

Sensitivity analysls Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2024

Discount rate {;'+ 0.5%]) 51.57 51.89
Salary growth {-/+ 0.5%) 51.89 51.57
Attrition rate (-/+ 10%) 51.72 53173
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 51.73 51.73
Maturity profile

Year ended Year ended
Year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 47.63 44,38
2 0.02 .02
3 0.03 0.02
4 0.03 0.02
= 0.03 o.02
6to 10 1.69 2.14
Maore than 10 years 291 1.39

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other refevant factors including supply and dernand in the employment market.
The discounting rate Is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms
consistent with the currency in terms of the post employment benefit obligations.
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Mote 30:- Related party disclosurs (Al amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwise statad)

1 Barticy oy of rlatanshin Bams of relsted gartles Gesigration
bk M i ChalrmanMan Sxecidive & Non

Imlepenoent (aecior

Bankat Lal Gapgar s oumcirtien Diroctor
lagdivn Prased Mundra o axezuthve Dirsctor

Key ma il g i Rrya P‘uj:]iin M enecutrve Direchor
Tages Kuma: Bhattachanga Inlepernent director
Delnasish May Intlepencent director
Priyanka Mohta Indepencent director
Surwisep Bhutoria [Aspoimed woef 215t Septernber, 2032) Indapanoent director
Sundrapandivapuram Pichumand Kumar Manager & CED

K=y mangerial persannel- as per Sudhs isindceased w.oe f 3151 May 2021) Company Secretany

Section {TE) of the Companies Act 2013 Sehitsh Redio (Appoinied we ) D150 lase, 2622) Campary Sectelary

I} Disclosures of transactions between the companies and related parties with status of outstanding
closing balances:

Yearendead Year ended

Particubir 31 March 2024 31 Manch 2023

{I} Particulars of trensactions with related parties |Key managerial personnel)

i} Remuneration of Key Managerial Personne]*

5. P. Kumar

Short tarm employes berwefits 0,33 228
Post-employrment enetits 136
Sudha Jain

Short term employes benefits - 1.0
Ashish Kedia

Short term emiployee benefits 21.69 14.23
Past-employment benefits - 1.08
i} Advances

Paid 6,50 4.50
Recebned back 4.70 .55
il} Directors sitting fees

Ashak Bhandarl (.40 .57

Bankat Lal Gaggar 0.53 067

lagddish Prasad Mundra .57 .71

Riwa Puga Jain .10 o5

Tapas Kumar Bhattzcharya 0.65 069

[hehasizh fay .61 &7

Sundesp Bhutoria 0,05 0.x
Priyanka Mahia 0.20 0.30

8] Dutstanding balance at the end of year (Key Managerial Personnel)

Closing balance of advances 5,00 kB, 1]
Peanrmiunn belance of advances during the year L 9.75

* Post employment benefit details doesn't include Gratuity as the same is not seperately disclosed in
actuarial report for the year (Refer note: 29)
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Maote 32:- Disclosure on financial instruments

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fairvalue and (B) measured at armartised cost and for
which fairvalues are disclosed Inthe financial statements,

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financlal asset,

financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

(i} Categories of Financial Instruments

As i As gt
i psis i 31 Maich 2024 21 March 2023
|Farancial assets
a) Measured ot amortised cost
i} Cash and cash equivalents 4 4,30 3.04
I} Other bark balances 5 1,73 ER.3%
lf} Cthar nancial aseess 7 18,03 a.4a
Sub-Total 14.06 66.91
|b) Measured at fair vabue throwgh ©CI (FYOCH)
i] Investime nt in quoted equity shares & 236.969.07 238 568.00
ii] Inwestme nt in anguoted equity shares 1 2,.268.82 7.0771.05
iii} Iveestrmient In unquoted preference shares G 23,94 21.04
Sub-Total 239,260.83 245 66607
c] Measured at fair value through profit snd loss
[FuTey
i] Investmant in mutual fund [ 3317.09 I5.5%
SuleTotal 3317.09 35.59
Total fivancial sssets 202,601.98 245,768.57
Financial llabliides
Muasured ot amortised cost
i} Othar Fnane &l Eabilites 11 16.41 11591
Total financial labdlities 64l 119

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This settion explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (2) recegnised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of
the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classifled its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
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Level 1: Lavel 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using guoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation technigues which maximise the use of ohservable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
Instrument isincluded inlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument s
Included inlevel 3.

(iif) Valuation technique used to determine Fair Value

Specificvaluation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

= the fair value of invetsment in quoted aquity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or
MNAM.

» the fair value of level 2 Instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market

participants assumptions and other data that are available.

(lv) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabllities measured at Fair value - recurring Fair Value
Measurements

As at 31 March 2023
Level 1 Level 2

As at 31 March 2024
Level 1 Lawel 2

Particulars

Financial assets

Investiment In sguity instruments
Investrment in debl instruments
investment in mutual fund

236.969.07

3317.09

2.268.82
22.94

238,568.00

35.59

7.077.03
21.04

Total financial assets

240,286.16

1,291.76

238,603.59

7,098.07

(v) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded inan active market is determined using valuation
technigues. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For detalls of the key
assumptions used and theimpact of changestothese assumptions see {il) abave.

(vi) Fairvalue of assets and liabilities measured at cost/famortised cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liahilities measured at amortised cost are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying
amount would be significantly different from the values that would be eventually received or settled.
Management assessed that fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, other bank balances, Other financial
assets and otherfinancial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts of these instruments, as discussed
balow:

.‘
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Pa = As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Carrying value Fair value Carrying valua Fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cath equivalents 4,30 4.30 104 304
Other bank balarces 173 1.73 55.39 55.39
Orher financial assats 18.03 1R.03 B4R Aa8
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 16.41 16.41 11.91 11.91
{wli) Maturity analysls of assets and Habilities

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Partlculars
al Nfthin 12 manths After 12 Within 12 After 12
months maonths months
ASSETS

Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalants 4.30 - 3.0 -
Other bank halances 1.73 = 55,39 =
|yestments 3.317.08 239.260.683 35.59 245,666.07
Other financial assats 18.03 - B.48
Total financial assets 3,341.15 239,260.83 102.50 245,665.07
Mon-financial assets
Current tax assels (Net) 34,91 - 43.39
Property, plant & equipment - 0.24 - 0.30
Other non-financial assets 8.E8 - 0.73 -
Total non financial assets 43.79 0.24 44.12 0.30
Total assets 3,384.94 239,261.07 146.62 245, 66637
Liabilities
Financial llabilitles
Other financial liakilities 16.41 - 11.91 -
Total financial Rabilities 16.41 - 1191 -
Mon-financial labilities
Current tax Babilities (Met) 1.50 -
Provisions 62.71 476 57.85 242
Deferrad tax liabilities [Net) 3.31 8,740.06 .06 096571
Other non-financial liabllites 4.9% 4.73
Total non financial liabilities 7247 8,744.82 6164 9,968.13
Total labiities BE.E8 8,744.82 T4.55 9.958.13
Met equity 3,296.06 230,516.25 T2.07 235,698.24
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Note 33

Financial risk management

The Company isa Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of india. On account of
its business activities it is exposed to various financial risks associated with financials products such as
credit or default risk, market risk, interest rate risk, llquidity risk and inflationary risk. However, the
Company has a robust financial risk management system in place to identify, evaluate, manage and
mitigate various risks associated with its financial products to ensure that desired financial objectives are
met. The Company's senior management is responsible for establishing and monitoring the risk
management framework within its overall risk management objectives and strategles, as approved by the
Board of Directar. Such risk management strategies and objectives are established to identify and analyse
potential risks faced by the Company, set and monitor appropriate risk [imits and controls, periodically
review the changes in market conditions and assess risk management performance. Any change in
Company's risk management objectives and policies needs prior approval of it's Board of Directors,

Creditrisk

This risk is common to all investors whao invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation
where a particular bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate
payment, or both. Simlilarly, 2 lender bears the risk that the borrower may default in the payment of
contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both, The entity continuously monitors defaults
ofthe customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk control.

Market risk:

Market risk is 2 form of systematic risk associated with the day-to-day fluctuation in the market prices of
shares and securitizs and such market risk affects all securities and investors in the same manner. These
dally price fluctuations follows its own broad trends and cycles and are more news and transaction driven
rather than fundamentals and many a times, it may affect the returns from an investment. Markeat risks
majorly comprises of two types - interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowlngs and investments,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is a type of systematic risk that particularly affects fixed rate debt instruments like bonds
and debentures. The value of the fixed-rate debt instruments generally decline due to rise in interest rates
and vice versa. The rationale is that a bond s a promise of a future stream of payments; an investor will
offer less for a bond that pays-out at a rate lower than the rates offered in the current miarket. A rising
interest rate scenario also affects the Company's interest expenditure on borrowed funds,

The Company manitors the interest rate scenarios on a regular basis and accordingly takes investments
declsions as whether to invest in fiked rate debt instruments, shares and securities at a particular point of
time.

.‘
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Pricerisk

Price risk Is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
traded price. It arises from financial assets such as Investments in equity instruments, bonds, mutual funds
etc. The Company is exposed to price risk arising mainly from investments carried at FVOCI which are
valued using quoted prices in active markets. A sensitivity analysis demenstrating the impact of the change
inmarket prices of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given below:

Carrying valus as at
Particul
gk 31-Mar-24 3-Mar-23
Inwastmants carmied at FVOC] wafued wsi oled
: ’ foiia 236,969.07 238,568.00
Prces in active market
Sensithiity analysk on total
comprehensive incoma upan
Particulars Muctuation of market prices
increase by 10% | Decreasz by 10
=
Imaact on total comprehensive Incame for year
anded 31 March 2094 23,696.91 {23,806,591)
Impact on total comprahanalve Incame for year =
ended 31 March 2023 155680 23.56.80)

Equity instrument through OCl being a component of other equity would increase/decrease as a result of
gain/loss onequity securities classified as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity refers to the readiness of the Company to sell and realise its financial assets. Liquidity risk is one of
the most critical risk factors for Companies which s into the business of Investments In shares and
securities. It is the risk of not being able to realise the true price of 2 financial asset, or {s not being ableto
sell the financial asset at all because of non-availability of buyer Unwillingness tolend or restricted lending
by Banks and Financial Institutions may also lead to liguidity conearns for the entities,

The Company maintains a well-diversified portfolio of investments in shares and securities . A dedicated
team of market experts are monitoring the markets on a continuous basis, which advises the management
for timely purchase or sale of securities. The management ensuras to manage fts cash flows and asset
liability patterns to ensure that the financial obligations are satisfied in timely manner.

The fallowing table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts reported are on gross and undiscounted basis.

.‘
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Between Lo 5 Over
(Parthc ulars Less than 1 yaar vams 5 yann Tatal
[As &t 31 March 2024
bt r finaneial Habilrties 16.41 - - 16.41
16.41 - - 1641
As mt 31 March 2023
[Othar financisl ablitess: 119 - - 11.91
11.94 N - nes
Inflatlonary risk:

Inflationary or purchasing power risk refers to the variation in investar returns caused by inflation. Itisthe
risk that results in increase of the prices of goods and services which results in decrease of purchasing
power of moeney, and likely negatively Impact the value of investments. The two important sources of
inflation are rising costs of production and excess demand for goods and services in relation to their supply.
Inflation and interest rate risks are closely related as interest rates generally go up with inflation,

The Company closely monitors the Inflation data and analyses the reasons for wide fluctuations thereof
and its effect on various sectors and businesses. The main objective is to avoid inflationary risk and
accordingly invest in securities and debt instruments that provides higher returns as compared to the
infiation In long-term.

Note 34-Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, other
equity reserves and borrowed capital less cash and cash eguivalents. The primary objective of capital
management is to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support corporate
expansion strategies and to maximize shareholder's value.

The entity manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the entity may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, returmn capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The
entity raonitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The
entity's policy is to keep an optimum gearing ratio. The entity includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company.

As at As at
R 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Borrowings . -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 4,30 3.04
Adjusted net debt {4.30) (3.04)
Total equity (*) 233,812.91 235,770.31
Net debt to equity ratio®® : =

{*) Equity includes capital and all reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.
¥ Asnegative kept Nil.

.‘

151



N.B.IL Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
89th Annual Report 2023-24 CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Mote 35: Contingent lmbilities {811 amounts in € lakhs, unless atharwisa statad)
Asat As at
Contingent Liahilities
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(&) Claims against company not acknowledged as debis
i} Incoms tax matters under dispute with Ld. CIT {A) 2.0 30.65

llj Fine imposed by Competent Authority for delayed
compliance of certain requirements against  which
Company's appeal (Frevious year-representation) s pending

[net of advances of % 6.26 lacs)
- 35.53

The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adeguate provisions
wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its financial statements.
The company does not reasonably expect the outcome of theses proceedings to have a materal impact on
itsfinancial staterments.

Note 36

Particulars required under paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company-5cale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 are given in annexure appendead hereto

Note 37

The Company entered into cancellable lzase arrangements for certain accommodations. Terms of such
leass Include upto three month's notice by either party for cancellation, option for renewal on mutually
agreed terms and there are no restrictions imposed by such lease arrangements. The Company has applied
the ‘short —=term lease’ exemptions for these leases, Rental expenses incurred are disclosed in Note 25 as
Rent.

Note 38: Other statutory information:

{I} The company has not advanced or given loan or Invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies),
including foreign entities {Intermediarias) with the understanding that the Intermadiary shall:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(B} Provide any guarantee, security orthe like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities

{Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall:

.‘
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{a) directly ar Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Other than the above disclosures, the remaining other disclosures as prescribed in Amended Division Il of
Schedule Il read with section 129 of Companies Act 2013 are either NIL or Not Applicable to the company
forthe current period.

Note 39: Disclosure on CSR Expenditure

Yaar ended Year ended

Panticubs 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Amourt required to be spent by the Company during the Year - -
Amount of experditure Incurred - -

Shortfall at the and of the year - =
Tatal of the previcus year shartfall . -
Riezsan for shartfall Mot Applicable | Not Applicable

Datails of reiated party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in
refation to CSA sxpenditure §s per relevant Accounting Standard

Where a provison = made with respact 1o a liability incurred by entering info cantraciual|
oibligation, the movements n the provizion during the year shafl be shown separately.

IHﬂMW= Ev=nts Occcuring After The Balance Sheet Date

Yaar ended Year ended

Bkt 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Dividend proposed for equity share holdess (T 0.50 per equity share for FY 2023-24 (Previous
1228 5.83
Year : T0.40)
Notad41:

Statement of Balance Sheet disclosures in terms of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company-5cale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

{Amount in T Crore)

i) Capital 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Capital to Risk/Weighted Assets Ratio {CRAR) (%) 102.05% 101.98%
CRAR-Tier | Capital (%) 102.05% 101.98%
CRAR-Tier || Capital (%) - -
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll Capital - -

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

~
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{Amaunt in % Crore)
) Investments 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A, Value of Investments

Gross Value of Investments:

a} Inindia 242573 2,457.02
b} Ouiside India - -

Provisions for Depreciation:
a} In India - -
b} Outside Indis - -

Met Value of Investments
a} In India 2,425.78 2,457.02
b} Outside India . i

B. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

Opening Balance = 2
Add: Provisions mada during the year . =
Less: Write-off /Write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
Clasing Balance - <

lii) Derivatives
The Company does not have any derivatives exposure inthe current and previous financial year.

iv) Disclosuras relating to Securitisation
The Company does not have any securitisation transaction In the current and previous financial year.

v) Asset Liability Management
Disclosures relating to maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities are given in annexurs
appended hereto,

vi) Exposures

A) Exposure to Real Estate Sector 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Category
a) Direct Exposure

i} Residential Mortgages-
Lending fully secured by moartgages an residential property that s
or will be accupled by the barrawear or that |& rantad.
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31 March 2024

{Amount in % Crore)
31 March 2033

I} Commwerclal Real Estata

Lending secursd by morigages on commercial real estates (office boildings, retail
space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-
tenanted commercial premises, industrdal or warehouse gpace, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction, stc.). Exposure would also include non-
fursd based limits

i} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities [MBS) and other securitized exposures -

8. Resldential
k. Commercial Real Estate
bl Indirect Expasure

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector
B) Exposure to Capital Market

I} direct irwestment In equity shares, corwertible bonds, corvertible debentures and
units of equity-onentsd mutual funds the corpus of wdich is not exchmively invested

I carporate debi;

i) advances against shares [ bords / debentures or other securities or on clean basis
L Individuisbs Tor lvestiment ln shares (Incleding 1POs J ESOPS), comertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

iii} advances for any other purposes where shares or comvertible bonds ar
comvertible debentures or units of equity odented mutual funds are taken as
primnary security:

v} advances for any other purposes to the sxtent secured by the collateral security
of shares or corwertinle bonds or comertible debentures or units of equity orented
miutual funds l.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
comwertible debentures / units of equity orented mutusl funds does not fully cover
the advances;

V) secured and unsscured advances o stockbrokers and guaramtees isusd on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds
debentures or other securities. or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the aquity of new companies tn anticipation of raising resources;

i) Brickge brams 10 componies against expected equity Tlows / ssues:

viil) underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equlty orlented
mutual funds

i) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

«] all exposures to Alternative [nvestment Funds:

[a} Category 1
[b) Category I

[c) Category il

=i} All excposures to venture capital funds (both regictered and unregisterad

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

2,392.38

2,456.45

Total Exposure to Capital Market

2,392.38

2,456.45

~
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D) Details of financing of parent company products
The Company does not have a parent company and aceardingly ho disclosures reguired.

E) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit {GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are o instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company during the
eurrent and previous year,

F) Unsecured Advances
The Company does not have any unsecured advances for which intangible securities such as charge over
rlghts, llcense, autharity, etc. has been taken.

vii} Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained any registration from ather financial sector regulators,

B) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBl and other regulators
There have been no penalties imposed on the Company by RB| or other financial sector regulators during
the current and previous financial year,

C) Related Party Transactions

Details of all material related party transactions as per Ind AS 24 are disclosed in Note 30.Disclosures with
respect to transactions with related parties as per section 2{76) of companies Act 2013, are given
hereunder:

1} Particulars of relationship Mame of related parties
Private company where a director, manager, or their relative 4.1 creations Private Limited
ie 3 member or director

Mannakrishna Investments Private Limited
Mewa Investments Private Limited
Rajesh Vanijya Private Limited
Ragini Finance Private limited
The Venktesh Company Private Limited
Tulika Investments Private Limited
It} Disclosures of transactions with refated parties:
(Amount in T crore)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dividend payments

Asiish Creations Private Limitec 0ol -
Mannakrishna Investments Private Limited 0,01 -
Newa Invesiments Private Limited B.01 =
Rajesh Vankya Private Limited*® 0.00 -
Ragmi Finance Private lmited™ 0.00

The Venktesh Comaany Privatz Limited® 0.00 -
Tulika Imesimenty Privats Linited® 0,00

0.00" represents amount below rounding off norms adopted by the company
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D) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Notapplicable

E) Remuneration of Directors
Details relating to remuneration of directors are disclosed in Note 30. All pecunlary relationship or
transactions of the Mon Executive Directors vis a vis have been disclosed in the Annual Report.

F) Management
The management discussion and analysis report for the year ended March 31, 2024 forms part of the
Annual Report,

G Sectoral Enposures [Amount in  crone)
Ceftors A at 11 March 2024
Percertage  of  Gross
Total axpos e Gross HPds NP to ozl Bxposure
ini that sectod

Agriculture & allled activizies * F =
Corparate Barmowers
Servicen =
Tulal . " -

[Amaunt in % crore)

Sector As ot 31 March 2023
Percestage al Gran
Tontal s e Gham NFAs NPfs to iotsl oopoame
i that sector
Agriculture & allbed sctvities
Corporate Borrowen
Servires
Total . . =
H] intra-group exposures [Amount In % crore)

31 March 2024 31 March 20023

Total amount of Infra-group expasures

Tl amount of top 20 intra-group exposures £
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBRC on

borrowers/custome s

1] Unhedgad foreign currency exposune
The Carmpany does not have sy foreign currency exposurs during the current amd previous year.

1) Breach of covenant
Thers ware na instances of breach of covenant of lnan avalled durng the year undar review. No debt securities wers issusdby the
company durling the vear,

K] Divergence in assais classification and pravisioning

RE! has not assessed or klentified any additonz| provisicning requirement in the zase of the company other than what has been provided
far. Henee not applicabla.
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viii} Additional Disclosures

A} Provisions and Contingencies
"Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit
and Loss”

{Arsount in T Crora)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provisions lor deprecation on [rvestment - -

Provision tawards NPA - -
Provision made towards Incorme tax (Including deferred tax) 284 281
Other Provision and Contingencies {Employee Banefits) 0.7 0.07
Provislon for Standard Assets - -
B) Draw Down from Reserves

There have been no instances of draw down from resarves by the Company during
the current and previous finance| year,

€} Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

(Amount in % crore)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a) Concentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenty largest bomowers - -
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers Lo Tolal Advanoes - -

(Amaount in % crore)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

b} Concentration of Exposures
Total exposure 1o twenty [argest borrowersfoustomers
Farcentage of sxposures to twanty largest borrowers [ customers 1o Total Exposura . -

t) Cancentration of NPAs
Total gxposure to top four NPA accaunts - -

[Amount In X crore)
d) Sector-wise NPAs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Agriculture & allied activities . -
MSME
Corparate horrowers
Services - -
Unsecured personal boans - -
Auta loans
Other personal loans
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{Arsount in T Crora)

D} Movement of NPAs {Amaunt in T crore)
31 March 2024 31 March 2083

i} Met NPAS to net advances (%)

M Movement of NPAs (Gross)

#) Opening balance

bj Additions during the year

¢} Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance = E

i) Movemant of net NPAs

a) Dpening halance

b Additions during the vear

€] Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance = =

iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

) Opening balance

b} Provistons made during the year - -
o} Wirite-off fwrite-back of excess provisions - -
d} Closing balance .

E} Dverseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Comparny did not have any overseas assets during the current and previous year.

F} Off-balance sheet 5PVs sponsored {which are reguired to be consolldated as per accounting narms)
The Company did not sponsor 2ny SPYs during the current and previous financial year,

(2} Disclosure of customer complaints
A) Summary information aon complaints received by the MBFCs From customers (Amount in X crore)
Particulars 31 March 2024 11 March 2023
) Mo, of comiplaints pending at the heginning of the year . .
b)No. of complaints received during the year .
] Mo of complaints disposed during the year
=0f which,number of complaints rejacted by the NBFC
d) No, of complaints pending at the end of the year
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B Tap five grounds of complaints received by the NEFCs from customers

[&mount inT crore]
% imcreasefdeomasn | Mo, of
Grounds of complaines, (Le. :;Ih"::::mm No. of complaints in the aumber of complaints :ﬂ:‘m:: nding
complaints relating ta) o recaived during the year |complaints recelved  panding at the hﬁﬂﬂd”::r'
i over thil prasious yead |snd of the year

Asat 31 March 2024

Hil Hil Nil [ Ml Mil
Ag 81 31 Merch 2023

Hil Hil Hil Hil Hil Hil
MNote 43

Disglogure on lguldity fsk in tarms of Mastar Direction Resarve Bank of India [Non-Banking Financial Company-Scaks Based
Reguiation) Directions, 2023

|Amount in € crore)
(i) Funding Concentration based on signilicant countarparty on borrowings & deposits 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mumber of significant counterparthss - .
Amount of berrowed funds from s gnillzant counterparties s 3
Porcentage of total deposits BA A
Percentage of totsl liabilides 2

Maote:
1} A “Significant counterparty” s defined as a single counterparty or graue of connectad or affillated counterparting accounting in
aggregate {or mare than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NEFC-Ds total [shil ties and 108 for ather non-deposit taking NBFCs

ii) Total Labilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less: Reserve & Surplus: and computed basis extant
regulatory ALM guldelines,

{ii} Top 20 large deposits [amount in ¥ crone and % af total deposits)
Thee compary has not tken any deposits for the FY 2023-24.

{lil} Top 10 borrowings (amount In % crore and % of total deposits)
The company does not have any borreings as on 3151 March 2024

(v} Fundine Concentration based on slenificant Instrument / oroduct

[Amount in & crom)

fison 31 March 1024 iy on 31 Manch 33 i

ks i Amount |**] % of wial lablities |Amouwnt [**] % ol total [abilities |

| e nowinges. (ol ber Rlan deld seourities) N . , = |
Nicte:

(i3 “yignificant Instromant product” iz dafined ax & single insorument/iproduct of group of stmiler instromems)'products which in agregste smau 1o mars
than 1% of the BEFC-MESs, NBFC-Ds total labiimes and 10% for otfier son-cepot taking NBFCL.

[l Tortal liablities has been comgnted s total awsts lews equity shire capital ke reierve B gorpus and computed b= extant regulitony AU guide e,
[**} Figures are based en gross bowawing outrtanding snd does not Includes acoruesd imerest and other Ind AS sd{urtmentd.

~
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{Armourt in T Crors)
(V) Stock rathos In percentage 1L March 2024 31 March 2021
L Commenclal papers 3 0% of total labilRies - -
L Commencial papers s & % of totel assets - -
3. Conunerclal papers 25 a % of public fund - -
4. Mon-conwertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year| 35 8 % of 1oual Habilities - -
5. Man-convertible debentures (original maturity of kess than one year) a5 8 % of total azssts -
& Mai-comwertible debslmes Inrﬁul irlurity of beds than one yeif } @54 %ol pu.blk. il -
7. Oy short-term labdities os o % of toml lisbilities DB o5
8. Oty short-term laldlites a5 8 % of (ota] assets Ch 0.00%
. Cribar short-tarm labiites a3 8 % of public fund - :

{vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company have an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of
all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting its
business. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the
management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the constitution of the Risk Management
Cotnmittes (RMC) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various aspects and
types of risks, including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly
interval. Further, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee [ALCO),
which funetions as the strategic decision-making body Tor the asset-liability management of the Company
fram risk-return perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board, The main
objective of ALCO is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset
liability managament, market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to
ensure adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in
terms of interest rate, liguidity, funding sources, and investrment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held
once in a Quarterly or more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes of ALCO meetings are
placed befare the RMC and the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/ ratification.

MNote 44;

The following disclosures is reguired pursuant to RBI circular dated March 13, 2020 - Circular
No.REIf2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20

{Amaunt in % crons)
Gross alowances 5
Assat classification as per REI | Assel Classification as per  |Gonss earrying amaunt | {provisions) as el camying mﬂ:rm
Narms IND AS 109 ad par IND AS raquingd undar IND AS |amaount
109
Perfarming assen Stage L
| M0 n-parfgrming assets K=t ]

There is no difference betwean the provisioning requirements as per IND AS 109 and IRACE norms.

.‘
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(ANl amounts in € lakhs, unless otharwiss statad)

Disclosure with regard to dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

(1] The Ministry of micro, small and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August
2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises should mention in their correspondence
with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memerandum Mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum
in accardance with the ‘Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise Develspment Act, 2006 (‘the Act),
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises has been made in the
financial staterments based on the information received and available with the Company.

(I} Based on the information / documents avallable with the company, no Interest provisions / payments
has to be made by the Company to micro enterprises and small enterprises creditors and thus, no related
disclosures as reguired under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developrment Act,
2006 are made in these accounts.

Note 46
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21, 2022 has approved the

scheme of amalgamation {"Scheme") of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with the Company and their respective shareholders and crediters under sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Appointad Date being April 1, 2022,
The Schemeis subject to the required statutory and regulatory approvals.

Note 47:
Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the classification of
current period wherever necessary.

iy termes of our report attached Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturved] & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo, 302187E

Ashok Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chakman Nrectar

Nilima lashi DIN - 00012210 DIN-00711655

Partmer

Membership No_ 052122

LIDIN: 240521 22 BHGRTI636

Place - Halkats Sundrapandiyapuram
Pichuman] Kumar Ashish Kedia

[Bate = 16th May 2024 Manager & CFO Companmy Secretany
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[as required in terms of paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial

Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023]

Annexure to Note 36

1.,03.2024
Particulars

Llanllities side

(1) Loantand advances avallad by the NBFCs Inclushve of
imterest accrued thereon but nat pald:

|a} Deberturss © Secured

Unsacurad
Cither than fallleg within the meaning of public deposits*
{b} Defamred cradits
1E] Tenm boans
{d} Inter-corporate (oans and borrowing = =
{2} Commercial papeés - -
{F} Public deposits*
(g} Other loans
*Flease see Note 1 below

(2) Break-up of {1){f} above [outstanding public deposits

inchusive of interest accruad therean but not paid):

(@} in the form of Unzecured dabantures -

(b} In thie farm of partly sacured debentures |8, debanturas

where thers i a shortfall in the value of security - -
(e} Other public dapesis - -
‘Please sex Note L belew

[Amount in § crore)

31.03.2023

Amount  Ameount = Ameunt = Amount

outstanding owerdus outstanding ovirdue

Aty sider cutstanding ~ pubstanding

(3) Break-up of leans and advances Including bills
recetvables [other than those Inchuded in (4] below]:

{a) Secured
{b} Unsecured

0.18

oz

~
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(4] Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFC activities

(i} Lease assets Including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(&) Financial lease
(b} Operating lease

(i) Stack an hire Including hire charges under sundry debtors:
[a) Assets an Rire
(b) Repossassed assets

(i1} Other loans counting towards AFC actlvities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b} Loans other than [a] above

|5) Braak-up of iInvestmants:
Current investments:
1. *Quoted:

(i} Shares: (a) Equity

(b} Preference
(i) Debentures and bonds
[iii) Units of mutual funds
[iv) Governmant sacurities
(v} Others

2. *Unguoted:

(i} Shares: {a) Equity

{b) Preference
{ii} Debentures and bonds
{iii} Units of mutual funds
() Government securities
(v] Others

Annexure to Note 36

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

[as required in terms of paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023]

|Armount in T Crase)

Amount = Amount
outstanding ~ outstanding

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

.‘
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

[as required in terms of paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023]

Annexure to Note 36
|Arsaint in T Crare)
Amount Amount
Long Term investments: outstanding outstanding
31.03.2024 31.02.2023
1. "Quoted:
(i} Share: (a) Equity 130.53 135.589
(b} Preference - -
(Il) Debentures and bonds - -
{iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -
2. "Unguoted:
{i} shares: {a) Equity 7.40 7.40
(b} Preference 0.25 0.25
(i) Debentures and bonds - -
(ifii}) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others (Please specify) - -
171.22 143.90

*considered at original cost

(6] Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock an hire and loans and advances (including other Current Assets):
Plaase sea Note 2 balow

Amount net of provisions Amount net of provislans
31032024 3103 2023

Catzgory Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1. Refated Parties **
(@} Subsidiaries : 3 * =
(k] Companles in the same group - - - -
{c} Other refated parties - 0,05 : 0.a3
2. Dther than refated parties - 0.13 - 0.05

- 018 0.08
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[as required in terms of paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023]

Annexure to Note 36
|Armount in T Crase)

{7] Investor group-wise classification of all investmants [cumant and long term| in shares and sacurities (bath quoted and

unguoted: 31.03.2024 iL03.2023
Market Value
Book Value  Market Value fbreak
"rh'"':::'r:: oy {Net of up/for falr valus or N :::::mi 'I )
Provisions) NAY
NAY
Category

1. Related Parties®

(&} Subsidiaries - . i "
(b} Companles in the same group - - . .
lc) Othar related parties - - . =

1, Other than related parties 242578 17122 2A57.02 143,80

Total 2,425.78 I7LE2 2,457.00 143.50
4 As per Accounting Stapdards of 1CAI [Please see Note 3)

31.03.2024 31032023
(&} Other information

(I} Gross non-performing assets
{a) Related parties - 3
{b) Other than related parties - -

(I} Net non-performing assets
{a} Related parties -
{b) Other than related partizs - -

(17} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Notes:

1, As defined in paragraph 5.1.26 of the Directions,

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3. All notified Accounting Standards and guidance notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of
irvestments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of
unguoted (vestments shall be disclosed imespective of whether they are classified as long term | amortised cost
in the case of Ind AS) or current{fair value in the case of Ind AS) in (5) above.

~
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